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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 1R-contains, and other periodic and current repamts press releases of BankFinancial Corporationcoatain
forward-looking statements within the meaning oft®e 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 193amended, that involve significant
risks and uncertainties. We intend such forwardkilog statements to be covered by the safe hartmvigions for forward-looking statements
contained in the Private Securities Litigation RefcAct of 1995, and are including this statementtfi@ purpose of invoking these safe harbor
provisions. Forward-looking statements are baseckotain assumptions or describe our future plstnategies and expectations, and are
generally identifiable by use of the words “beligviexpect,” “i anticipate,” “estimate,” “mject,” “plan,” or similar expressions. Our

intend,
ability to predict results or the actual effecipidins or strategies is inherently uncertain, andadcesults or effects may differ from those
predicted. Factors that could have a material agveffect on operations and could affect managesentlook or our future prospects inclu
but are not limited to: higher than expected ovadhénfrastructure and compliance costs, changesaitket interest rates, changes in the yield
curve, balance sheet shrinkage or less than aat@ddalance sheet growth, lack of demand for ppaducts, illiquidity and changes in

financial markets, including the market for mortgdzmacked securities and other debt obligationdjrdeg demand for real estate and real
estate valuations, increasing unemployment ledelgosit flows, pricing, underwriting and other farwf competition, adverse federal or state
legislative or regulatory developments, monetany fiscal policies of the U.S. Government, includpaicies of the U.S. Treasury and Federal
Reserve Board, adverse economic conditions thdtlcesult in increased delinquencies in our loartfptio or a decline in the value of our
investment securities and the collateral for oank the quality or composition of our loan or istveent portfolios, demand for financial
services and mulfiamily, commercial and residential real estate $o@nour market areas, the possible dilutive efééqiotential acquisitions

de novo branches, if any, changes in accountimgiplies, policies and guidelines, increased cdstsderal deposit insurance, and future
adverse developments concerning the Federal Horae Bank of Chicago. These risks and uncertairgiesyell as the Risk Factors set fort|
Item 1A below, should be considered in evaluatmgvard-looking statements and undue reliance shootdbe placed on such statements. We
do not undertake any obligation to update any fodwaoking statement in the future, or to refleictemstances and events that occur after the
date on which the forward-looking statement wasenad

BankFinancial Corporation

BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corporati@adiquartered in Burr Ridge, lllinois (the “Companyfecame the owner of all of the
issued and outstanding capital stock of BankFire@nEiS.B. (the “Bank”) on June 23, 2005, when wesummated a plan of conversion and
reorganization that the Bank and its predecesddirtgpcompanies, BankFinancial MHC, Inc. (“BankHieéal MHC”) and BankFinancial
Corporation, a federal corporation, adopted on Au@5, 2004. BankFinancial Corporation, the Marglanrporation, was organized in 200
facilitate the mutual-to-stock conversion and todree the holding company for the Bank upon its detign.

As part of the mutual-to-stock conversion, BankRuial Corporation, the Maryland corporation, sofg466,250 shares of common stock in a
subscription offering for $10.00 per share. Theasa{e corporate existences of BankFinancial MHCBawkFinancial Corporation, the federal
corporation, ceased upon the completion of the aitttistock conversion. For a further discussiothefmutual-to-stock conversion, see our
Prospectus as filed on April 29, 2005 with the Siti@s and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) pursuarRate 424(b)(3) of the Rules and
Regulations of the Securities Act of 1933 (File Nuen333-119217).

BankFinancial Corporation, the Maryland corporatiditl not engage in any business prior to the cetiggl of the mutual-to-stock conversion
on June 23, 2005. Consequently, this Annual Repoform 10-K reflects the financial condition amkrating results of BankFinancial MHC
and BankFinancial Corporation, the federal corporatand their subsidiaries, including the Bankjlulune 23, 2005, and of BankFinancial
Corporation, the Maryland corporation, and its #dibsies, including the Bank, thereafter. The wot@smpany,” “we” and “our” thus are
intended to refer to BankFinancial MHC, BankFinah€&orporation, the federal corporation, and tkalvsidiaries with respect to matters and
time periods occurring on or before June 23, 2@08,to BankFinancial Corporation, the Maryland coation, and its subsidiaries, with
respect to matters and time periods occurring #ieye



We manage our operations as one unit, and thustiloerwe separate operating segments. Our chie&tipgrdecision-makers use consolidated
results to make operating and strategic decisions.

BankFinancial, F.S.B.

The Bank is a full-service, community-oriented s&a bank principally engaged in the business ofroerial, family and personal banking,
and offers our customers a broad range of loamgig@nd other financial products and servicesugh 18 full-service banking offices and
three Express Branch facilities located in CookPBge, Lake and Will Counties, lllinois, and throwglr Internet Branch,
www.bankfinancial.com

The Bank’s primary business is making loans aneatong deposits. The Bank also offers our custoraesariety of financial products and
services that are related or ancillary to loansa@embsits, including cash management, funds tres)dfél payment and other online banking
transactions, automated teller machines, safe ddposes, wealth management, and general insurageecy services.

The Bank’s primary lending area consists of thenties where our branch offices are located, andigioous counties in the State of lllinois.
We derive the most significant portion of our rewes from these geographic areas. Through our Wélel€ommercial Lending and National
Commercial Leasing Departments, we also engageulti-family lending activities in selected metrojtah areas outside our primary lending
area and in commercial leasing activities on sonatide basis. The Bank’s primary market for deoisittoncentrated around the areas where
our full-service banking offices and Express Brafattilities are located.

Lending Activities

Our loan portfolio consists primarily of investmetd business loans (multi-family, nonresidentall estate, commercial, construction and
land loans, and commercial leases), which repre&&a®so of our loan portfolio. At December 31, 20$929.2 million, or 26.7%, of our total
loan portfolio consisted of multi-family mortgageahs; $316.6 million, or 25.6%, of our total loartfolio consisted of nonresidential real
estate loans; $88.1 million, or 7.1%, of our tdt@n portfolio consisted of commercial loans; $B7@illion, or 14.3%, of our total loan
portfolio consisted of commercial leases; and $32ilbon, or 2.6%, of our total loan portfolio casted of construction and land loans. $289.6
million, or 23.4%, of our total loan portfolio cdeted of one-to-four family residential mortgagars (of which $81.1 million, or 6.6%, were
loans to investors in non-owner-occupied singleifiaimomes), including home equity loans and linésredit and other second mortgage
loans.

Deposit Activities

Our deposit accounts consist principally of saviagsounts, NOW accounts, checking accounts, morakehaccounts, certificates of depc
and IRAs and other qualified plan accounts. We igi®ezommercial checking accounts and related ses\dach as cash management. We also
provide low-cost checking account services. We oslyur favorable locations, customer service, agtitipe pricing, our Internet Branch and
related deposit services such as cash managemattitetct and retain deposit accounts.

At December 31, 2009, our deposits totaled $1.288rh Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.12%dyi and noninterest-bearing demand
deposits totaled $108.3 million, which included3illion in internal checking accounts such askbeeshier checks and money orders.
Savings, money market and NOW account depositietb&/21.5 million, and certificates of deposittet! $403.6 million, of which $327.6
million had maturities of one year or less.



Related Products and Services

The Banks Wealth Management Group provides investmentnéizd planning and other wealth management sent@esir customers throu
arrangements with a third-party broker-dealer. Baak’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Financial Assuras&vices, Inc. (“Financial
Assurance”)sells life insurance, fixed annuities, property aadualty insurance and other insurance producg@gency basis. On March
2008, Financial Assurance completed the sale oitlésinsurance agency business to a newly forrtted-party title insurance agency. The
sale of the title insurance agency business doeaffext the Bank’s other insurance businessesinQuhe year ended December 31, 2009,
Financial Assurance Services reported net incon$#.84,000, and had five full-time employees. ThalBsother wholly-owned subsidiary,
BF Asset Recovery Corporation, is in the busindé$sfiling title to and selling certain Bank-ownediltirfamily and commercial real estate,
and reported a loss of $551,000 for the year emsmber 31, 2009.

Website and Stockholder Information
The website for the Company and the Bank is wwwkfinancial.com. Information on this website does not constituae pf this Form 10-K.

The Company makes available, free of charge, itsF®-K, its quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, itsreat reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to such reports filed or furnished @nsto Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), as soon as reasonably practicaftér such forms are filed with or furnished to 8ieC. Copies of these documents are
available to stockholders at BankFinancial's web, skww.bankfinancial.comunder Stockholder Information and at the SEC’b wite,

WWW.S€eC.goV.

Competition

We face significant competition in both originatilogins and attracting deposits. The Chicago melitaparea and some other areas in which
we operate have a high concentration of finanaistitutions, many of which are significantly largestitutions that have greater financial
resources than we have, and many of which areaupetitors to varying degrees. Our competitionldans and leases comes principally from
commercial banks, savings banks, mortgage bankingpanies, credit unions, leasing companies, insgranmpanies, real estate conduits and
other companies that provide financial servicelsusinesses and individuals. Our most direct cortipetior deposits has historically come

from commercial banks, savings banks and creddansiWe face additional competition for depositsrfronline financial institutions and non-
depository competitors such as the mutual fundstrgiusecurities and brokerage firms and insuraooepanies.

We seek to meet this competition by emphasizinggelized service and efficient decisimaking tailored to individual needs. In additiorg
reward longstanding relationships with preferred rates ansh$eson deposit products based on existing and petispdending business. We
not rely on any individual, group or entity for atarial portion of our loans or our deposits.

Employees

At December 31, 2009, we had 358 full-time empleyaed 27 part-time employees. The employees anepmsented by a collective
bargaining unit and we consider our working relasioip with our employees to be good.

Supervision and Regulation
General

As a federally chartered savings bank, the Bam&gsilated and supervised primarily by the Officd bfift Supervision (“OTS”). The Bank is
also subject to regulation by the Federal Deposititance Corporation (“FDIC”) in more limited cirostances because the Baneposits ar
insured by the FDIC. This regulatory and superyistructure establishes a comprehensive framewlaktivities in which a financial
institution may engage, and is intended primaulythe protection of the FDIC’s deposit insuranoeds, depositors and the banking system.
Under this system of federal regulation, finanaiatitutions are periodically examined to ensu they satisfy applicable standards with
respect to their capital adequacy, assets, manageeanings, liquidity and sensitivity to marketdrest rates. After completing an
examination, the OTS critiques the financial ingtin’s operations in a report of examination assligns its rating (known as an institution’s
CAMELS rating). Under federal law, an institutioraynnot disclose its CAMELS rating to the public.
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The Bank is a member of, and owns stock in, theeF@ddHome Loan Bank of Chicago (“FHLBC"), whichdee of the 12 regional banks in the
Federal Home Loan Bank System. The Bank also islaégf to a lesser extent by the Board of Goverabtse Federal Reserve System with
regard to reserves it must maintain against depasil other matters. The OTS examines the Banki@pdires reports for the consideration of
its Board of Directors on any identified operatatgficiencies. The Bank’s relationship with its dejpars and borrowers also is regulated to a
great extent by both federal and state laws, ealhedd matters concerning the ownership of depastounts, the form and content of the
Bank’s loan documents and compliance with conswuandrbanking laws.

There can be no assurance that laws, rules antatiegs will not change in the future, which coatdke compliance more difficult or
expensive or otherwise adversely affect our businf@sancial condition, results of operations agrects. Any change in these laws or
regulations, or in regulatory policy, whether bg #DIC, the OTS, the Board of Governors of the Fadeeserve System or Congress, could
have a material adverse impact on the CompanyBainé& and their respective operations.

Proposed Regulatory Changes

In response to the recent financial crisis, the. 3é&hate and House of Representatives and the fse8Branch of the U.S. government are
considering numerous proposals relating to longrtexgulatory reform of the U.S. banking system famancial markets. Among other things,
legislation has been introduced that would implehsareeping changes to the current bank regulatangtsire described in this section,
including the elimination of the OTS and the coidation of its supervisory and regulatory authoritio one or more new or different
regulatory agencies. Some of these proposals wouyddse stricter capital and prudential standaresonting, disclosure, operational and
compliance requirements on financial institutioscordingly, it is possible that there will be sificant changes to the manner and method in
which the Company and the Bank will be regulatethnfuture.

Federal Banking Regulation

Business ActivitiesAs a federal savings bank, the Bank derives itditenpand investment powers from the Home OwnersirLAct, as
amended, and the regulations of the OTS. Undeetla@ss and regulations, the Bank may invest in gagé loans secured by residential and
nonresidential real estate, commercial businescansumer loans, certain types of securities andiceother loans and assets. Specifically,
the Bank may originate, invest in, sell, or purehaslimited loans on the security of residential estate, while loans on nonresidential real
property generally may not exceed, in the aggred@@% of the Bank’s total capital. In additionggeed and unsecured commercial loans and
certain types of commercial personal property leasay not exceed 20% of the Bank’s assets; howawawunts in excess of 10% of assets
may only be used for small business loans. FurtherBank may generally invest up to 35% of itetss consumer loans, corporate debt
securities and commercial paper on a combined basisup to the greater of its capital or 5% of#sets in unsecured construction loans. The
Bank may invest up to 10% of its assets in tangdeliesonal property, for rental or sale. Certairsésaon tangible personal property are not
aggregated with commercial or consumer loans feptirposes of determining compliance with the Btidins set forth for those investment
categories. The Bank also may establish subsiditneg may engage in activities not otherwise pssibie for the Bank directly, including real
estate investment and insurance agency activRiesolation of the lending and investment limitatomay be subject to the same enforcement
mechanisms of the primary federal regulator asrotimations of a law or regulation.

Capital RequirementsThe regulations of the OTS require savings bankadet three minimum capital standards: a rati@ogible capital to
adjusted total assets of 1.5%, a ratio of Tierdt€} capital to adjusted total assets of 4.0% (8Parfstitutions receiving the highest rating on
the CAMELS rating system), and a ratio of totalitago total risk-adjusted assets of 8.0%. Thengbcorrective action standards discussed
below, in effect, establish a minimum 2% tangitdgital standard.

The risk-based capital standard for savings bagdigires the maintenance of Tier 1, or core capitad, total capital (which is defined as core
capital and supplementary capital) to risk-weighdssets of at least 4% and 8%, respectively. lergehing the amount of risk-weighted
assets, all assets, including certain off-balahegisassets, are multiplied by a risk-weight faofdd% to 100%, assigned by the OTS capital
regulation based on the risks inherent in the tyfpesset. Core capital is defined as common stddkhsgl equity (including retained earnings),
certain noncumulative perpetual preferred stockrafated surplus and minority interests in equagaunts of consolidated subsidiaries, less
intangibles other than certain mortgage servicights and credit card relationships. The componehssipplementary capital currently inclu
cumulative perpetual preferred stock, long-ternfgred stock, mandatory convertible securitiespsdimated debt and intermediate-term
preferred stock, allowance for loan and lease bageto a maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted asaatbup to 45% of net unrealized gains on
available-forsale equity securities with readily determinabie fizgarket values. Overall, the amount of supplermsntapital included as part
total capital cannot exceed 100% of core capital.



At December 31, 2009, the Bank’s capital exceedeapalicable requirements.

Loans-to-One-Borrower A federal savings bank generally may not make a tweextend credit to a single or related groupafowers in
excess of 15% of unimpaired capital and surplusadditional amount may be loaned, equal to 10%nahpaired capital and surplus, if the
loan is secured by readily marketable collateralictv generally does not include real estate. ABedember 31, 2009, the Bank was in
compliance with the loans-to-one-borrower limitago

Qualified Thrift Lender TestAs a federal savings bank, the Bank is subjectdoaified thrift lender, or “QTL,” test. Under tH@TL test, the
Bank must maintain at least 65% of its “portfolgsats” in “qualified thrift investments” in at léasne months of the most recent 12-month
period. “Portfolio assets” generally means totaleas of a savings institution, less the sum ofifipediquid assets up to 20% of total assets,
goodwill and other intangible assets, and the vafygroperty used in the conduct of the savingkisapusiness.

“Quialified thrift investments” include various typef loans made for residential and housing purdagestments related to those purposes,
including certain mortgage-backed and related $&esirand loans for personal, family, household e@rtain other purposes up to a limit of
20% of portfolio assets. “Qualified thrift investnts” also include 100% of an institutian¢redit card loans, education loans and smalhless
loans. The Bank also may satisfy the QTL test bglifping as a “domestic building and loan assooiatias defined in the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986. At December 31, 2009, the Bank maiathapproximately 78.17% of its portfolio assetsjualified thrift investments, and as
that date, satisfied the QTL test. A savings bduak fails the QTL test must either convert to akbelmarter or operate under specified
restrictions, including limits on growth, branchjmgew investment, FHLBC advances and dividends.

Capital Distributions.The regulations of the OTS govern capital distiiimg by a federal savings bank, which include cigldends, stock
repurchases and other transactions charged tagtitition’s capital account. A savings bank milstdn application for approval of a capital
distribution if:

» the total capital distributions for the applicabldendar year exceed the sum of the savings’'s net income for that year to d:
plus the savings ba’s retained net income for the preceding two ye

» the savings bank would not be at least adequasgdifatized following the distributior
» the distribution would violate any applicable stafuregulation, agreement or C-imposed condition; ¢
» the savings bank is not eligible for expeditedtiresnt of its filings.

Even if an application is not otherwise requirecerg savings bank that is a subsidiary of a holdiogipany must still file a notice with the
OTS at least 30 days before the board of directectares a dividend or approves a capital distiobutAt December 31, 2009, the Bank would
be required to file an application for approvabatapital distribution from BankFinancial, FSB.
The OTS may disapprove a notice or application if:

» the savings bank would be undercapitalized follgatime distribution

» the proposed capital distribution raises safetysmdahdness concerns;
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» the capital distribution would violate a prohibiticontained in any statute, regulation or agreen
Liquidity. A federal savings bank is required to maintainféicdant amount of liquid assets to ensure its safd sound operation.

Community Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Lawall savings banks have a responsibility under tioen@unity Reinvestment Act
(“CRA") and related regulations of the OTS to helpet the credit needs of their communities, ineclgdow and moderate income
neighborhoods. In connection with its examinatiba éederal savings bank, the OTS is required tduate and rate the savings bank’s record
of compliance with the CRA. In addition, the Eq@aiedit Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act Ipitdit lenders from discriminating in
their lending practices on the basis of charadtesispecified in those statutes. A savings bafdilare to comply with the provisions of the
CRA could, at a minimum, result in regulatory rigions on its activities. The failure to complytivthe Equal Credit Opportunity Act and the
Fair Housing Act could result in enforcement acsitny the OTS, as well as other federal regulatggnaies and the Department of Justice.
OTS has rated the Bank’s CRA performance as “Oudistg,” the highest possible rating, in all CRA f@emance Evaluations the OTS has
completed on the Bank since 1999.

Privacy StandardsFinancial institutions are subject to regulatiompliementing the privacy protection provisions af tBramm-Leach-Bliley
Act. These regulations require the Bank to discltsprivacy policy, including identifying with whm it shares “nonpublic personal
information” to customers at the time of establighihe customer relationship and annually theredfteaddition, the Bank is required to
provide its customers with the ability to “opt-owtf or consent to having the Bank share their nbtippersonal information with unaffiliated
third parties before it can disclose such informmatisubject to certain exceptions. The implememtatf these regulations did not have a
material adverse effect on the Bank. The Gramm-hdzldey Act also allows each state to enact leggish that is more protective of
consumers’ personal information.

The OTS and other federal banking agencies havetadiguidelines establishing standards for safefjugucustomer information to impleme
certain provisions of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Achelguidelines describe the agencies’ expectatimnthé creation, implementation and
maintenance of an information security program,clvhivould include administrative, technical and pbgissafeguards appropriate to the size
and complexity of a financial institution and theture and scope of its activities. The standardfost in the guidelines are intended to ensure
the security and confidentiality of customer recoathd information, to protect against any anti@dahreats or hazards to the security or
integrity of such records, and to protect agaimstuthorized access to or use of such records er gtformation that could result in substantial
harm or inconvenience to any customer. The Bankrhpeemented these guidelines, and such implemientags not had a material adverse
effect on our operations.

Transactions with Related Partie# federal savings bank’s authority to engage ingesctions with its “affiliates” is limited by OTS
regulations and by Sections 23A and 23B of the FddReserve Act and its implementing RegulationTWve term “affiliates” for these
purposes generally means any company that comraésunder common control with an insured depogitostitution, although subsidiaries of
federal savings banks are generally not considaifdihtes for the purposes of Sections 23A and 28Be Federal Reserve Act. The Comp
is an affiliate of the Bank. In general, transagsiovith affiliates must be on terms that are asfable to the savings bank as comparable
transactions with non-affiliates. In addition, @énttypes of these transactions are restricted taggregate percentage of the savings bank’s
capital. Collateral in specified amounts must ugyuag provided by affiliates in order to receivams from the savings bank. OTS regulations
also prohibit a savings bank from lending to anyjtoffiliates that are engaged in activities s not permissible for bank holding
companies, and from purchasing the securities piéfiliate, other than a subsidiary.

The Bank’s authority to extend credit to its diagst executive officers and 10% stockholders, dsageto entities controlled by such persons,
is currently governed by the requirements of Sesti®2(g) and 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act aagliRtion O of the Federal Reserve
Board. Among other things, these provisions reqgihiat extensions of credit to insiders be madesams that are substantially the same as, anc
follow credit underwriting procedures that are lesis stringent than, those prevailing for comparafansactions with unaffiliated persons and
that do not involve more than the normal risk gfagment or present other unfavorable featurespabhdxceed certain limitations on the
amount of credit extended to such persons, indallgwand in the aggregate, which limits are bageg@art, on the amount of the Baslcapital

In addition, extensions of credit in excess ofaiartimits must be approved by the Bank’s Boardwéctors.
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Enforcement.The OTS has primary enforcement responsibility dederal savings institutions, and has the authéoibring enforcement
action against the Bank and all “institution-a#tied parties,” including stockholders, attorneygraisers and accountants who knowingly or
recklessly participate in wrongful action likely have an adverse effect on an insured instituonmal enforcement action may range from
the issuance of a capital directive or cease anidtderder to removal of officers and/or directofshe institution, receivership, conservators
or the termination of deposit insurance. Civil miamg penalties cover a wide range of violations actibns, and range up to $25,000 per day,
unless a finding of reckless disregard is madwtiith case penalties may be as high as $1 millerday. The FDIC also has the authority to
recommend to the Director of the OTS that enforagraetion be taken with respect to a particulairggvinstitution. If action is not taken by
the Director, the FDIC has authority to take actimder specified circumstances.

Standards for Safety and Soundne:Federal law requires each federal banking agenpyescribe certain standards for all insured deposi
institutions. These standards relate to, among dliegs, internal controls, information systems andit systems, loan documentation, credit
underwriting, interest rate risk exposure, assetvgji, compensation and other operational and maizgéandards as the agency deems
appropriate. The federal banking agencies adoptietlagency Guidelines Prescribing Standards feet@aihd Soundness to implement the
safety and soundness standards required undeaféawr The guidelines set forth the safety anchsloess standards that the federal banking
agencies use to identify and address problemsated depository institutions before capital becoimgaired. The guidelines address internal
controls and information systems, internal auditess, credit underwriting, loan documentatioreri@st rate risk exposure, asset growth,
compensation, fees and benefits. If the appropféateral banking agency determines that an ingtiitfils to meet any standard prescribed by
the guidelines, the agency may require the ingituio submit to the agency an acceptable plachéese compliance with the standard.

Prompt Corrective Action Regulatior. Under the prompt corrective action regulations,®&7S is required and authorized to take supervisory
actions against undercapitalized savings bankstH®purpose, a savings bank is placed in oneefdllowing five categories based on the
savings bank’s capital:

» well-capitalized (at least 5% leverage capital, 6%%igsk-based capital and 10% total 1-based capital’

» adequately capitalized (at least 4% leverage daghactier 1 risl-based capital and 8% total r-based capital

» undercapitalized (less than 3% leverage capitaltidfd rist-based capital or 8% total r-based capital’

» significantly undercapitalized (less than 3% legeraapital, 3% tier 1 ri-based capital or 6% total r-based capital); an

» critically undercapitalized (less than 2% tangitéital).
Generally, the banking regulator is required tocapipa receiver or conservator for a savings baak is “critically undercapitalized.” The
regulation also provides that a capital restoragilam must be filed with the OTS within 45 daydlué date a bank receives notice that it is
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitaliZedr “critically undercapitalized.” In addition, meerous mandatory supervisory actions
become immediately applicable to the savings bigtk,iding, but not limited to, restrictions on grihwinvestment activities, capital

distributions and affiliate transactions. The OT&ymalso take any one of a number of discretionapgsvisory actions against undercapitali
savings banks, including the issuance of a cagitattive and the replacement of senior executffieess and directors.

At December 31, 2009, the Bank met the criterigbieing considered “well-capitalized.”
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Insurance of Deposit Accountidn October 2008, FDIC deposit insurance coveragein@reased to a maximum of $250,000 per deposiior.
January 1, 2014, the maximum insurance amountetilirn to $100,000 per depositor for all depositants except certain retirement
accounts, which will remain at $250,000 per deposih addition, under the FDIC'’s Transaction AcebGuarantee Program, most of our non-
interest-bearing transaction accounts are guardmeggardless of amount until June 30, 2010.

Pursuant to the Federal Deposit Insurance RefortroA2005 (the “Reform Act”), the Federal Deposislirance Corporation is authorized to
set the reserve ratio for the Deposit Insurancedfumually at between 1.15% and 1.5% of estimatsaréd deposits. As of June 30, 2008, the
reserve ratio had decreased to 1.01% as a resdindf failures. As part of a plan to restore thseree ratio to 1.15%, the FDIC imposed a
special assessment equal to five basis pointssetatess Tier 1 capital as of June 30, 2009, wiihpayable on September 30, 2009. In
addition, the FDIC increased its quarterly assessmates and amended the method by which ratesatgelated. Beginning in the second
guarter of 2009, insured depository institutions assigned an initial base assessment rate rafigmgl2 to 45 basis points of deposits
depending on their risk category. The initial bassessment is then adjusted based upon the leuetetured debt, secured liabilities and
brokered deposits to establish a total base assessaie ranging from seven to 77.5 basis points.

On November 12, 2009, the FDIC approved a fina reluiring insured depository institutions to @gpn December 30, 2009, their
estimated quarterly risk-based assessments fdotinth quarter of 2009, and for all of 2010, 20&t¢d 2012. Estimated assessments for the
fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010 are lobgpon the assessment rate in effect on Septerfb@089, with three basis points added for
the 2011 and 2012 assessment rates. In additi#h, annual growth in the assessment base is asstregzhid assessments are to be applied
against the actual quarterly assessments untilustbd, and may not be applied to any special assedgs that may occur in the future. Any
unused prepayments will be returned to the ingitudn June 30, 2013. On December 30, 2009, th& Baiu the estimated assessment fee
the fourth quarter of 2009 and prepaid $6.8 miliioestimated assessment fees through 2012. Betizipeepaid assessments represent the
prepayment of future expense, they do not affecBthnk’s capital (the prepaid asset will have le-wigighting of 0%) or tax obligations.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Ripl@h a finding that an institution has engagedrisafe or unsound practices, is in an
unsafe or unsound condition to continue operatiwrsas violated any applicable law, regulationeyarder or condition imposed by the FDIC.
We do not currently know of any practice, condit@rviolation that might lead to termination of aleposit insurance.

In addition to the FDIC assessments, the FinanCimigporation (“FICO”) is authorized to impose andlect, with the approval of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation, assessments fazipatéd payments, issuance costs and custodiabfebends issued by the FICO in the
1980s to recapitalize the former Federal Savingslayan Insurance Corporation. The bonds issuethé&ytCO are due to mature in 2017
through 2019. For the quarter ended December 319,28e annualized FICO assessment was equal@dasis points for each $100 in
domestic deposits maintained at an institution.



Temporary Liquidity Guarantee ProgranOn October 14, 2008, the FDIC announced the Tempaiguidity Guarantee Program. This
program has two components — The Debt Guarantegrd®moand the Transaction Account Guarantee ProgramDebt Guarantee Program
guarantees newly issued senior unsecured debparttigipating organization, up to certain limitéadgdished for each institution, issued betw
October 14, 2008 and June 30, 2009. The FDIC \aii the unpaid principal and interest on an FDICrgnteed debt instrument upon the
uncured failure of the participating entity to makémely payment of principal or interest in aadamce with the terms of the instrument. The
guarantee will remain in effect until June 30, 202return for the FDIG guarantee, participating institutions will pag fiDIC a fee based
the amount and maturity of the debt. The Bank &eddompany did not participate in the Debt GuaeRegram.

The Transaction Account Guarantee Program provigefederal deposit insurance coverage for noesiest bearing transaction deposit
accounts, regardless of dollar amount, until JUne2B810. The Bank participates in the Transactionokint Guarantee Program. Beginning
January 1, 2010, quarterly fees for this prograenbased on an institutiantisk category rating assigned with respect tolegg-ederal Depos
Insurance Corporation assessments. Institutiof§sk Category | (generally well-capitalized institins with composite CAMELS 1 or 2
ratings) will pay an annualized assessment ratédfasis points. Institutions in Risk Categorygigerally adequately capitalized institutions
with composite CAMELS 3 or better) will pay an aalined assessment rate of 20 basis points. Inistigiin Risk Category Ill or IV (genera
under capitalized or composite CAMELS 4 or 5) wily an annualized assessment rate of 25 basispoint

U.S. Treasury’s Troubled Asset Relief Program CapiPurchase ProgramThe Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 200BESA”)
provides the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury witrallrauthority to implement certain actions to hretore stability and liquidity to U.S.
markets. One of the provisions resulting from #gidlation is the Troubled Asset Relief Programi@&purchase Program (“TARP”), which
provides direct equity investment in perpetual @nefd stock by the U.S. Treasury Department inifiealfinancial institutions. The TARP
program was voluntary, was subject to regulatoprayal, and required participating institutionsctimply with a number of restrictions and
provisions, including limits on executive compei@at stock redemptions and declaration of dividefidee Company did not participate in
TARP.

Prohibitions Against Tying Arrangement. Federal savings banks are prohibited, subjectrtesexceptions, from extending credit to or
offering any other service, or fixing or varyingethonsideration for such extension of credit oviser on the condition that the customer ob
some additional service from the institution oraf§liates or not obtain services of a competiabthe institution.

Federal Home Loan Bank Systerithe Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Esyskem, which consists of 12 regional Federal H
Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank System gesva central credit facility primarily for membestitutions. As a member of the
FHLBC, the Bank is required to acquire and holdsbaf capital stock in the FHLBC in an amounteaist equal to 1% of the aggregate
principal amount of its unpaid residential mortgémpns and similar obligations at the beginningach year, or 1/20 of its borrowings from
the FHLBC, whichever is greater. As of DecemberZI09 the Bank was in compliance with this requiam

Federal Reserve System

Federal Reserve Board regulations require saviagksto maintain noninterest-earning reserves agtieir transaction accounts, such as
negotiable order of withdrawal and regular checkingounts. At December 31, 2009 the Bank was inptiance with these reserve
requirements. The balances maintained to meeeeve requirements imposed by the Federal ReBexae may be used to satisfy liquidity
requirements imposed by the OTS.

The USA PATRIOT Act and the Bank Secrecy Act

The USA PATRIOT Act and the Bank Secrecy Act regdinancial institutions to develop programs toegéfind report money-laundering and
terrorist activities, as well as suspicious adigt The USA PATRIOT Act also gives the federal gownent powers to address terrorist threats
through enhanced domestic security measures, eggdanaveillance powers, increased information sigaeind broadened anti-money
laundering requirements. The federal banking agsnatie required to take into consideration theceffeness of controls designed to combat
moneyfaundering activities in determining whether to mgye a merger or other acquisition application aiember institution. Accordingly,

we engage in a merger or other acquisition, outromndesigned to combat money laundering woulddresidered as part of the application
process. In addition, non-compliance with theseslawd regulations could result in fines, penahied other enforcement measures. We have
developed policies and continue to augment proesdaind systems designed to comply with these ladsegulations.

10



Holding Company Regulation

The Company is a unitary savings and loan holdorgmany, subject to regulation and supervision ley@i'S. The OTS has enforcement
authority over the Company and its non-savingstutgin subsidiaries. Among other things, this auity permits the OTS to restrict or
prohibit activities that are determined to be & testhe Bank.

The Company’s activities are limited to the actéstpermissible for financial holding companiedarmultiple savings and loan holding
companies. A financial holding company may engagactivities that are financial in nature, incluglimnderwriting equity securities and
insurance, incidental to financial activities ongadementary to a financial activity. A multiple $ags and loan holding company is generally
limited to activities permissible for bank holdingmpanies under Section 4(c) (8) of the Bank HglJddmmpany Act, subject to the prior
approval of the OTS, and certain additional adgsgitauthorized by OTS regulations.

Federal law prohibits a savings and loan holdinggany, directly or indirectly, or through one ormasubsidiaries, from acquiring control of
another savings institution or holding company ¢eérwithout prior written approval of the OTSalso prohibits the acquisition or retention
of, with specified exceptions, more than 5% of¢leity securities of a company engaged in activitiat are not closely related to banking or
financial in nature or acquiring or retaining cahf an institution that is not federally insuréd.evaluating applications by holding compat
to acquire savings institutions, the OTS must arsihe financial and managerial resources anddyitospects of the savings institution
involved, the effect of the acquisition on the riskhe insurance fund, the convenience and nefetle @community and competitive factors.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 was enacted in respto public concerns regarding corporate accoiityan connection with certain
accounting scandals. The stated goals of the Sasb@rley Act are to increase corporate responsipih provide for enhanced penalties for
accounting and auditing improprieties at publichdied companies, and to protect investors by impgothe accuracy and reliability of
corporate disclosures pursuant to the securitigs.l@he Sarbanes-Oxley Act generally applies toe@thpanies that file or are required to file
periodic reports with the Securities and Exchangm@ission, under the Exchange Act.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act includes specific additiatistlosure requirements, requires the SecuritielsExchange Commission and national
securities exchanges to adopt extensive additaisalosure, corporate governance and other refated, and mandates further studies of
certain issues by the Securities and Exchange Cssioni. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act represents signifieateral involvement in matters
traditionally left to state regulatory systems,tsas the regulation of the accounting professiod,ta state corporate law, such as the
relationship between a board of directors and mamagt and between a board of directors and its Gtiees.

Federal Securities Laws

The Company’s common stock is registered with theusities and Exchange Commission under the Exeh&ieg The Company is subject to
the information, proxy solicitation, insider tradinestrictions and other requirements of the Exghafkct.

Taxation

Federal Taxation.The Company and the Bank are subject to federahiectaxation in the same general manner as othgoicdions, with
some exceptions discussed below. The followingudision of federal taxation is intended only to siarige material federal income tax
matters and is not a comprehensive descriptiohefax rules applicable to the Company and the Bank

11



Method of Accounting. For federal income tax purposes, the Company ctlyregports its income and expenses on the acone#hod of
accounting and uses a tax year ending Decembenr3ilirig its consolidated federal income tax retsirThe Small Business Protection Act of
1996 eliminated the use of the reserve method ajatting for bad debt reserves by savings institigtj effective for taxable years beginning
after 1995.

Bad Debt ReservePrior to the Small Business Protection Act of 198&, Bank was permitted to establish a reserveddrdebts for tax
purposes and to make annual additions to the res€hese additions could, within specified formliraits, be deducted in arriving at the
Bank’s taxable income. As a result of the Small Busifsgection Act of 1996, the Bank must use the i§ipezharge off method in computii
its bad debt deduction for tax purposes.

Taxable Distributions and Recapturérior to the Small Business Protection Act of 199 debt reserves created prior to 1988 were ctubje
to recapture into taxable income if the Bank fatiedneet certain thrift asset and definition testee Small Business Protection Act of 1996
eliminated these thrift-related recapture rulesweleer, under current law, pre-1988 reserves resatiject to tax recapture should the Bank
make certain distributions from its tax bad delserge or cease to maintain a financial institutibarter. At December 31, 2009 the Bank’s
total federal pre-1988 reserve was $14.9 milliomisTeserve reflects the cumulative effects of faebimx deductions by the Bank for which no
federal income tax provision has been made.

Alternative Minimum Tax.The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended sespan alternative minimum tax at a rate of 20% base of
regular taxable income plus certain tax prefergnedsrred to as “alternative minimum taxable ineohThe alternative minimum tax is
payable to the extent alternative minimum taxabt®ine is in excess of an exemption amount. Netatipgrlosses can, in general, offset no
more than 90% of alternative minimum taxable incamkess resulting from a loss carryback from 2008699 pursuant to the special
provisions of the Worker, Homeownership & Businassistance Act of 2009.

Net Loss CarryoversA financial institution may carry back net operatinsses to the preceding two taxable years (fipeo/ears for losses
incurred in 2008 or 2009 pursuant to the speciavigions of the Worker, Homeownership & Businessigiance Act of 2009) and forward to
the succeeding 20 taxable years. At December 319,208e Company had a federal net operating 10$6 & million which will expire in 2029.
At December 31, 2009, the Company had a statepaetiing loss for the State of lllinois of $32.0lmn which will expire in 2021. Based
upon projections of future taxable income, managgrbelieves that it is more likely than not that theferred tax assets will be fully realized
and thus a valuation allowance is not needed.

Corporate DividendsWe may exclude from our income 100% of dividena®ieed from the Bank as a member of the sameat#ii group of
corporations.

State and Local TaxationWe pay income tax to the State of Illinois. As ariand business corporation, we are required &diinual returns
and pay annual fees to the State of Maryland,lmgd fees are not material in amount. At Decembe?@®9, the Company had a state net
operating loss for the State of lllinois of $32.0lien which will expire in 2021. Beginning in 200¢he Company and its subsidiary are subject
to income taxes in the State of New Jersey.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The risks set forth below may adversely affectlmusiness, financial condition and operating restitaddition to the risks set forth below and
the other risks described in Item 1, Business, Rotv ooking Statements, and ltem 7, ManagemengsBision and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, there may laésadditional risks and uncertainties that arecnotently known to us or that we currently
deem to be immaterial that could materially andeasigly affect our business, financial conditioroperating results. As a result, past financial
performance may not be a reliable indicator of fetperformance, and historical trends should naidesl to anticipate results or trends in
future periods.
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Current Economic Conditions Present Higher Risks tdOur Loan Portfolio

At December 31, 2009 our loan portfolio include@$2 million in multi-family mortgage loans, or Z66 of total loans; $316.6 million in
nonresidential real estate loans, or 25.6% of fotats; $176.8 million in commercial leases, 0i3%4 of total loans; $88.1 million in
commercial loans, or 7.1% of total loans; and $8iillion in residential loans to income property@stors, or 6.6% of total loans; and $32.6
million in construction and land loans, or 2.6%athl loans. Current economic conditions, includingh unemployment rates, weakened
consumer and business spending and materiallynileglieal estate values, all present higher risksur loan portfolio. Our historical loan
underwriting standards presumed a reasonable @fremnomic and operating conditions for our boosvand their underlying business or
personal circumstances. The depth and speed dittime in economic activity exceeded, and will tiaure to exceed, the financial and
management capabilities of certain borrowers totriesir credit obligations. Furthermore, the deelin real estate values in all market
segments not only diminishes an important sourcemdyment but also diminishes the borrower’s engadnterest in investing additional
financial resources into their businesses or resiei® Though the risk of a sudden and catastr@gyant in financial markets appears to have
receded, weak economic growth in the U.S. andating partners will continue to depress the ojrggatsults of certain commercial lessees.
Finally, the foregoing factors and conditions amgdgnt loan portfolio management will combine tduee the overall level of acceptable cr
exposures available in the market, resulting indolean portfolio balances and reduced intereirimefrom the loan portfolio.

If Our Allowance for Loan Losses is Not Sufficiento Cover Actual Loan Losses, Our Earnings Could Deease

In the event that our loan customers do not repay toans according to the terms of the loans,thactollateral securing the repayment of
these loans is insufficient to cover any remairoan balance, we could experience significant loases or increase our provision for loan
losses or both, which could have a material adveffeet on our operating results. We make vari@ssimptions and judgments about the
collectability of our loan portfolio, including thereditworthiness of our borrowers and the valuthefreal estate and other assets, if any,
serving as collateral for the repayment of our fakt December 31, 2009, our allowance for loasdssvas $18.6 million, representing 1.51%
of total loans and 37.6% of nonperforming loansfabat date. In determining the amount of ourvallace for loan losses, we rely on our loan
quality reviews, our experience and our evaluatibaconomic conditions, among other factors. We aiske assumptions concerning our
legal positions and the priority of our interestxontested legal or bankruptcy proceedings, atichas, we may lack sufficient information to
establish specific reserves for loans involveduohsproceedings.

Our Concentration of Loans within Certain Segmentsf the Healthcare Industry Exposes Us to Increase@redit Risk

At December 31, 2009, we had $46.4 million of loemkealthcare providers, including loans to ngdiomes and hospice care companies anc
leases to hospitals for equipment. These loangsepted 3.8% of our total loan portfolio as of tatie. Of these loans, $6.5 million, or 13.9%,
were collateralized by real estate. The remaindasisted of working capital lines of credit secubgdgovernment accounts receivable, of
which we are a joint payee, or by leased equipniarans to healthcare providers have unique creskisr A healthcare provider’s income
stream is subject to many factors beyond the cbotrihe healthcare provider, including the riskttthe provider will not be reimbursed for all
services provided. The State of lllinois has exg@ered budget shortfalls in recent years, causitaysén state reimbursement for healthcare
costs. Government reimbursement rates are alsedubjchange, including retroactive adjustments.@xample, a significant overpayment to
a healthcare provider can result in the provideingvsignificant governmental repayments to the fader state government. A healthcare
provider’s profitability also depends on its alyilib maintain certain levels of occupancy. Unexpdateclines in occupancy rates can restrict a
provider’s cash flow. Any of these factors can ifniae ability of our healthcare provider borrowéranmake loan repayments, which could
result in significant loss to us.
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We Hold Certain Intangible Assets that Could Be Clasified as Impaired in the Future. If These Asset&re Considered to Be Either
Partially or Fully Impaired in the Future, Our Earn ings and the Book Values of These Assets Would Dease

The Company tests its goodwill and core deposirigible assets for impairment on a periodic bddis.impairment testing incorporates the
current market price of the Company’s common shahesestimated net present value of the Compasgets and liabilities, and information
concerning the terminal valuation of similarly-sited insured depository institutions. In additisme, evaluate the presence or absence of
significant risk indicators related to the impaimhef goodwill and core deposit intangible ass@ist most recent impairment testing indicated
that the only significant risk factor was the ftwit the Company’s market capitalization was betsvibook value during 2009. We concluded
from our analysis that, at the time of the respecitinpairment testing, the market value of the Canyfs net assets was sufficient to support
the carrying value of its goodwill, and the failwe of its core deposit intangible exceeded thairying value. However, because the
Company’s market capitalization was below its tatgbook value at December 31, 2009, and the tggoliites of the common shares of
similarly-situated and other financial institutioti&t has declined due to, among other thingseatieconomic conditions, instability in global
financial systems and markets, and a decline irgereand acquisition activity due to asset valuatifficulties and the supply of assets and
liabilities that is expected to result from FDIQuidation activities, it is possible that futurepairment testing could result in a partial or full
impairment of the value of the Company’s goodwilicore deposit intangible assets, or both. If tbenBany determines that an impairment
exists at a given point in time, the Company’s g@ys and the book value of the related intangikkegs) will be reduced by the amount of the
impairment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the fssaf impairment testing on goodwill and core dgipmtangible assets will have little or no
impact on the Company’s tangible book value or l&tguy capital levels.

Changes in Market Interest Rates Could Adversely Atct Our Financial Condition and Results of Operatons

Our financial condition and results of operations significantly affected by changes in marketriest rates because our assets, primarily I
and our liabilities, primarily deposits, are momgta nature. Our results of operations depend tambiglly on our net interest income, which is
the difference between the interest income tha¢are on our interest-earning assets and the intexpense that we pay on our interesaring
liabilities. We are unable to predict changes inkeginterest rates that are affected by many fadteyond our control, including inflation,
recession, unemployment, money supply, domestidraachational events and changes in the UniteteStand other financial markets. Our
net interest income is affected not only by theelend direction of interest rates, but also byshape of the yield curve and relationships
between interest sensitive instruments and keyedriates, including credit risk spreads, and bpihee sheet growth, customer loan and de
preferences and the timing of changes in thesabias which themselves are impacted by changesikaninterest rates. As a result, changes
in market interest rates can significantly impaat oet interest income as well as the fair marledtiation of our assets and liabilities.

Since Our Business is Concentrated in the Chicago éfropolitan Area, Local Economic Conditions May Ad\ersely Affect Our Business

Although we make certain types of loans and letsbsrrowers located in other states, our lendimdj @eposit gathering activities are
concentrated primarily in the Chicago metropoliéaea. Our success depends on the general econonditions of this area and surrounding
areas. In addition, many of the loans in our loarifplio are secured by real estate located inChieago metropolitan area. Negative
conditions in the real estate markets where coihfer a mortgage loan is located could adveraéigct the borrowes ability to repay the loz
and the value of the collateral securing the |é%eal estate values are affected by various otlwtors including real estate supply and dem
changes in general or regional economic conditemmtsunemployment rates, interest rates, governinemés or policies and natural disasters.
Adverse changes in the regional and general ecormoniyg also reduce our growth rate, impair ourigbib collect loans and generally have a
negative effect on our financial condition and itssaf operations.

Difficult Economic Conditions Have Adversely Affeced the Banking Industry

The capital, credit and financial markets have egpeed significant volatility and disruption incent years. These conditions have had
significant adverse effects on our national anélleconomies, including declining real estate v@laewidespread tightening of the availability
of credit, illiquidity in certain securities marlsgincreasing loan delinquencies, mortgage foreicéss personal and business bankruptcies,
rising unemployment rates, declining consumer darfce and spending, significant write-downs of agaslelies by financial institutions and
government-sponsored entities, and a reductionasfufacturing and service business activity andiional trade. These conditions have
also adversely affected the stock market generatig,have contributed to significant declines mtitading prices of financial institution stoc
that have not fully recovered. We do not expecsehdifficult market conditions to improve over gteort term, and a continuation or worser

of these conditions could exacerbate their adveffeets. The adverse effects of these conditiomtddaclude increases in loan delinquencies
and charge-offs, increases to the portion of oan lloss reserve that we base on national and émcaiomic factors, increases to our specific
loan loss reserves due to the impact of these tiondion specific borrowers or the collateral fogit loans, declines in the value of our
investment securities, increases in our cost adi$uiue to continued aggressive deposit pricingbglland national competitors with liquidity
needs, increases in regulatory and compliance,cumts deposit attrition due to this aggressiveod#pricing and/or consumer concerns about
the safety of their deposits, and declines in tadihg price of our common stock.
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If Our Investment in the Federal Home Loan Bank ofChicago is Classified as Other-Than-Temporarily Imgired, Our Earnings Could
Decrease

We own FHLBC common stock to qualify for membersiniphe Federal Home Loan Bank System and to lgébédi to borrow funds under the
FHLBC's advance program. The aggregate cost oFbliBC common stock as of December 31, 2009 washtilion based on its par
value. There is no market for our FHLBC common kt@ue to our receipt of stock dividends and a otida of our outstanding FHLBC
advances, we owned shares of FHLBC common stobleegmber 31, 2009 with a par value that was $8liBomimore than we were required
to own to maintain our membership, in the Fede@hid Loan Bank System and to be eligible to obtdiraaces (“excess” or “voluntary”
capital stock).

On October 10, 2007, the FHLBC entered into a cosis& cease and desist order with the Federal Hg#shance Board, now known as the
Federal Housing Finance Agency (“the FHFA”). Unthes terms of the order, and subject to certain gti@es that are not applicable to the
FHLBC common stock that we own, capital stock repases and redemptions, including redemptions opnbership withdrawal or other
termination, are prohibited unless the FHLBC reesithe prior approval of the Director of the OffafeSupervision of the FHFA (the
“Director”). The order also provides that dividethelclarations are subject to the prior written apptof the Director and required the FHLBC
to submit a Capital Structure Plan to the FHFA. FTRLBC has not declared any dividends since therondhs issued and it has not received
formal approval of a Capital Structure Plan.

Published reports indicate that certain member bahithe Federal Home Loan Bank System could haatemally lower regulatory capital
levels due to asset quality issues. In an extrétat®n, it is possible that the capitalizationsoFederal Home Loan Bank, including the
FHLBC, could be substantially diminished or redutedero. Current accounting guidance for our FHL&@mon stock provides that, for
impairment testing purposes, the value of long-temwestments such as our FHLBC common stock isdbasghe “ultimate recoverability” of
the par value of the security without regard togerary declines in value. Consequently, if evertsuo that give rise to substantial doubt at
the ultimate recoverability of the par value of &i#LBC common stock, this investment could be dektoebe other-than-temporarily
impaired, and the impairment loss that we woulddupiired to record would cause our earnings toedeser by the after-tax amount of the
impairment loss.

Our Future Success is Dependent on Our Ability to @Gmpete Effectively in the Highly Competitive Bankirg Industry

We face substantial competition in all phases ofaperations from a variety of different competto®ur future growth and success will
depend on our ability to compete effectively irsthighly competitive environment. To date, we hgk@vn our business successfully by
focusing on our geographic markets and emphasthiedigh level of service and responsiveness debiyeour customers. We compete for
loans, deposits and other financial services witleocommercial banks, thrifts, credit unions, len@ige houses, mutual funds, insurance
companies, real estate conduits, and specialinetidie companies. Many of our competitors offer petg&land services that we do not offer,
and many have substantially greater resourcesearttinlg limits, name recognition and market presehatbenefit them in attracting business.
In addition, larger competitors may be able to@t@ans and deposits more aggressively than wardbsmaller newer competitors may als
more aggressive in pricing loans and depositsderoto increase their market share. Some of tlanfiial institutions and financial services
organizations with which we compete are not sulifetihe extensive regulations imposed on saving&dand their holding companies. As a
result, these nonbank competitors have certainrddgas over us in accessing funding and in progigtarious financial services.
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Our Business May Be Adversely Affected by the Higlgl Regulated Environment in Which We Operate

We are subject to extensive federal and statelégigis, regulation, examination and supervisionc&ely enacted, proposed and future
legislation and regulations could have an adveffseeteon our business and operations. Our sucagssmis on our continued ability to comply
with these laws and regulations. Some of thesdadgns may increase our costs. While we canndiptevhat effect any future changes in
these laws or regulations or their interpretatimosild have on us, these changes or interpretaticysadversely affect our future operations.

Trading Activity in the Company’s Common Stock Coul Result in Material Price Fluctuations

It is possible that trading activity in the Compangommon stock, including short-selling or sigoéfint sales by current stockholders, could
result in material price fluctuations of the priwer share of the Company’s common stock. In addisoch trading activity and the resultant
volatility could make it more difficult for the Camany to sell equity or equity-related securitieshie future at a time and price it deems
appropriate, or to use its stock as consideratiof acquisitionSee “Our Ability to Successfully Conduct AcquisiidVill Affect Our Ability
to Grow Our Franchise and Compete Effectively im ®larketplace”.

Our Return on Stockholders’ Equity Will Continue to Be Low Due to Our High Capital Level

Net income divided by average stockhol’ equity, known as return on equity, is a ratio tinany investors use to compare the performan

a financial institution to its peers. Our capi@hrains relatively high by industry standards peg@irmore optimal deployment of the additional
capital raised in our 2005 mutual-to-stock conwarslntil we can increase our net interest inconme reoninterest income, we expect our
return on equity to continue to be below the histdrindustry average, which may negatively affibet value of our shares of common stock.

The Bank’s Ability to Pay Dividends is Subject to Rgulatory Limitations Which, to the Extent the Company Requires Such Dividends
in the Future, May Affect the Company’s Ability to Pay Dividends

The Company is a separate legal entity from itsislidéries and does not have significant operatgdrits own. Dividends from the Bank
provide a significant source of cash for the Conypdine availability of dividends from the Bank imlted by various statutes and regulations.
Under the rules of the OTS, the Bank is not peaditb pay dividends on its capital stock to the @any, its sole stockholder, if the dividend
would reduce the Bank’s stockholder’s equity betbe amount of the liquidation account establisimedonnection with the mutual-to-stock
conversion. The Bank may pay dividends withoutapproval of the OTS only if the Bank meets its agglile regulatory capital requirements
before and after the payment of the dividends entbtal dividends do not exceed its net incomedie over the calendar year plus retained net
income over the preceding two years. As of Decer3lhgP009, the Bank had no net income availabpatoa dividend to the Company
without the prior approval of the OTS. It is podsjlepending upon the financial condition of thenB and other factors, that the OTS could
assert that the payment of dividends or other paysigy the Bank are an unsafe or unsound practicefase to issue any required prior
approvals. In the event the Bank is unable to paigehds to the Company, the Company may not be @bpay dividends on its common
stock. Consequently, the potential inability toeiee dividends from the Bank could adversely aftaetCompany’s financial condition, results
of operations and prospects.

We Continually Encounter Technological Change, anday Have Fewer Resources Than Many of Our Competits to Continue to
Invest in Technological Improvements

The financial services industry is undergoing rapithnological changes, with frequent introductiohaew technology-driven products and
services. The effective use of technology increas$igsency and enables financial institutions &gtbr serve customers and to reduce costs
future success will depend, in part, upon our gbib address the needs of our customers by usitgnblogy to provide products and services
that will satisfy customer demands for conveniemsewell as to create additional efficiencies in @perations. Many of our competitors have
substantially greater resources to invest in teldgical improvements. We may not be able to effextyi implement new technology-driven
products and services or be successful in markétiege products and services to our customers.
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Our Ability to Successfully Conduct Acquisitions Wil Affect Our Ability to Grow Our Franchise and Com pete Effectively in Our
Marketplace

We consider the possible acquisition of other batikits and other financial services companieprinate or FDIC-assisted transactions to
supplement internal growth. Our efforts to acquitteer financial institutions and financial servim@mpanies may not be successful. Other
potential acquirors exist for most acquisition ddates, creating competition that can affect theslpase price for which the institution can be
acquired. In many cases, our competitors havefgignily greater resources than we have, and gréatebility to structure the consideration
for the transaction. We may not participate in fjjpacquisition opportunities if we consider theoposed transaction unacceptable, including
the current or potential future terms, conditiond &mitations imposed by an FDIC-assisted trarisacWWe also may not be the successful
bidder in acquisition opportunities that we purdue to the willingness or ability of other potehtiaquirors to propose a higher purchase price
or more attractive terms and conditions than wendlfeng or able to propose. The results of a memeacquisition could change materially
based on future changes in applicable accountimgiptes and regulatory requirements related taiaed assets and liabilities. If we are
unable to or do not conduct acquisitions to suppleinmternal growth, our ability to deploy effealy the capital we raised in the offering,
expand our geographic presence and improve oultsexfloperations could be adversely affected.

The Risks Presented by the Acquisition of Other In#tutions Could Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results of Operation:

If we are successful in conducting acquisitionswilebe presented with many risks that could haveaterial adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations. An instituttbat we acquire may have unknown asset qualitiessr unknown or contingent liabilities
that we did not discover or fully recognize in thee diligence process, thereby resulting in ungrgtied losses, particularly in the case of
FDIC-assisted transactions due to the highly restrictive diligence available to potential bidders. @bquisition of other institutions typical
requires the integration of different corporatetunds, loan and deposit products, pricing strageglata processing systems and other
technologies, accounting, internal audit and fin@neporting systems, operational processes, ipsliprocedures and internal controls,
marketing programs and personnel of the acquirstitution in order to make the transaction econafhicadvantageous. The integration
process is complicated and time consuming, anddadivkert our attention from other business concamsbe disruptive to our customers and
the customers of the acquired institution. Ounifi@lto successfully integrate an acquired institutiould result in the loss of key customers
employees, and prevent us from achieving expegteergies and cost savings. Acquisitions also resyitofessional fees, purchase price
adjustments, the amortization of core deposit igitales and other expenses that could adverselgtadte earnings, and in goodwill that could
become impaired, requiring us to recognize furttearges. We may finance acquisitions with borrofuedls, thereby increasing our leverage
and reducing our liquidity, or with potentially dtlve issuances of equity securities.

FDIC Deposit Insurance Premiums Have Increased aniay Increase Further in the Future

The Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as amendediresgiine FDIC to maintain a reserve ratio betweds% and 1.50%. The FDIC’s board of
directors must establish a designated reservewditiin that range and sets assessment rates tothag¢e¢arget within a time-frame that the
board deems appropriate. If the reserve ratio Edlew 1.15%, the FDIC’s board is required to egthla restoration plan to bring the reserve
ratio back to 1.15% within five years. The FDICéserve ratio declined over the past several yasggsalcosts associated with bank failures
and FDIC-assisted transactions, and the reserieisagxpected to remain under duress due to fudank failures and FDIC-assisted
transactions. As part of a plan to restore thervesatio to 1.15%, the FDIC imposed a special sssent equal to five basis points of assets
less Tier 1 capital as of June 30, 2009, which pagble on September 30, 2009. In addition, theCHDtreased its quarterly assessment rates
and amended the method by which rates are caldul@ie November 12, 2009, the FDIC approved a finla requiring insured depository
institutions to prepay on December 30, 2009, tesiimated quarterly risk-based assessments fdotindh quarter of 2009, and for all of 2010,
2011, and 2012. Prepaid assessments are to becgpghinst the actual quarterly assessments whlsted, and may not be applied to any
special assessments that may occur in the futung ufiused prepayments will be returned to thetitstn on June 30, 2013. See “Supervision
and Regulation — Insurance of Deposit Accounts. Ti@cember 30, 2009, the Bank paid the estimatezbasgent fees for the fourth quarter of
2009 and prepaid $6.8 million in estimated assessfees through 2012. These increased assessnam@tdhad an adverse impact on our
results of operations in 2009 and will continud&ve an adverse impact in future years. If circamsgs require the FDIC to impose additional
special assessments or further increase its qlyaaEsessment rates, the adverse impact will beeelated.
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Various Factors May Make Takeover Attempts That YouWant to Succeed More Difficult to Achieve, Which May Affect the Value of
Shares of Our Common Stock

Provisions of our articles of incorporation andaws$, federal regulations, Maryland law and variother factors may make it more difficult
companies or persons to acquire control of the Gompvithout the consent of our board of directdi@u may want a takeover attempt to
succeed because, for example, a potential acqeondd offer a premium over the then prevailing eraf our shares of common stock. The
OTS regulations prohibit the direct or indirect aisition of more than 10% of any class of equitguséty of a converted savings institution
without the prior approval of the OTS. Provisiotior articles of incorporation and bylaws also magke it difficult to remove our current
board of directors or management if our board céalors opposes the removal. We have elected soltject to the Maryland Business
Combination Act, which places restrictions on mesgend other business combinations with large $ioiders. In addition, our articles of
incorporation provide that certain mergers and rogimailar transactions, as well as amendments tadicles of incorporation, must be
approved by stockholders owning at least two-thafdsur shares of common stock entitled to votéhenmatter unless first approved by at
least two-thirds of the number of our authorizescliors, assuming no vacancies. If approved bgaat ltwo-thirds of the number of our
authorized directors, assuming no vacancies, ttienaqust still be approved by a majority of ouasts entitled to vote on the matter. In
addition, a director can be removed from officet, dmly for cause, if such removal is approved lmgckholders owning at least twbirds of ou
shares of common stock entitled to vote on theandttowever, if at least two-thirds of the numbgowor authorized directors, assuming no
vacancies, approves the removal of a directorreh®val may be with or without cause, but must kélapproved by a majority of our voting
shares entitled to vote on the matter. Additiomaljsions include limitations on the voting riglisany beneficial owners of more than 10% of
our common stock. Our bylaws, which can only be rzshee by the board of directors, also contain piowisregarding the timing, content and
procedural requirements for stockholder proposadsreominations.

Non-Compliance with USA PATRIOT Act, Bank Secrecy At, Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, Truth-kLending Act or Other
Laws and Regulations Could Result in Fines or Sanicins, and Curtail Expansion Opportunities

Financial institutions are required under the USSsNTRIOT and Bank Secrecy Acts to develop programgravent financial institutions from
being used for money-laundering and terrorist &, Financial institutions are also obligatedil® suspicious activity reports with the U.S.
Treasury Department’s Office of Financial CrimegdEcement Network if such activities are deteciBukese rules also require financial
institutions to establish procedures for identifyand verifying the identity of customers seekin@pen new financial accounts. Failure or the
inability to comply with these regulations couldué in fines or penalties, curtailment of expansipportunities, intervention or sanctions by
regulators and costly litigation or expensive addil controls and systems. During the last fewgeseveral banking institutions have rece
large fines for non-compliance with these laws mglilations. In addition, the U.S. Government inggband will continue to expand laws and
regulations relating to residential and consumedileg activities that create significant new coraptie burdens and financial risks. We have
developed policies and continue to augment proesdaind systems designed to assist in complianbethgse laws and regulations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2009 the net book value of eape@rties was $29.5 million. The following is &t li§ our offices:

Burr Ridge (Executive Office)
15W060 North Frontage Road

Burr Ridge, IL 6052°

Calumet City
1901 Sibley Boulevard
Calumet City, IL 6040¢

Calumet Parl
1333 W. 127th Street
Calumet Park, IL 6082

Chicago - Hyde Park
1354 East 55th Street
Chicago, IL 6061!

Chicago- Hyde Park Eas
55th at Lake Park Avenue
Chicago, IL 6061!

Chicago Ridge
6415 W. 95th Street
Chicago Ridge, IL 6041

Chicago- Lincoln Park
2424 N. Clark Street
Chicago, IL 6061

Deerfield
630 N. Waukegan Road
Deerfield, IL 6001¢

Hazel Crest
3700 W. 183rd Street
Hazel Crest, IL 6042

Joliet
1401 N. Larkin
Joliet, IL 6043E

Lincolnshire
One Marriott Drive
Lincolnshire, IL 6006¢

Lincolnwood
3443 W. Touhy
Lincolnwood, IL 6071%

Naperville
1200 E. Ogden Avenue
Naperville, IL 6056:

North Libertyville
1409 W. Peterson Road
Libertyville, IL 60048

Northbrook
1368 N. Shermer Road
Northbrook, IL 6006

Olympia Fields
21110 S. Western Avenue
Olympia Fields, IL 6046:

Orland Park
48 Orland Square Drive
Orland Park, IL 6046

Schaumburg
1005 W. Wise Road
Schaumburg, IL 6019

South Libertyville
1123 S. Milwaukee Avenue
Libertyville, IL 60048

Except for our Chicago-Lincoln Park, Northbrookdattlyde Park East offices, which are leased, atiusfoffices are owned. In addition to the
above listed properties, we also operate threedsgpBranch facilities, a satellite national comratieasing office and two remote ATMs on
sites where we do not have a full service bankffigen

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject iowsategal actions arising in the normal coursbuginess. In the opinion of management,
based on currently available information, the negoh of these legal actions is not expected teeltematerial adverse effect on the Company’s
results of operations.
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ITEM 4. [ RESERVED
PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our shares of common stock are traded on the NaGtdrpal Select Market under the symbol “BFIN.” Téygproximate number of holders of
record of the Company’s common stock as of Decer@beP009 was 1,906. Certain shares of the Compamoyhmon stock are held in
“nominee” or “street” name, and accordingly, thentner of beneficial owners of such shares is notkmor included in the foregoing number.

The following table presents quarterly market infation provided by the Nasdaq Stock Market forGoepany’s common stock and cash
dividends paid for the periods ended December 329 z2nd 2008.

Cash
Dividends

2008 and 2009 Quarterly Periods High Low Close Paid
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $10.4C $9.07 $99C $ 0.07
Quarter ended September 30, 2! 11.04 8.7t 9.6( 0.07
Quarter ended June 30, 2C 11.1C 8.07 8.8¢ 0.07
Quarter ended March 31, 20 11.1C 7.1¢ 9.97 0.07
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $14.9¢ $9.07 $10.1¢ $ 0.07
Quarter ended September 30, 2! 15.9¢ 12.7C 14.6¢ 0.07
Quarter ended June 30, 2C 16.1¢ 13.0C 13.01 0.07
Quarter ended March 31, 20 16.44 13.6¢€ 15.91 0.07

The Company is subject to state law limitationgt@payment of dividends. Maryland law generalfyils dividends to an amount equal to the
excess of our capital surplus over payments thaidvoe owed upon dissolution to stockholders whrséerential rights upon dissolution are
superior to those receiving the dividend, and tamount that would not make us insolvent. Dividefids the Bank provide a significant
source of cash for the Company. The availabilitdiefdends from the Bank is limited by various atas and regulations. For a discussion of
the Bank’s ability to pay dividends, see Partdmtl, Business - “Supervision and Regulation—Fddeaaking Regulation—Capital
Distributions.”

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
The Company had no sales of unregistered stochkgitie quarter ended December 31, 2009.

Repurchases of Equity Securities

Our Board of Directors has authorized the repurettdisip to 5,047,423 shares of our common stockctimrdance with this authorization, we
had repurchased 3,882,723 shares of our commok asoaf December 31, 2009. There were no sharealeases conducted in the fourth
quarter of 2009. The current share repurchase agdtion will expire on May 17, 2010, unless extedd
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Stock Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotima shall not be deemed “soliciting material” av be “filed” with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatiomberporated by reference into any future filingden the Securities Act of 1933
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amendedpeto the extent that the Company specificattpiiporates it by reference into such
filing.

We completed our mutual-to-stock conversion on 812005, in connection with which the Companylsm aggregate of 24,466,250 shares
of common stock at a price of $10.00 per share.Gtmmpany’s common stock began trading on the NaStiack Market under the symbol
“BFIN" on June 24, 2005, and the per share clogirice of one share of the Company’s common stocthanhdate was $13.60. The following
graph represents $100 invested in our common stbttle $13.60 per share closing price on June@k.2The graph illustrates the compari

of the cumulative total returns for the common ktotthe Company, the Russell 2000 Index, the NAgDBank Index and the America’s
Community Bankers NASDAQ Index for the periods aated.

There can be no assurance that our stock perfoenaiticcontinue in the future with the same or danirend depicted in the graph below. We
will not make or endorse any predictions as torkistock performance.
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== America's Community Bankers NASDAG Index
6/24/200'  12/31/200! 12/31/200¢ 12/31/200° 12/31/200:  12/31/200!

BankFinancial Corporatio 100.0C 107.9¢ 132.3¢ 119.6* 78.5¢ 78.4%
Russell 2000 Inde 100.0( 107.4¢ 127.2¢ 125.2¢ 82.9¢ 105.4¢
NASDAQ Bank Index 100.0( 102.5¢ 113.8¢ 88.7¢ 67.5] 55.02
Americe’s Community Bankers NASDAQ Indt 100.0( 103.6¢ 114.9: 86.4: 69.51 54.6¢
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following information is derived from the agtitconsolidated financial statements of the Commangrior to June 24, 2005,
BankFinancial MHC, Inc. For additional informatiaeference is made to “Management’s Discussionfaralysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Firddi®tiatements of the Company and related notegdedl elsewhere in this Annual Report.

At December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Selected Financial Condition Data

Total asset $1,566,891  $1,554,70. $1,480,54. $1,613,29 $1,614,43
Loans, ne 1,218,46 1,267,96! 1,253,99° 1,330,09 1,231,89:
Loans hel-for-sale — 872 17z 29¢ 37t
Securities, at fair valu 102,12¢ 124,91¢ 77,04¢ 117,85 248,23t
Goodwill 22,56¢ 22,56¢ 22,56¢ 22,57¢ 10,86¢
Core deposit intangibl 4,29t 5,98¢ 7,76¢ 9,64¢ 8,24¢
Deposits 1,233,39! 1,069,85! 1,073,651 1,129,58! 1,067,87.
Borrowings 50,78¢ 200,35( 96,43 138,14¢ 191,38t
Equity 263,60 266,79 291,13’ 326,01! 328,77

Years Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Operating Data

Interest and dividend incon $ 7410¢ $ 7796( $ 9195 $ 94,08 $ 80,21
Interest expens 20,55] 25,661 38,30/ 37,48¢ 28,80:

Net interest incom 53,55: 52,29! 53,64¢ 56,59’ 51,41(
Provision (credit) for loan lossi 8,811 5,092 697 (136) 51¢

Net interest income after provision (credit) foatolosse: 44,74 47,20: 52,95: 56,73 50,89:
Noninterest incom 7,23¢ 10,41¢ 9,66t 10,55¢ 8,661
Noninterest expense ( 52,73 89,05¢ 52,49¢ 52,41¢ 44,20:
Income (loss) before income tax expe (752) (31,43) 10,11¢ 14,87 15,35
Income tax expense (benel (13 (12,04 2,96: 4,82¢ 4,27¢

Net income (loss $ (73¢) $ (19,389 $ 7,15t $ 10,04¢ $ 11,07
Basic earnings (loss) per common sk $ (0049 $ (09 ¢ 0.3t $ 04t % 0.2¢
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ 0.0 $ (0.9¢) $ 03 $ 04t % 0.2¢

(footnotes oriollowing page’
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Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data

Performance Ratios:
Return on assets (ratio of net income (loss) toamestotal
assets

Return on equity (ratio of net income (loss) torage equity’

Net interest rate spread (

Net interest margin (<

Efficiency ratio (4)

Noninterest expense to average total as

Average interest-earning assets to average intbesstng
liabilities

Dividends declared per she

Dividend payout ratic

Asset Quality Ratios:

Nonperforming assets to total ass
Nonperforming loans to total loa

Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming lo:
Allowance for loan losses to total loa

Net charg-offs to average loans outstand|

Capital Ratios:

Equity to total assets at end of per
Average equity to average ass
Tier 1 leverage ratio (Bank onl

Other Data:
Number of ful-service offices
Employees (fu-time equivalents

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2009

(0.05%

(0.2€)
3.3¢
3.6¢

86.7¢
3.3¢

123.4:
$ 0.2¢
N.M.

3.42%
4.01
37.6¢
1.51
0.3¢

16.82%
17.0Z
12.4¢

18
372

2008 2007
(1.39% 0.47%
(6.84) 2.3(

3.3t 2.9¢
3.8¢ 3.7¢
142.0: 82.9:
6.0¢ 3.42
127.8¢ 130.9¢
$ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢
N.M. 90.€%
0.9%% 0.87%
1.07 0.9¢
107.9: 91.6¢
1.1¢ 0.87
0.11 0.0z

17.1€6% 19.66%
19.3¢ 20.3-
12.0¢ 13.9¢

18 18
392 425

2006 2005
0.61% 0.7(%
3.0z 5.1¢
2.8¢ 3.04
3.6€ 3.44

78.0¢ 73.5¢
3.1¢ 2.7¢

132.6% 120.4¢

$ 0.1¢ $ —
44.2% —
0.57% 0.3¢%
0.6¢ 0.4¢

115.18 201.1¢
0.7¢ 0.9¢
0.07 0.0C

20.21% 20.3t%

20.2¢ 13.4¢

15.0¢ 13.82

18 16
43¢ 451

(1) Noninterest expense for the years ended Decemb@08® and 2008 includes $401,000, and $35.9 mijlliespectively, of impairmel

loss on securitiet

(2) The netinterest rate spread represents the differbetween the yield on average inte-earning assets and the cost of average in-

bearing liabilities for the periot

(3) The net interest margin represents net interestirecdivided by average total inter-earning assets for the peric
(4) The efficiency ratio represents noninterest expeligded by the sum of net interest income and miamest income
(5) Nonperforming assets include nonperforming loartsraal estate owne

N.M. Not Meaningful
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The discussion and analysis that follows focusetheractors affecting our consolidated financ@dition at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
and our consolidated results of operations fotthinee years ended December 31, 2009. The consalifiatincial statements and related notes
and the discussion of our critical accounting peappearing elsewhere in this Annual Report gshbalread in conjunction with this
discussion and analysis.

Overview

Loans.Net loans receivable decreased $49.5 million, 8¥63to $1.218 billion at December 31, 2009, fron2$8 billion at December 31,

2008. The decrease in net loans receivable wasaghnue to reductions in construction and larahle, non-residential real estate loans, and
one-to-four family residential mortgage loans. Gamgtion and land loans decreased by $18.1 millmm-residential real estate loans by $26.0
million and one-to-four family residential mortgalgans by $22.8 million. The reductions in thesenleategories were partially offset by
growth in multi-family real estate loans and comamrieases. Multi-family real estate loans incezhby $23.9 million and commercial leases
increased by $2.2 million due to increased origamet in these targeted loan categories. Commdoaak decreased by $4.6 million primarily
due to reduced loan demand, declines in healthoareexposures and diminished line of credit usagleusiness customers. Future loan
growth could be adversely affected by our unwilfirgs to compete for loans by relaxing our histbrcaerwriting standards.

Securities.Securities decreased $22.8 million, or 18.2%, 102%1 million at December 31, 2009, from $124.9 imillat December 31, 2008.
The primary reason for the decrease was $25.6omitif principal repayments, sales and maturitiesemurities.

Deposits Deposits increased $163.5 million, or 15.3%, t®33.billion at December 31, 2009, from $1.070 billat December 31, 2008. We
increased our core deposits (savings, money mar&atnterest-bearing demand and NOW accounts) B¢.81million and reduced our
balances of wholesale deposits by $20.0 millionrduthe year. Core deposits increased as a pegeenfdotal deposits, representing 67.3% of
total deposits at December 31, 2009, compared.@65f total deposits at December 31, 2008.

Borrowings.Borrowings decreased $149.6 million, or 74.7%,50.8 million at December 31, 2009, from $200.4 imillat December 31,
2008, due to our reduction of outstanding FHLBCeatbes.

Stockholder’ Equity. Total stockholders’ equity was $263.6 million atd@mber 31, 2009, compared to $266.8 million at Dewr 31, 2008.
The decrease in total stockholders’ equity was arilyidue to the combined impact of our repurchafs277,800 shares of our common stock
during 2009 for a total cost of $2.5 million, thecthration and payment of cash dividends total@ $nillion, and the $738,000 net loss that
we recorded for 2009. These items were partiallyetfby a $2.5 million increase in accumulated otoenprehensive income, and a $3.5
million increase in additional paid in capital réswg from the vesting of stock-based compensadiod Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(“ESOP”) shares earned. The unallocated sharesmifmon stock that our ESOP owns were reflectedgdba million reduction to
stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2009, comptred$16.1 million reduction to stockholders’ aguit December 31, 2008.

Net LossWe recorded a net loss of $738,000 for the yeaeémkcember 31, 2009, compared to a net loss ofi$iallion for 2008 and net
income of $7.2 million for 2007. The net loss ir020vas due in substantial part to our recordin&8 million provision for loan losses, a
$2.1 million increase in FDIC expense and $1.4iarilin combined pre-tax losses that we recordezbimection with the impairment and
subsequent sale of our Freddie Mac preferred stddiesimpact of these items was partially offsetidy1.3 million gain that we recognized on
the sale of our merchant processing operationf@®2The net loss in 2008 was due in substantialtpa $35.9 million pre-tax impairment
loss that we recorded on our Freddie Mac prefestecks after Freddie Mac was placed into consershijp. Our basic loss per common share
was $0.04 and $0.98 for the years ended Decemh@089 and 2008, respectively, compared to basiiregs per common share of $0.35 for
the year ended December 31, 2007.

Net Interest IncomeWe recorded net interest income of $53.6 milliontfee year ended December 31, 2009, compared t@ $aiftion for
2008 and $53.6 million for 2007. The increase ininerest income for 2009 reflected a $5.1 milldetrease in interest expense, which was
partially offset by a $3.9 million decrease in nef&t income. Our net interest rate spread imprdwyeohe basis point to 3.36% for the year
ended December 31, 2009, from 3.35% for the yede@®ecember 31, 2008.
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Provision for Loan LossesWe recorded a provision for loan losses of $8.8ionilfor the year ended December 31, 2009, compiar§d.1
million for 2008 and $697,000 for 2007. The 2008vision for loan losses reflects the combined i@ $2.4 million increase in the port
of the specific allowance for loan losses that Wiacate to impaired loans, a $1.5 million increaséhe unallocated portion of the allowance
loan losses, and $4.9 million in net charge offs.

Noninterest IncomeNoninterest income for the year ended Decembe2@19 was $7.2 million, compared to $10.4 million 2008 and $9.7
million for 2007. Our noninterest income for 200@luded a $988,000 loss on the sale of our Freddie preferred stocks and a $1.3 million
gain on the sale of our merchant processing oper®tiOur noninterest income for 2008 included 4 $dillion pre-tax gain on the sale of
shares of Visa, Inc. Class B common stock thategeived in connection with Visa, Inc.’s initial pigboffering, and a $1.2 million preax gair

on additional shares of Visa. Inc. Class B comntonksthat were allocated to us in the initial poldifering and are currently held in a
litigation escrow under Visa, Inc.’s retrospectresponsibility plan. The gain that we recordedtmnédscrowed shares of the Visa. Inc. Class B
common stock represents a reduction of our obbigatd indemnify Visa USA under Visa, Inc.’s retresfive responsibility plan.

Noninterest ExpenseNoninterest expense for the year ended Decemb&@0®B, was $52.7 million, compared to $89.1 milfon2008 and
$52.5 million for 2007. Noninterest expense frond2@hcluded a $35.9 million pre-tax impairment Itisat we recorded on our holdings of
Freddie Mac preferred stocks, compared to a $401p0€-tax impairment loss that we recorded on #messecurities in 2009. Our expense for
FDIC deposit insurance increased to $2.2 milliorirduthe year ended December 31, 2009, compariiga,000 for 2008 and $133,000 for
2007. The increase in our 2009 expense for FDI@siemsurance was due to the combined effect@ABDIC’s increase in its quarterly
assessment rate, the FDIC’s imposition of a spasis¢éssment against all insured depository institsitand the full utilization of the FDIC
assessment credits that we previously had avaitaliéset or reduce FDIC quarterly assessmentsiriterest expense for 2008 also includ
$2.0 million pre-tax loss on the early extinguisiminef borrowings that we recorded in connectiorhwfite prepayment of a $25 million

FHLBC term advance. Noninterest expense for 200Lided a $1.2 million pre-tax charge reflecting pineportionate share of the estimated
litigation obligations that was allocated to us enWisa Inc.’s retrospective responsibility plan.

Income TaxesWe recorded an income tax benefit of $13,000 feryar ended December 31, 2009, compared to amitax benefit of
$12.0 million for 2008 and income tax expense ab$8illion for 2007. For 2009, the difference betmehe GAAP basis (fair market value at
the date of grant) and the tax basis (fair markéier at the date of vesting) of equity based corsgton granted in prior years reduced our
income tax benefit. The income tax benefit for 20@& due in substantial part to the recording afrgmairment loss on our Freddie Mac
preferred stocks.

Key Strategic Initiatives And Events

Stock Repurchase ProgranOur Board of Directors has authorized the repureltdsip to 5,047,423 shares of our common stock. Th
authorization permits shares to be repurchase@én market or negotiated transactions, and purdaaarty trading plan that may be adopte
accordance with Rule 10bef the Securities and Exchange Commission. Thigoaization may be utilized at management's digmmesubjec
to the limitations set forth in Rule 10b-18 of thecurities and Exchange Commission and other aipdidegal requirements, and to price and
other internal limitations established by the Boafrdirectors. The repurchase authorization wilbies on May 17, 2010, unless extended by
the Board of Directors. As of December 31, 2008,@ompany had repurchased 3,882,723 shares aitsion stock pursuant to the
repurchase authorization.

Quarterly Cash DividendsOur Board of Directors declared four quarterly cdstidends of $0.07 per share during 2009. Castiends
totaling $6.0 million were paid in 2009. On Janu2$gy 2010, the Board of Directors declared a qugreash dividend of $0.07 per share th:
payable on March 5, 2010.
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Economic and Competitive Conditions

General U.S. financial market conditions stabilizieding the course of 2009, but national and leca@nomic conditions further deteriorated
with respect to unemployment levels, consumer arsihiess spending and investment activity. Pricimdy anderwriting for multi-family and
commercial real estate loans and commercial leases favorable due in part to diminished competimd overall higher credit risk spreads,
but we expect these trends to reverse modestl910.2Demand for the Bank’s traditional adjustalateresidential portfolio assets remained
low due to the overwhelming market preference iced—+ate mortgage loans given market interest rateoandnderwriting standards. Prici
conditions for local deposits, whether low-balanoee deposits, certificates of deposits or higtahed, high-yield transaction accounts,
steadily improved during the year due to very loarket yields, lower industry-wide loan demand dmeldisappearance of several aggressive
deposit competitors from the Chicago metropolitaarkat.

We experienced modest growth in our multi-familgidgportfolio in 2009, principally due to the caflefontinued expansion of our mufémily
lending geographic market. Our research and expegisndicate that certain markets outside our tiathl market exhibit more favorable
pricing and underwriting conditions for multi-familending than those available in the Chicago npatlitan market; accordingly, we have
gradually established relationships with marketipiggants in selected metropolitan markets witléagonable travel distance from Chicago.
expect to continue this gradual expansion witheekisting markets and in new markets based owmywing internal and third-party due
diligence results as long as the required pricimgj @nderwriting conditions remain available.

We experienced a modest contraction in our comrakereal estate loan portfolio in 2009, principallye to low loan demand, a reduction in
exposure to health care-related real estate loahsl@liberate action to exit certain credit expesuGiven economic conditions, however, we
do not expect material growth in this portfolio absa significant favorable shift in market conalits within our local Chicago metropolitan
market.

Our construction and land loan portfolio contingedlecline due to project sales activity and theveosion of some projects to income-
producing properties. We continued to restrict mesidential or commercial construction and landh{aVe expect the balances in all
construction loan categories to decline furthe2@a0.

We experienced continued strong growth in commeEleése originations due principally to continuitgmand for technology assets and the
impact of credit market disruption on non-bank cetitprs. The strong level of originations transtaieto only modest net growth due to the
relatively short average life of the commerciaklesin our portfolio. We experienced a slight dexin commercial loans due to reduced loan
demand, declines in healthcare exposures and dihgdiline of credit usage by business customersviWeontinue to focus on expanding «
commercial lending to our commercial lease custsmaed local businesses to the extent that econamticredit conditions are favorable.

Our overall loan portfolio quality declined in 2088nsistent with the overall economic environm@ihie net increase in non-accrual loans and
a related increase in loan loss reserves resutietply from materially weaker occupancies anceefive rents on single-family, multi-family
and retail commercial investment properties andreesponding material decline in the valuationghefunderlying collateral. In addition, there
has been a marked increase in overall borrowewntiance to credit obligations, which seems to beadly correlated to the decline in equity
positions in business assets and an increase kiuyny filings by business owners. General macketditions and the glacial pace of local
judicial action also slowed our resolution of cified assets. We believe that unemployment, consgmending and borrower perceptions
residential and commercial real estate valuatioiidoe the primary factors affecting loan portfoljoality in 2010.

As we expected, our general loan loss reservesnuent to increase materially. As part of our coragioh of the required level for our general
loan loss reserve, our model incorporates the amimgnational and local economic risk factors,ahanges in the levels of classified loans by
loan type, and the impact of the additional speaifiluation allowances or charge-offs recordedlassified loans. Our underwriting standards
remain consistent with our historical standardhaalgh our credit analyses incorporate somewhaempessimistic assumptions given the
negative trends in the applicable credit risk fexto
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Deposits increased in 2009 as many institutiongaétd from their aggressive pricing practicestageicustomers sought the greatest possible
safety for their liquid assets and our core depusitketing efforts continued to enjoy reasonabbesss. We expect a similar competitive
environment for the first half of 2010, and we veidintinue our marketing efforts to further enhatieedepth and quality of our deposit
portfolio.

Though our net interest spread remained essentiafigtant in 2009, our net interest margin declmedestly as the impact of loans placed on
non-accrual status offset the benefits of a favergield curve and improved credit spreads. Givenduantity and volatility of the variables
affecting our net interest margin and net intespséad, we are unable to confidently predict otiinterest margin and net interest spread in
2010.

Non-interest income decreased in 2009 due to a loskeosale of our remaining Freddie Mac preferretety materially reduced income from
our bank owned life insurance portfolio and a dlidécrease in customer loan and deposit incomeltiMeanagement performed consistently
with our expectations for 2009. Income from gainssales of fixedate loans increased, but the net income from $eawicing rights decreas
slightly. We expect that non-interest income wél telatively constant in 2010, as income from gaimsales of fixed-rate loans are likely to be
offset by decreases in deposit fees due to thepatémpact of new regulatory restrictions on alrafts by retail deposit customers.

Nonr-interest expense decreased in 2009 as we contowrefdcus on improving efficiency through operatbreviews and technology
deployments. The most significant expense increiaseds/ed classified asset management expense Bid premium expense, both of which
we expect to continue at similar levels in 2010. &{pect expenses related to multi-state loan atgins, commercial lease originations and
deposit marketing to increase, but we also expattimued expense offsets arising from the implewrt#nt of our functional reviews.

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are defined as thdee are reflective of significant judgments andentainties, and could potentially result in
materially different results under different asstions and conditions. We believe that the mostcaiitaccounting policies upon which our
financial condition and results of operation depeard which involve the most complex subjectiveisiens or assessments, are as follows:

Allowance for Loan Losse<Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance foah losses involves a high degree of judgment.aDowance for
loan losses provides for probable incurred losssed upon evaluations of known and inherent riskle loan portfolio. We review the level
of the allowance on a quarterly basis and estalitistprovision for loan losses based upon histblizen loss experience, the nature and vol
of the loan portfolio, information about specifiorbower situations, estimated collateral valuespemic conditions and other factors to assess
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Ajriba material estimates that we must make to ksttiahe allowance are: loss exposure at
default; the amount and timing of future cash flamsaffected loans; value of collateral; and deteation of loss factors to be applied to the
various elements of the portfolio. All of theseimsttes are susceptible to significant change. Algiowe believe that we use the best
information available to us to establish the alloe&for loan losses, future adjustments to thenallce may be necessary if borrower finan
collateral valuation or economic conditions diferbstantially from the information and assumptiossd in making the evaluation. In additi
as an integral part of their examination process regulatory agencies periodically review thewhoce for loan losses. These agencies may
require us to recognize additions to the allowdveged on their judgments of information availabléhem at the time of their examination. A
large loss could deplete the allowance and reduoareased provisions to replenish the allowancechvivould negatively affect earnings.

Intangible AssetsAcquisitions accounted for under purchase accogmguires us to record as assets on our finast@Egments both

goodwill, an intangible asset which is equal toeixeess of the purchase price which we pay forreratompany over the estimated fair value
of the net assets acquired, and identifiable irntda@ssets such as core deposit intangibles andompete agreements. We evaluate goodwill
at least annually, or when business conditions sstgan impairment may have occurred and we willcedts carrying value through a charge
to earnings if impairment exists. Core deposit atier identifiable intangible assets are amortibeeixpense over their estimated useful lives
and are reviewed for impairment at least annuallyyhenever events or changes in circumstancesatelthat the carrying amount of the asset
may not be recoverable. The valuation techniqued by us to determine the carrying value of targ#bid intangible assets acquired in
acquisitions and the estimated lives of identifaintangible assets involve estimates for discoatets, projected future cash flows and time
period calculations, all of which are susceptiblehange based on changes in economic conditiahstaer factors. Future events or changes
in the estimates that we used to determine thgiogrvalue of our goodwill and identifiable intabtg assets or which otherwise adversely
affect their value or estimated lives could haveaerial adverse impact on our results of operati&s of December 31, 2009, our intangible
assets consisted of goodwill of $22.6 million andecdeposit intangibles of $4.3 million.
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Mortgage Servicing RightsMortgage servicing rights represent the presentevaf the future servicing fees from the right éovice loans in

our loan servicing portfolio. Mortgage servicinghts are recognized as assets for the allocatilue \od retained servicing rights on loans sold.
The most critical accounting policy associated witbrtgage servicing is the methodology used tordete the fair value of capitalized
mortgage servicing rights, which requires a nundfestimates, the most critical of which is the tgage loan prepayment speed assumption.
The mortgage loan prepayment speed assumptiogngisantly affected by interest rates. In genedairing periods of falling interest rates,
mortgage loans prepay faster and the value of @utgage servicing assets declines. Converselyndymériods of rising rates, the value of
mortgage servicing rights generally increases dugdwer rates of prepayments. The amount and grmfrmortgage servicing rights
amortization is adjusted monthly based on actuallte. In addition, on a quarterly basis, we pernfarvaluation review of mortgage servicing
rights for potential declines in value. This qudsteraluation review entails applying current asgtions to the portfolio classified by interest
rates and, secondarily, by geographic and prepalyomamacteristics. Based on the significance of@mnges in assumptions since the
preceding appraisal, this valuation may includénalependent appraisal of the fair value of our isémg portfolio.

Income TaxesWe consider accounting for income taxes a criticalounting policy due to the subjective natureavfain estimates that are
involved in the calculation. We use the assetflighinethod of accounting for income taxes in whadferred tax assets and liabilities are
established for the temporary differences betwherfihancial reporting basis and the tax basisunfassets and liabilities. We must assess the
realization of the deferred tax asset and, to #tent that we believe that recovery is not likelyaluation allowance is established.
Adjustments to increase or decrease the valuatiowance are charged or credited, respectiveljnpcome tax expense. No valuation
allowance was required at December 31, 2009. Ajhaue have determined a valuation allowance igemuired for any deferred tax assets at
December 31, 2009, there is no guarantee thatatiah allowance will not be required in the future

Statement of Financial Condition at December 31, 2® and December 31, 2008

Total assets increased $12.2 million, or 0.8%,1t&&7 billion at December 31, 2009, from $1.55%dlat December 31, 2008, primarily due
to a $78.9 million increase in net cash and castivatents to $108.2 million at December 31, 2008nT $29.3 million at December 31, 2008.

Our loan portfolio consists primarily of investmetd business loans (multi-family, nonresidentall estate, commercial, construction and
land loans, and commercial leases), which togettake up 76.4% of gross loans. Net loans receivddtecased $49.5 million, or 3.9%, to
$1.218 billion at December 31, 2009, from $1.28Bdn at December 31, 2008. The decrease was dselistantial part to a net decrease in
one-to-four family residential mortgage loans, resiglential real estate loans, construction and li@aas and commercial loans. One-to-four
family residential mortgage loans decreased $22&m or 7.3%, primarily due to refinancings thaere not replaced with new originations.
Construction and land loans decreased $18.1 mjltio85.7%, primarily due to principal paymentstd6.7 million resulting from project sales
activities, which were partially offset by $4.6 hwh in draws on existing credit commitments. Nasidential real estate loans decreased $26.0
million, or 7.6%, primarily due to principal payntsrof $53.6 million, which were partially offset BL5.5 million in draws on existing credit
commitments. Commercial loans decreased by $4lmibr 5.0%, due in part to reduced loan demaed|ines in healthcare credit expost
and diminished line of credit usage by businessotnsrs. These reductions were partially offset Imgtincrease in multi-family loans and
commercial leases. Mulfamily real estate loans increased by $23.9 millmm7.8%, and commercial leases increased byr#glidn, or 1.2%
due to increased originations in these targetenl éadegories.

Our allowance for loan losses increased by $3.8amjlto $18.6 million at December 31, 2009, fro¥¥ million at December 31, 2008. The
increase reflects the combined impact of a $2.4ianiincrease in the portion of the specific allowa for loan losses that we allocate to
impaired loans, a $1.5 million increase in the gahgortion of the allowance for loan losses, add®3nillion in net charge offs. Increases in
the specific portion of the allowance for loan les®ccurred principally in the following areas:astor owned one-to-four family residential
loans ($973,000); multi-family loans ($569,000)nA@sidential real estate loans ($513,000); comiadaans ($254,000); and construction
and land loans ($107,000). Net decreases in thafigpeortion of the allowance for loan losses thvat allocate to impaired loans occurred in
consumer loans and commercial leases.
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Securities decreased by $22.8 million, or 18.3%4102.1 million at December 31, 2009, from $124iBion at December 31, 2008. The
primary reason for the decrease was $25.6 millioprincipal repayments, sales and maturities ofisges.

We owned common stock of the FHLBC with a statedvadue of $15.6 million at December 31, 2009 aff& The FHLBC has not declared
any dividends on its common stock since the thirdrtgr of 2007 due to the combined effect of thé.B&'s financial condition and a cease
and desist order that prohibits the FHLBC from denly dividends without the prior approval of thiedator of the Federal Housing Finance
Agency. The cease and desist order imposes a sionita approval requirement on the FHLBC's repash or redemption of common stock
from existing and withdrawn members, subject tdagerexceptions that are not applicable to theeshaf FHLBC common stock that we own.
The FHLBC has stated in its recent public filingattit cannot predict when it will resume payingidénds or repurchasing or redeeming
common shares that are subject to the restrictropssed by the cease and desist order.

Pursuant to the FDIC final rule requiring insuresgpdsitory institutions to prepay their estimatedrtgrly risk-based assessments for the fourth
quarter of 2009, and for all of 2010, 2011, and20te paid $457,000 in estimated assessmentsddothith quarter of 2009 and prepaid $6.8
million in estimated assessments through 2012.

In conjunction with the sale of our Freddie Macfpreed stocks in 2009, we recorded an income tegivable of $11.7 million at
December 31, 2009. Other assets decreased $1lichrtil $12.2 million at December 31, 2009, fron8&2million at December 31, 2008,
primarily due to an $8.9 million decrease in defdrtax assets.

Deposits increased $163.5 million, or 15.3%, t®33.billion at December 31, 2009, from $1.070 billat December 31, 2008, primarily due
to increased money market account and certifichtieposit balances. Money market accounts incre@s#6.4 million, or 56.5%, to $322.1
million at December 31, 2009, from $205.8 millicrDecember 31, 2008. Certificates of deposit ineea$29.1 million, or 7.8%, to $403.6
million at December 31, 2009, from $374.5 milliarDeecember 31, 2008. Total core deposits (savimggiey market, noninterest-bearing
demand and interest-bearing NOW accounts) increasedpercentage of total deposits, representir8y6af total deposits at December 31,
2009, compared to 65.0% of total deposits at Deegr@b, 2008.

Borrowings decreased $149.6 million, or 74.7%,36.8 million at December 31, 2009, from $200.4 imiillat December 31, 2008, due to our
reductions of outstanding FHLBC advances.

Total stockholders’ equity was $263.6 million atdember 31, 2009, compared to $266.8 million at D 31, 2008. The decrease in total
stockholders’ equity was primarily due to the condal impact of our repurchase of 277,800 sharesiof@mmon stock for a total cost of $2.5
million, the declaration and payment of cash dinidietotaling $6.0 million, and the $738,000 nesltisat we recorded for the year ended 2
These items were partially offset by a $2.5 millinorease in accumulated other comprehensive incarmika $3.5 million increase in
additional paid in capital resulting from the vagtiof stock-based compensation and ESOP sharesdeditme unallocated shares of common
stock that our ESOP owns were reflected as a $m8lidn reduction to stockholdergquity at December 31, 2009, compared to a $16lbrm
at December 31, 2008.

Loans

We originate multi-family mortgage loans, nonresitild real estate loans, commercial loans, comrakleases, and construction and land
loans. In addition, we originate oneftmir family residential mortgage loans and consulb@ns, and purchase and sell loan participaticora
time-to-time. The following briefly describes ouinzipal loan products.

Multi -family Mortgage LoansLoans secured by multi-family mortgage loans tat&@829.2 million, or 26.7%, of our total loan poftb, at
December 31, 2009. At December 31, 2009, $65.2amityf our multi-family mortgage loan portfolio ceisted of loans originated in carefully
selected metropolitan markets outside the Bankimany lending area, and these loans represent&d4l8f our multi-family mortgage loan
portfolio and 5.3% of our total loan portfolio. Misfamily mortgage loans generally are secured lojtifiamily rental properties such as
apartment buildings, including subsidized apartmanits. The majority of our multi-family mortgageains have adjustable interest rates
following an initial fixed-rate period, typicallydtween three and five years.
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Nonresidential Real Estate LoanLoans secured by nonresidential real estate to%8&6.6 million, or 25.6%, of our total loan potifg at
December 31, 2009. We emphasize nonresidentiabstale loans with initial principal balances beaw&1.0 million and $5.0 million. The
nonresidential real estate properties securingetto@ns are predominantly office buildings, ligidustrial buildings, shopping centers and
mixed-use developments, and to a lesser extent sp@cialized properties such as nursing homesthed healthcare facilities. Substantially
all of our nonresidential real estate loans arergetby properties located in our primary markegaOur nonresidential real estate loans are
typically written as three- or five-year adjustabite mortgage loans or mortgage loans with ballmaturities of three or five years.
Amortization of these loans is typically based 6n @ 25-year payout schedules. We also originatees15-year fixed-rate, fully amortizing
loans.

Commercial LoansCommercial loans totaled $88.1 million, or 7.1%paf total loan portfolio, at December 31, 2009isTibtal includes
unsecured commercial loans with an aggregate oulisig balance of $8.0 million. We generally makenceercial loans to customers in our
primary market area to finance equipment acquisitexpansion, working capital and other generainass purposes. The terms of these loans
generally range from less than one year to fives/€ghe loans either are negotiated on a fixedasgs, or carry adjustable interest rates
indexed to a lending rate that is determined iratyror based on a short-term market rate index.

Commercial LeasesCommercial leases totaled $176.8 million, or 14.8%gur total loan portfolio, at December 31, 2002w commercial
leases primarily involve technology equipment, matéandling equipment, and other capital equipm&he transactions are generally
structured as a non-recourse assignment by thimdeesmpany of the payment stream on the leaselesmgmted by the grant of a security
interest in the lease and the leased equipmenseégpently, we underwrite leases by examining thditworthiness of the lessee rather than
the lessor. The lessee generally agrees to senéabe payments directly to us. As of Decembe8@9, 58.6% of our commercial lease
portfolio involved lessees with investment-gradedapublic debt, 36.0% involved publicly-tradedsless with no public debt and thus no
public debt rating, and 5.4% involved privatelyh&dssees or lessees with a below investment-grabléc debt rating. Debt ratings are
determined by Moody’s, Standard & Poors, Fitch, ABé¢st or an equivalent rating firm. Commerciaklestypically have a maximum
maturity of seven years and we limit our maximuntstanding credit exposure to $10.0 million to aimgke entity. Leases to companies with
no public debt ratings generally involve companigh a net worth in excess of $25.0 million anditgtly have a maximum maturity of five
years.

Construction and Land LoansConstruction and land loans totaled $32.6 millimn2.6%, of our total loan portfolio at December 32009.
These loans generally consist of land acquisitiams$ to help finance the purchase of land intefigiefiirther development, including single-
family homes, multi-family housing and commerciadme property, development loans to builders mnoarket area to finance
improvements to real estate, consisting mostlyirafle-family subdivisions, typically to finance ticest of utilities, roads, sewers and other
development costs. Builders generally rely on #ile sf single-family homes to repay developmennalthough in some cases the improved
building lots may be sold to another builder, oftewonjunction with development loans. In genetfad, maximum loan-to-value ratio for raw
land acquisition loan is 65% of the appraised valiae property, and the maximum term of thesedda two years. The maximum amount
loaned on a development loan is generally limitethe cost of the land and public improvements, ahthnces are made in accordance with a
schedule reflecting the cost of the improvementhzakces are generally limited to 90% of actual toietion costs and, as required by
applicable regulations, a 75% loan to completedaippd value ratio. We have discouraged new coetstrulending for the past several years
and have had only limited interest in site acqigisitoans for future construction.

One- to-Four Family Residential Mortgage Lendin@onforming and non-conforming fixed-rate and adjbitrate residential mortgage loz
totaled $289.6 million, or 23.4%, of our total loportfolio at December 31, 2009. Our residentiattgege loan portfolio includes traditional
one-to-four family residential mortgage loans, hagaity loans and home equity lines of credit #ratsecured by the borrower’s primary
residence, and loans to investors in non-owner{giecdusingle-family homes. At December 31, 2009, b@quity loans totaled $12.5 million,
or 1.0%, of total loans, home equity lines of cteaialed $85.0 million, or 6.9%, of total loansddoans to investors in non-owner-occupied
single-family homes totaled $81.1 million, or 6.@%¢otal loans. We generally originate both fixesd adjustable-rate loans in amounts up to
the maximum conforming loan limits as establishgd-annie Mae, which is currently $417,000 for s@gafdmily homes. Private mortgage
insurance is required for first mortgage loans wotm-to-value ratios in excess of 80%. At Decen@igr2009, our adjustable-rate residential
mortgage loan portfolio totaled $149.5 million, @ndluded $30.9 million in loans that reprice orcgear and $118.6 million in loans that
reprice periodically after an initial fixed-raterjl of three years or more.
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We also originate loans above conforming limitéemned to as “jumbo loans,” that are underwrittertite credit standards of Fannie Mae given
the demand for these loans in the Chicago metrapotirea. We also originate loans that do not fulget the credit standards of Fannie Mae if
they are deemed to be acceptable risks givenfénerable compensating risk factors. In generalda@ot originate or purchase loans with

underwriting characteristics that, taken togethes, materially lower than the credit standardsafrite Mae, and as part of the underwriting
process, consider the availability of purchaserguimbo and other nonconforming loans.
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Loan Portfolio Composition

The following table sets forth the composition af tban portfolio, excluding loans held for salg,tippe of loan at the dates indicated.

At December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in thousands)
One- to-four
family
residential $ 289,62 23.4%% $ 312,39( 24.3% $ 345,24! 27.3% $ 397,54! 29.7% $ 404,19¢ 32.62%
Multi-family
mortgage 329,22° 26.6¢ 305,31¢ 23.8¢ 291,39! 23.07 297,13 22.2( 280,23¢ 22.6:2
Nonresidentia
real estatt 316,60° 25.62 342,58: 26.7¢ 325,88! 25.8( 320,72¢ 23.97 275,41¢ 22.2¢
Construction and
land 32,571 2.64 50,68’ 3.9¢ 64,48: 5.1C 85,22: 6.37 80,70¢ 6.5%
Commercial loan 88,06 7.1% 92,67¢ 7.2% 87,77 6.9t 94,30t 7.0E 74,207 5.9¢
Commercial least 176,82: 14.31 174,64« 13.6: 144,84 11.47 139,16 10.4( 121,89¢ 9.84
Consume 2,53¢ 0.21 2,65¢F 0.21 3,50¢ 0.2¢ 4,04~ 0.3C 2,022 0.1¢€
Total loans  1,235,46. 100.0(% 1,280,95¢ 100.0% 1,263,13: 100.0% 1,338,14. 100.0% 1,238,68: 100.0(%
Loans in proces (73) (159 (16€) 14¢€ 2,18(
Net deferred loa
origination
costs 1,701 1,912 2,08¢ 2,42¢ 2,541
Allowance for
loan losse: (18,629 (14,749 (11,05) (10,627 (11,519
Total loans,
net $1,218,46 $1,267,96! $1,253,99! $1,330,09: $1,231,89:
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Loan Portfolio Maturities

The following table summarizes the scheduled reaysof our loan portfolio at December 31, 2009m2ed loans, loans having no stated
repayment schedule or maturity and overdraft I@aeseported as being due in one year or less.

One Year
Within Through Beyond
One Year Five Years Five Years Total

(Dollars in thousands)

Scheduled Repayments of Loa

One- to-four family residentia $ 32,94¢ $ 67,43¢ $189,23t $ 289,62
Multi-family mortgage 66,60: 85,29¢ 177,32¢ 329,22
Nonresidential real esta 122,65¢ 181,90° 12,04: 316,60°
Construction and lan 31,33( 1,10¢ 144 32,577
Commercial loans and leas 151,41: 110,43: 3,04¢ 264,88t
Consume 1,43¢ 652 457 2,53¢

Total loans $406,38. $446,83. $382,24° $1,235,46.

Total
Loans Maturing After One Yea

Predetermined (fixed) interest ra $ 421,48:
Adjustable interest rate 407,59!
Total loans $ 829,07¢

Nonperforming Loans and Assets

We review loans on a regular basis, and generédiyedoans on nonaccrual status when either prihoipinterest is 90 days or more past due.
In addition, we place loans on nonaccrual statusnawhe do not expect to receive full payment ofriggéeor principal. Interest accrued and
unpaid at the time a loan is placed on nonacctatlisis reversed from interest income. Interegtrgants received on nonaccrual loans are
recognized in accordance with our significant actimg polices. We may have loans classified as&@®& @r more delinquent and still accrui
Generally, we do not utilize this category of ladassification unless: (1) the loan is repaid ith$hortly after the period end date; (2) the loan
is well secured and there are no asserted or pgtetpal barriers to its collection; or (3) the lwwer has remitted all scheduled payments a
otherwise in substantial compliance with the teahthe loan, but the processing of loan paymentisadly received or the renewal of the loan
has not occurred for administrative reasons. Atdbewmer 31, 2009, we had two loans totaling $148i0@bis category.

At December 31, 2009, we had nonaccrual loans 88b4hillion, an increase of $35.8 million from Dedeer 31, 2008. Increases in nonacc
loans occurred principally in the following areasalti-family loans ($11.9 million); one-to-four fain residential loans ($9.2 million); non-

residential real estate loans ($8.1 million); camngion and land loans ($3.7 million); and commairtbans ($3.0 million). Decreases in non-
accrual loans occurred in commercial leases ($009,t December 31, 2009 no accrued interest oraocrual loans had been recognized.

The increase in nonaccrual loans was primarilytdube deterioration of local economic condition®ur primary Chicago metropolitan
market territory. Significant increases in unempheynt created materially higher levels of vacanfdesental housing and a decline in effec
rents. In addition, the decline in consumer andriass spending negatively impacted the cash flovetsfil commercial real estate tenants,
owners and certain commercial borrowers, resultinggher levels of vacancies, business closurdshasiness bankruptcies. Of particular |
was a considerable increase in the number of bem®war guarantors who chose not to meet their tobdigations due to diminished or
negative equity in their assets.

Real estate acquired through foreclosure or deédurof foreclosure is classified as real estateed until it is sold. When real estate is
acquired through foreclosure or by deed in liefooéclosure, it is recorded at its fair value, l#ss estimated costs of disposal. If the fair value
of the property is less than the loan balancedifierence is charged against the allowance fon loases.

We typically obtain new third-party appraisals oliateral valuations when we commence formal ctilbecaction unless the existing valuation
information for the collateral is sufficiently cemt to comply with the requirements of our Apprhésad Collateral Valuation (ACV) Policy.

We use updated valuations when time constraintsotlpermit a full appraisal process or when ACVi&3etompliant appraisals must be
updated to reflect rapidly changing market condiicBecause appraisals and updated valuationzeutiistorical data in reaching valuation
conclusions, the appraised or updated value mayagrnot reflect the actual sales price that we reiteive at the time of sale.
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Real estate appraisals typically include up toetapproaches to value: the sales comparison apgpribecincome approach (for income-
producing property) and the cost approach. Naglraisals utilize all three approaches to valiepdnding on the nature of the collateral and
market conditions, we may emphasize one approaehanother in determining the fair value of coltate

Appraisals may also contain different estimategadfie based on the level of occupancy or futureawgments. “As-isvaluations represent
estimate of value based on current market conditwith no changes to the collateral’s use or caowlit'As-stabilized” or “as-completed”
valuations assume that the collateral is improweeal $tated standard or achieves its highest aridibesn terms of occupancy. “As-stabilized”
valuations may be subject to a present value adprst for market conditions or the schedule for ioyements.

In connection with the valuation process, we wiflitally develop an exit strategy for the collatdna assessing overall market conditions, the
current condition and use of the asset and itsdsigand best use. For most income-producing réategsnvestors value most highly a stable
income stream from the asset; consequently, wewziradcomparative evaluation to determine whetbaduacting a sale on an “as-is” basis or
on an “as-stabilized” basis is most likely to produhe highest net realizable value.

Our estimates of the net realizable value of cetldtinclude a deduction for the expected cosgelicthe collateral or such other deductions
from the cash flows resulting from the liquidatiohcash flows as may be appropriate. For mostestaite collateral, we apply a ten percent
deduction to the value of real estate collateraldtermine its expected costs to sell the assét.eltimate includes real estate commissions
year of real estate taxes and miscellaneous rapdiclosing costs. If we receive a purchase offfar tequires unbudgeted repairs, or if
expected holding period for the asset exceeds ear then we include the additional real estategand repairs or other holdings costs in the
expected costs to sell the collateral on a casealsg-basis.

The following table below sets forth the amountd eategories of our nonperforming loans and nomperihg assets at the dates indicated.

At December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Nonaccrual loans

One-to-four family residentia $11,45: $ 2,20¢ $ 2,19¢ $2,21: $1,48¢
Multi-family mortgage 13,96: 2,101 4,18¢ 1,16¢ 477
Nonresidential real esta 11,07« 2,961 2,82 4,37¢ 2,46¢
Construction and lan 8,841 5,14t 98¢ — —
Commercial loan 4,16( 1,141 1,751 1,41¢ 1,15¢
Commercial lease — 10t 112 47 13¢
Consume — — 2 5 —
Total nonperforming loar 49,48¢ 13,65¢ 12,05¢ 9,22¢ 5,72
Real estate owne:
One-to-four family residentia 601 58¢ 252 — 152
Multi-family mortgage 97¢€ 13¢ — — —
Nonresidential real esta 1,41¢ — 56¢ — —
Construction and lan 1,091 234 — — —
Total real estate owne 4,08¢ 95k 82( — 152
Total nonperforming asse $53,57¢ $14,61: $12,87¢ $9,22¢ $5,87¢
Ratios:
Nonperforming loans to total loa 4.01% 1.0 0.95% 0.6%% 0.4€%
Nonperforming assets to total ass 3.4z 0.94 0.87 0.57 0.3€
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Risk Classification of Assets

Our policies, consistent with regulatory guidelingsovide for the classification of loans and otassets that are considered to be of lesser
quality as substandard, doubtful, or loss assetsagset is considered substandard if it is inadefyuprotected by the current net worth and
paying capacity of the obligor or the collateradded, if any. Substandard assets include thosaathdzed by the distinct possibility that we
will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are cwtected. Assets classified as doubtful havefali® weaknesses inherent in assets classifi
substandard with the added characteristic thalvbeknesses present also make collection or ligoidat full, on the basis of currently existi
facts, conditions and values, highly questionabkianprobable. Assets classified as loss are tbossidered uncollectible and of such little
value that their continuance as assets is not wizta

Based on a review of our assets at December 3B, 20issified assets consisted of substandardsasis$48.9 million and doubtful assets of
$1.1 million, and we had no loans classified as lEssets. As of December 31, 2009, we had $37lPmilf assets designated as special
mention. Of the assets designated as special netthie largest single asset is a $5.7 million coneiaéconstruction loan secured by a retail
shopping center. The retail shopping center is 82% occupied by businesses related to one of thesfars in the entity that owns the
shopping center. The loan is further secured bytiaddl collateral pledged by the investors, andupported by the personal guarantees of the
investors. It appears that the business operatibtie existing tenants, together with supplemgnparsonal resources of the guarantors, will
be sufficient to make the scheduled loan paymemtisthe project reaches full occupancy. Howeveis possible that future payment
performance, tenant business results or changés ifinancial condition and capability of the gudras could result in a future adverse risk
classification.

Allowance for Loan Losses

We establish provisions for loan losses, whichciug@rged to operations in order to maintain thenadlace for loan losses at a level we consider
necessary to absorb probable incurred credit laashe loan portfolio. In determining the leveltbg allowance for loan losses, we consider
past and current loss experience, evaluationsabestate collateral, current economic conditimeiime and type of lending, adverse situat
that may affect a borrower’s ability to repay an@and the levels of nonperforming and other cless$ifbans. The amount of the allowance is
based on estimates and the ultimate losses mayfreanysuch estimates as more information becomasadole or later events change.

We provide for loan losses based on the allowanethod. Accordingly, all loan losses are chargetthéorelated allowance and all recoveries
are credited to it. Additions to the allowancelfman losses are provided by charges to income barsedrious factors that, in our judgment,
deserve current recognition in estimating probaiderred losses. We review the loan portfolio oroagoing basis and make provisions for
loan losses on a quarterly basis to maintain toevahce for loan losses in accordance with accagmirinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America. The allowance for loass&s consists of two components:

» specific allowances established for any impairedtisfamily mortgage, nonresidential real estatenstouction and land,
commercial, and commercial lease loans for whiehrétorded investment in the loan exceeds the megsalue of the loan; ar

« general allowances for loan losses for each lope based on historical loan loss experience; ajubtdents to historical loss
experience (general allowances), maintained torconeertainties that affect our estimate of probabturred losses for each loan

type.

The adjustments to historical loss experience asedh on our evaluation of several factors, inclydiavels of, and trends in, past due and
classified loans; levels of, and trends in, chasfje-and recoveries; trends in volume and termsanfis, including any credit concentrations in
the loan portfolio; experience, ability, and deptlending management and other relevant staff;remibnal and local economic trends and
conditions.

We evaluate the allowance for loan losses based tifgocombined total of the specific and generaiponents. Generally, when the loan
portfolio increases, absent other factors, thenalttce for loan loss methodology results in a higlatlar amount of estimated probable
incurred losses than would be the case withouinitrease. Conversely, when the loan portfolio deses, absent other factors, the allowance
for loan loss methodology generally results inedodollar amount of estimated probable losses #auld be the case without the decrease.
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We review our loan portfolio on an ongoing basisiébermine whether any loans require classificadiot impairment testing in accordance
with applicable regulations and accounting prire§plWhen we classify loans as either substandaddwdstful and in certain other cases, we
review the collateral and future cash flow projecs to determine if a specific reserve is neces3drg allowance for loan losses represents
amounts that have been established to recognimer@ttlosses in the loan portfolio that are botvbpble and reasonably estimable at the date
of the financial statements. When we classify praobloans as loss, we charge-off such amounts. Wilase the best information available to
make evaluations, future adjustments to the allmganay be necessary if conditions differ substiytisom the information used in making
the evaluations. Our determination as to the riaksification of our loans and the amount of osslallowances are subject to review by our
regulatory agencies, which can require that webéistaadditional loss allowances.

The following table sets forth activity in our alance for loan losses for the years indicated.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at beginning of ye $14,74¢ $11,05: $10,62: $11,51¢ $11,01¢
Chargeoffs:
One-to-four family residentia (461) (24¢) (10 — —
Multi-family mortgage (297) (169) — — —
Nonresidential real esta (1,519 (605) — — —
Construction and lan (2,262) (11%) — — —
Commercial loan (463) (230 (237) (94€) (49
Commercial lease (22 — — — —
Consume (42 (14¢€) (58 (26) (66)
Total charg-offs (5,06%) (1,419 (305) (972) (115)
Recoveries
One-to-four family residentia 82 1 — — —
Multi-family mortgage — — — — —
Nonresidential real esta 36 4 — — —
Construction and lan — — — — —
Commercial loan 3 1 14 — 88
Commercial lease 6 — — — —
Consume 3 10 23 4 4
Total recoverie! 13C 16 37 4 92
Net charg-offs (4,935 (1,397 (26€) (96€) (23
Allowance of acquired bar — — — 21z —
Provision (credit) for loan lossi 8,811 5,092 697 (136€) 51€
Balance at end of ye: $18,62: $14,74¢ $11,05: $10,62: $11,51¢
Ratios:
Net charg-offs to average loans outstandi 0.3% 0.11% 0.02% 0.0 0.0(%
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loi 37.6: 107.97 91.6¢ 115.1¢ 201.1¢
Allowance for loan losses to total loa 1.51 1.1t 0.87 0.7¢ 0.9z

Net Charge-offs and Recoveries

Net charg-offs and total charge-offs were $4.9 million ar&2$million, respectively, for the year ended Deben31, 2009, compared to $1.4
million in net charge-offs and total charge-offs floe year ended December 31, 2008, and $268,00€ticharge-offs and $305,000 in total
charge-offs for the year ended December 31, 200l Tecoveries were $130,000 in 2009, comparekl 6000 in 2008 and $37,000 in 2007.

We recorded a provision for loan losses of $8.8ionilin 2009, compared to $5.1 million in 2008 &897,000 in 2007. Of the $8.8 million
provision for loan losses that we recorded in 268294 million is attributable to the specific portiof the allowance for loan losses that we
allocate to impaired loans, $1.5 million is atttidbie to the general portion of the allowance éaml losses, and the remainder is attributable to
the replenishment of amounts that were chargedwofhg 2009.
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Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

The following table sets forth our allowance foamoosses allocated by loan category. The allowésrdean losses allocated to each category
is not necessarily indicative of future lossesny particular category and does not restrict treeafghe allowance to absorb losses in other
categories.

At December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Percent Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans of Loans
in Each in Each in Each
Allowance Category Allowance Category Allowance Category
Loan Loan Loan
for Loan Balances by  to Total for Loan Balances by  to Total for Loan Balances by  to Total
Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family residentia $ 3,33t $ 289,620 23440 $ 2,04C $ 312,39( 243% $ 1,82: $ 345,24! 27.3%
Multi-family mortgage 3,591 329,227 26.6t 2,37( 305,31¢ 23.8¢ 2,20¢ 291,39t 23.07
Nonresidential real esta 5,69¢ 316,607 25.6zZ 4,65¢ 342,58 26.7¢ 3,05¢ 325,88 25.8(
Construction and lan 1,861 32,571 2.64 1,89¢ 50,68’ 3.9¢ 937 64,48: 5.1C
Commercial loan 2,52( 88,06 7.13 2,05¢ 92,67¢ 7.23 1,79¢ 87,77 6.95
Commercial lease 1,591 176,82. 14.31 1,66¢ 174,64. 13.6: 1,17¢ 144.84: 11.4%
Consume 24 2,53¢ 0.21 52 2,65k 0.21 57 3,50¢ 0.2¢
Total $18,62: $1,235,46. 100.0% $14,74¢ $1,280,95 100.0% $11,05. $1,263,13. 100.0(%
At December 31,
2006 2005
Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans
in Each in Each
Allowance Cltategory Allowance (.I‘,ategory
Loan Loan
for Loan Balances by  to Total for Loan Balances by  to Total
Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family residentia $ 1,858 $ 397,54 29.71% $ 1,41¢ $ 404,19 32.62%
Multi-family mortgage 1,90¢ 297,13 22.2( 2,102 280,23t 22.62
Nonresidential real esta 2,84¢ 320,72¢  23.9i 3,42: 275,41¢ 22.2:
Construction and lan 1,12C 85,22 6.37 1,21C 80,70¢ 6.5
Commercial loan 1,741 94,30¢ 7.0t 2,46¢ 74,207 5.9¢
Commercial lease 1,112 139,16:  10.4( 71€ 121,89¢ 9.84
Consume 40 4,04 0.3C 17 2,02z 0.1€
Unallocatec — — — 16C — —
Total $10,62: $1,338,14. 100.0% $11,51¢ $1,238,68: 100.0(%
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Securities

Our investment policy is established by our BodrBioectors. The policy emphasizes safety of theegiment, liquidity requirements, poten
returns, cash flow targets, and consistency withirtterest rate risk management strategy.

At December 31, 2009, our mortgage-backed secsidtiel collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMQ®Tfjected in the following table were
issued by U.S. government-sponsored entities aeddes, Freddie Mac, Fannie Mae and Ginnie Maeaamabligations which the
government has affirmed its commitment to suppidre equity securities reflected in the 2007 andB2@flumns in the table consist of Freddie
Mac preferred stocks. All securities reflectedtia table were classified as available-for-saleetdnber 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

We hold the FHLBC common stock to qualify for memgtgp in the Federal Home Loan Bank System aneteligible to borrow funds under
the FHLBC's advance program. The aggregate costioFHLBC common stock as of December 31, 2009%4&s6 million based on its par
value. There is no market for FHLBC common stocke@o our receipt of stock dividends in prior yeansl the amount of our outstanding
FHLBC advances, we owned shares of FHLBC commarksitbDecember 31, 2009 with a par value that v88 #illion more than we were
required to own to maintain our membership in teddfal Home Loan Bank System and to be eligibtebtain advances (“excess” or
“voluntary” capital stock).

The following table sets forth the composition, atized cost and fair value of our securities atdages indicated.

At December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Amortized Amortized
Amortized Fair
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Value
(Dollars in thousands)

Securities:

Certificate of deposit $ — $ — $ 50 $ 50 $ — $ —

Municipal securitie: 1,22¢ 1,30¢ 1,73t 1,811 2,21C 2,27:

SBA guaranteed loan participation certifica 114 11¢& 131 12t 59t 592

Equity securities

Freddie Mac — — 2,35¢ 355 38,27¢ 31,22t
Total securitie: 1,33¢ 1,41¢ 4,72 2,78¢ 41,08( 34,08¢

Mortgage-backed Securities:

Mortgage-backed securitie 33,00¢ 34,05: 41,86¢ 41,97¢ 39,307 39,27%

CMOs and REMIC: 64,79 66,65 79,42¢ 80,15« 3,64¢ 3,68:¢
Total mortgag-backed securitie 97,79¢ 100,70t 121.29( 122,13( 42,95¢ 42,96(
Total securitie: $99,13¢ $102,12¢ $126,01. $124,91¢ $84,03¢ $77,04¢

The fair values of marketable equity securitiesgaeerally determined by quoted prices, in actiegkets, for each specific security. If quoted
market prices are not available for a marketablétggecurity, we determine its fair value basedhmquoted price of a similar security traded
in an active market. The fair values of debt semsriare generally determined by matrix pricingjcliis a mathematical technique widely u

in the industry to value debt securities withouyirey exclusively on quoted prices for the specffecurities, but rather by relying on the
securities’ relationship to other benchmark quatecurities. The fair value of a security is useddtermine the amount of any unrealized
losses that must be reflected in our other commprgfie income and the net book value of our seestiti

The Company evaluates marketable investment sexsuwiith significant declines in fair value on aagierly basis to determine whether they
should be considered other-than-temporarily imphineder current accounting guidance, which genepalivides that if a marketable security
is in an unrealized loss position, whether dueeioegal market conditions or industry or issuer-gjefactors, the holder of the securities must
assess whether the impairment is other-than-temypora
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Portfolio Maturities and Yields

The composition and maturities of the securitiedfplio and the mortgage-backed securities porfali December 31, 2009 are summarized in
the following table. Maturities are based on tmaficontractual payment dates, and do not reftexctrhpact of prepayments or early
redemptions that may occur. Municipal securitieddg have not been adjusted to a tax-equivaleis baghe amount is immaterial.

More than One Year More than Five Years
One Year or Less through Five Years through Ten Years More than Ten Years Total Securities
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Amortized Amortized Amortized Amortized Amortized
Average Average Average Average Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-
backed
Securities:
Pass-through
securities
Fannie
Mae $ — — % $ 308 45(% $ 961 5.81% $24,29¢ 4.01% $25,56( 40% $ 26,30¢
Freddie
Mac — — 131 4.1¢ 642 2.92 6,494 5.0¢ 7,26¢ 4.82 7,56¢
Ginnie
Mae — — — — — — 18C 3.65 18C 3.65 184
CMOs and
REMICs 1432 5.0C — — 2,58¢ 2.9¢ 62,06¢ 4.34 64,791 4.2€ 66,65
Total 147 5.0C 434 4.3¢ 4,18¢ 3.62 93,03¢ 4.3C 97,79¢ 4.27 100,70¢
Securities:
Municipal
securities 55C 4.4¢€ 67% 4.3¢ — — — — 1,22¢ 4.4z 1,30:
SBA
guaranteed
loan
participatior
certificates — — — — 114 1.7¢ — — 114 1.7¢ 11E
Total 55C 4.4¢€ 67E 4.3€ 114 1.7¢ — — 1,33¢ 4.2C 1,41¢

Total securitie $ 692 451% $ 1,10¢ 43%% $ 4,30: 3.51% $93,03¢ 4.3(% $99,13¢ 4.22% $102,12¢

39



Sources of Funds

Deposits. At December 31, 2009, our deposits totaled $1.288rh Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.126dy and noninterest-bearing
demand deposits totaled $108.3 million. NOW, sawiagd money market accounts totaled $721.5 millmminterestearing demand depos

at December 31, 2009 included $4.9 million in intdrchecking accounts, such as accounts for Basthieas checks and money orders. At
December 31, 2009, we had $403.6 million of cexifes of deposit outstanding, of which $327.6 orillhad maturities of one year or less.
Although we have a significant portion of our dess shorter-term certificates of deposit, weideat, based on historical experience and our
current pricing strategy, that we will retain arsfgcant portion of these accounts upon maturity.

We originate deposits predominantly from the axghsre our branch offices are located. We rely anfavorable locations, customer service,
competitive pricing, our Internet Branch and refladeposit services such as cash management tot atrd retain these deposits. While we
accept certificates of deposit in excess of the@®Heposit insurance limits and in some casespnayide preferential rates for these
certificates of deposits, we generally do not $iodiach deposits because they are more difficuletain than core deposits and at times are
more costly than brokered deposits.

The following table sets forth the distributiontofal deposit accounts, by account type, for théops indicated.

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate

(Dollars in thousands)

Non-interest bearing deman

Retail $ 28,056 2.3% — % $ 25617 2.45% — % $ 29,93t 2.7&% — %

Commercial 77,27¢ 6.5 — 79,09¢  7.5¢ — 86,62(  7.91 —
Total nor-interest bearin

demanc 105,337  8.94 — 104,71¢  9.9¢ — 116,55¢ 10.6t —

Savings deposil 97,187 8.24 0.51 98,177 9.3t 0.7 106,87(  9.7¢ 0.7¢
Money market accoun 270,58. 22.9¢ 1.6€ 210,857 20.0¢ 2.5¢€ 260,25t 23.7i 4.2¢
Interes-bearing NOW account 284,58 24.1: 0.77 311,88t 29.71 1L5E 282,67( 25.87 242
Certificates of depos 421,64( 35.7¢ 2.6¢ 324,23¢ 30.8¢ 3.4z 328,37 30.0C 4.4¢
Total deposit: $1,179,331 100.0(% $1,049,86! 100.0(% $1,094,72. 100.0(%

The following table sets forth certificates of dejpdy time remaining until maturity at December 2009.

Maturity
3 Months Over 3 to Over 6 to Over 12
or Less 6 Months 12 Months Months Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Certificates of deposit less than $100,! $70,82: $ 62,29¢ $ 76,65/ $52,72( $262,49:
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or m 23,56( 43,82¢ 50,42( 23,33¢ 141,14«
Total certificates of depos $94,38: $106,12( $127,07: $76,05¢ $403,63!
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Borrowings.Our borrowings consist primarily of Federal Homeahdank advances and repurchase agreements. Thweifg table sets forth
information concerning balances and interest ratesur borrowings at the dates and for the periodisated.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at end of ye: $ 50,78¢ $200,35( $ 96,43
Average balance during ye 101,78t 110,03¢ 104,78:
Maximum outstanding at any month € 141,97( 200,35( 139,36¢
Weighted average interest rate at end of 2.44% 1.32% 4.71%
Average interest rate during ye 2.02% 3.3(% 4.64%

At December 31, 2009, we had the ability to boreowadditional $257.9 million under our credit fék with the FHLBC. Furthermore, we
had unpledged securities that could be used toostippexcess of $27.0 million of additional FHLB®rrowings.

At December 31, 2009, we had a pre-approved ovierifégleral funds borrowing capacity of $28.0 milliand a line of credit with the Federal
Reserve Bank of Chicago for $574,000. At Decemlie2809, there were no outstanding federal fundeolongs and there was no
outstanding balance on the line of credit.

Statement of Operating Results for the Years Ende®ecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Net Income

Comparison of Year 2009 to 2008Ve recorded a net loss of $738,000 for the yeaeéimkecember 31, 2009, compared to net loss of $19.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2008. Téelass for 2009 was attributable in substantial fsathe combined impact of an $8.8
million provision for loan losses, a $401,000 pag-impairment loss on our Freddie Mac preferredkstpand a $998,000 pre-tax loss that we
recognized upon the subsequent sale of these Sesuhn addition, we recorded a $2.2 million exg@rcompared to $162,000 in 2008, for
FDIC quarterly and special assessments in 2009ditiee combined effect of the FDIC’s increasestqtiarterly assessment rate, the FDIC’s
imposition of a special assessment against alféusdepository institutions and the full utilizatiof the FDIC assessment credits that we
previously had available to offset or reduce FDl@ugerly assessments. The impact of these itemparsislly offset by a $1.3 million gain
that we recognized on the sale of our merchantgasing operations in 2009. The net loss for 2008 premarily due to a $35.9 million pre-tax
impairment loss that we recorded on our Freddie ptaferred stocks. Our loss per share of commark St year ended December 31, 2009
was $0.04 per share, compared to a loss of $0.98haee for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Comparison of Year 2008 to 200%e recorded a net loss of $19.4 million for theryeaded December 31, 2008, compared to net incdme o
$7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 200i& net loss was primarily due to a $35.9 millioa-tax impairment loss that we recorded
on our Freddie Mac preferred stocks based on derm@ation that the unrealized loss that existé vespect to these securities constituted
an other-thaniemporary impairment following the placement ofdetie Mac into conservatorship. Additional factoffeeting the change in n
income from year to year included a $1.4 million2cc%, decrease in our net interest income, a®#ldn pre-tax loss on the early
extinguishment of borrowings that we recorded inrextion with the prepayment of a $25 million FHLBEEm advance, and a $4.4 million
increase in our provision for loan losses. ThedegBons to net income were offset by a $13.6 olllecrease in income tax expense prim
relating to the impairment loss on our Freddie Meaferred stocks. Our operating results for 2008vfavorably impacted by a $1.4 million
pre-tax gain on the sale of the 32,398 shares &di,Mihc. Class B common stock that we receivedimection with Visa, Inc.’s initial public
offering, and a $1.2 million pre-tax gain on adutiél shares of Visa. Inc. Class B common stockwlee allocated to us in the initial public
offering and are currently held in a litigation esg under Visa Inc.’s retrospective responsibifitgn. The gain recorded on the shares held in
the litigation escrow represents a reduction ofahligation to indemnify Visa USA under the retrestive responsibility plan. Our operating
results for 2007 included a pre-tax charge of $dillon to reflect this indemnification obligatio®@ur loss per share of common stock for year
ended December 31, 2008 was $0.98 per share, cethfzaearnings per share of $0.35 for the year&Bdeember 31, 2007.
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Net Interest Income

Comparison of Year 2009 to 2008\et interest income increased by $1.3 million, @92, to $53.6 million for the year ended Decemlier 3
2009, from $52.3 million for the year ended Decen8ie 2008. Our net interest rate spread improwedre basis point to 3.36% for the year
ended December 31, 2009, from 3.35% for the yede@December 31, 2008. Our net interest marginedsed by 19 basis points to 3.69%
the year ended December 31, 2009, from 3.88% toydar ended December 31, 2008. Our average iEagsng assets increased $102.2
million to $1.451 billion in 2009, from $1.349 hdh in 2008, and our average interest-bearinglligds increased $120.6 million to $1.176
billion in 2009, from $1.055 billion in 2008.

Interest income decreased by $3.9 million, or 5.89%74.0 million for the year ended December IDX from $78.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008. The decrease in inteashie resulted primarily from a 68 basis point dase in the average yield on interest
earning assets to 5.10% for the year ended DeceBih@009, from 5.78% for the year ended DecembePB08. This decrease was partially
offset by a $102.2 million increase in total averégterest-earning assets to $1.451 billion foryaar ended December 31, 2009, from $1.349
billion for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Interest income on loans, the most significantiporof interest income, decreased by $4.8 millmmg.5%, to $69.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009, from $74.0 million for the yeaded December 31, 2008. Interest income on loashshee average yield on loans were
reduced by a net increase of $1.7 million in treeree for uncollected interest that we establigbetbans that were placed on nonaccrual
status during the year ended December 31, 2008.ifitiiease accounts for 34.4% of the decreaseadrest income from loans. In addition, the
average yield on loans decreased 52 basis poiBtd486 for the year ended December 31, 2009, fr@®% for the year ended December 31,
2008. These decreases were partially offset bydeb®aillion, or 2.4%, increase in the average bedanf loans outstanding to $1.271 billion
the year ended December 31, 2009, from $1.24dbiflor the year ended December 31, 2008.

Interest income on securities increased $955,0024 3%, to $4.8 million for the year ended Decengie 2009, from $3.9 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2008. The increase in intarestrie on securities resulted primarily from a $28itlion, or 35.0%, increase in the
average balance of securities to $112.7 milliortfieryear ended December 31, 2009, from $83.5anifibr the year ended December 31,
2008. This increase was patrtially offset by a 3&idpoint decrease in the average yield on seesititi 4.28% for the year ended December 31,
2009, from 4.63% for the year ended December 30820

The FHLBC did not pay dividends on it common statR009 or 2008.

Interest income on interest-bearing deposits iemfimancial institutions increased $7,000, or 6,8845123,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2009, from $116,000 for the year eflmbémber 31, 2008. The increase was primarilytd@e$43.5 million increase in the
average balance of our interest bearing depos#52d million for the year ended December 31, 26@8n $8.5 million for 2008. This
increase was partially offset by a decrease oflEk3s points in the average yield on our interestring deposits to 0.24% for the year ended
December 31, 2009, from 1.37% for the year endezeBéer 31, 2008.

Interest expense decreased by $5.1 million, or%9t6 $20.6 million for the year ended DecemberZ2D9, from $25.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008. The decrease was duereaded interest expense on deposits and borrowings

Interest expense on deposits decreased by $3i6mitir 16.0%, to $18.5 million for the year end@ecember 31, 2009, from $22.0 million
the year ended December 31, 2008. The decreastemest expense on deposits was primarily duebtb lzasis point decrease in the average
rates paid on deposits, partially offset by a $828illion, or 13.6%, net increase in the averadarze of deposits. The average cost of def.
was 1.72% for the year ended December 31, 2009 arad to 2.33% for the year ended December 31,.Z0G8average rate on savings
accounts decreased 22 basis points to 0.51% fré&%€.0n a year over year basis, the average cosboéy market accounts decreased 90
basis points to 1.66%, from 2.56%, the average @odstOW accounts decreased 78 basis points to Q.7o¥ 1.55%, and the average cost of
certificates of deposit decreased 73 basis pan2s&9% from 3.42%. The average balances of morskehaccounts increased $59.7 million,
or 28.3%, and the average balance of certificateeposit increased $97.4 million, or 30.0%, fae frear ended December 31, 2009. These
increases were partially offset by a decreasedratierage balances of NOW accounts of $27.3 mjltoi8.8%, and a decrease in the average
balances of savings accounts of $984,000, or 1d¥%hé year ended December 31, 2009.
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Interest expense on borrowings decreased by $1li6mbr 43.4%, to $2.1 million for the year endedcember 31, 2009, from $3.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2008. This decreasalue in substantial part to a 128 basis p@otahse in the average cost of such
borrowings to 2.02% for the year ended DecembeBQ9, from 3.30% for the year ended December @@82and a decrease in the average
balance of borrowings of $8.3 million, or 7.5% %b01.8 million at December 31, 2009, from $110.0iom at December 31, 2008.

Comparison of Year 2008 to 200Net interest income decreased by $1.4 million,.6%&, to $52.3 million for the year ended Decemlder 3
2008, from $53.6 million for the year ended Decengie 2007. Our net interest rate spread increbgetd basis points to 3.35% for the year
ended December 31, 2008, from 2.94% for the yede@mecember 31, 2007. Our net interest margireasad by 10 basis points to 3.88% for
the year ended December 31, 2008, from 3.78% toydar ended December 31, 2007. Our average itEaasng assets decreased $69.0
million to $1.349 billion in 2008, from $1.418 bdh in 2007, and our average interest-bearinglltéds decreased $28.0 million to $1.055
billion in 2008, from $1.083 billion in 2007.

Interest income decreased by $14.0 million, or 45.® $78.0 million for the year ended December2808, from $92.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007. The decrease in inteeahie resulted primarily from a $69.0 million dexse in total average interest-earning
assets to $1.349 billion for the year ended Decerdbg2008, from $1.418 billion for the year endetember 31, 2007, and a 70 basis point
decrease in the average yield on interest earrssgtsito 5.78% for the year ended December 31, 2@08 6.48% for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

Interest income on loans decreased by $11.6 mjlboi3.6%, to $74.0 million for the year ended &maber 31, 2008, from $85.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2007. The decreastemest income on loans resulted primarily fromftdbésis point decrease in the average
yield on loans to 5.96% for the year ended DecerBheR008, from 6.60% for the year ended DecembeB307, and a $55.8 million, or 4.2
decrease in the average balance of loans outstata$il.242 billion for the year ended December2B08, from $1.297 billion for the year
ended December 31, 2007.

Interest income on securities decreased $1.2 mjlbo 23.0%, to $3.9 million for the year ended &mber 31, 2008, from $5.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007. The decrease ieshiacome from securities was due in substansidltp Freddie Me's suspension of
dividends on its preferred stocks beginning intttied quarter of 2008. Interest income for the yeatled December 31, 2007 included $2.4
million in dividends on our investment in Freddi@ad/preferred stock, compared to $1.0 million in&00

Income from cash dividends on our FHLBC commonlstotaled $359,000 for the year ended Decembe2@17. The FHLBC suspended
dividends on its common stock beginning in the flouarter of 2007, and did not pay any dividemd2008.

Interest income on interest-bearing deposits ierofinancial institutions decreased $853,000, 00%il to $84,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2008, from $937,000 for the year efdlmbémber 31, 2007. The decrease was primariljalaeb13.4 million decrease in the
average balance of our interest bearing depostd @ million for the year ended December 31, 20@8n $18.2 million for the same period in
2007, and a decrease in the average yield on terest-bearing deposits to 1.72% for the year eilgember 31, 2008, from 5.14% for the
year ended December 31, 2007, due to declining ehamterest rate:

Interest expense decreased by $12.6 million, d¥?83to $25.7 million for the year ended December28D8, from $38.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007. The decrease was duereaded interest expense on deposits and borrowings
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Interest expense on deposits decreased by $11lidrmdr 34.1%, to $22.0 million for the year end@dcember 31, 2008, from $33.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2007. The decieasterest expense on deposits was primarily due 109 basis point decrease in the
average rates paid on deposits, and a $33.0 mibioB.4%, net decrease in the average balancepafsits. The average balance of money
market accounts decreased $49.4 million, or 19f6%¢he year ended December 31, 2008, due primeribur decision to encourage, through
pricing changes, the migration of indexed moneyk®accounts to other account types. The averalged®s of savings accounts decreased
$8.7 million, or 8.1%, and the average balance=dificates of deposit decreased $4.1 million1 8%, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2008. These decreases were partitdt by a $29.2 million, or 10.3%, increase in #verage balance of NOW accounts. The
average cost of deposits was 2.33% for the yeazdeBecember 31, 2008, compared to 3.42% for thegreded December 31, 2007. The
average rate on savings accounts decreased fileeduasts to 0.73% from 0.78%. On a year over Yemis, the average cost of money market
accounts decreased 169 basis points to 2.56%,4r2&%, the average cost of NOW accounts decreasbdss points to 1.55%, from 2.42%,
and the average cost of certificates of depositedamed 106 basis points to 3.42% from 4.48%.

Interest expense on borrowings decreased by $1lidmr 25.2%, to $3.6 million for the year endedcember 31, 2008, from $4.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2007. This decrgasealue in principal part to a 134 basis pointease in the average cost of such
borrowings to 3.30% for the year ended DecembeB28, from 4.64% for the year ended December 8Q7 2This decrease in the average
cost of borrowings was partially offset by a $5.®ion, or 5.0%, increase in the average balanckeasfowings to $110.0 million at
December 31, 2008, from $104.8 million at Decen@ier2007.
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Average Balance Sheets

The following table sets forth average balance tshewerage yields and costs, and certain otherrirdtion for the periods indicated. No tax-
equivalent yield adjustments were made, as thetedfethese adjustments would not be material. Agerbalances are daily average balances.
Nonaccrual loans were included in the computatiosverage balances, but have been reflected itathie as loans carrying a zero yield. ~
yields set forth below include the effect of deéelfees and expenses, discounts and premiums,gsgrelccounting adjustments that
amortized or accreted to interest income or expense

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Average Average Average
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
Balance Interest  Yield/Rate Balance Interest  Yield/Rate Balance Interest  Yield/Rate

(Dollars in thousands)

Interest-earning Assets:

Loans $1,271,02.  $69,17( 5.4 $1,241,511 $73,98: 5.9€% $1,297,29°  $85,60! 6.6(%
Securities 112,64! 4,81¢ 4.2¢ 83,45¢ 3,861 4.63 86,94¢ 5,05¢ 5.82
Stock in FHLBC 15,59¢ — — 15,59¢ — — 15,59¢ 35¢ 2.3C
Other 52,03: 122 0.24 8,48 11€ 1.37 18,24 937 5.14
Total interest-earning
assets 1,451,29 74,10¢  5.11C 1,349,05! 77,96( 5.7¢ 1,418,08: 91,95:! 6.4¢
Noninteres-earning asse! 115,87¢ 113,95 114,66¢
Total asset $1,567,17! $1,463,01! $1,532,75!
Interest-bearing Liabilities:
Savings deposil $ 97,18 49t 051 $ 98,17: 71E 0.7 $ 106,87( 833 0.7¢
Money market accoun 270,58: 4,50: 1.6€ 210,85 5,391 2.5¢€ 260,25¢ 11,072 4.2¢
NOW account: 284,58 2,17¢ 0.77 311,88t 4,84¢ 1.5t 282,67( 6,837 2.4z
Certificates of depos 421,64( 11,32t 2.6€ 324,23 11,075 3.4z 328,37: 14,70 4.4¢
Total deposit: 1,073,99 18,50: 1.72 945,15! 22,03 2.3 978,16 33,44¢ 3.4z
Borrowings 101,78! 2,05¢ 2.02 110,03¢ 3,63¢ 3.3C 104,78: 4,85¢ 4.64
Total interes-bearing
liabilities 1,175,77 20,55’ 1.78 1,055,19: 25,66 245 1,082,94 38,30¢ 3.54
Noninteres-bearing deposit 105,33° 104,71¢ 116,55¢
Noninteres-bearing liabilities 19,28¢ 19,44 21,83:
Total liabilities 1,300,40: 1,179,35! 1,221,33i
Equity 266,77: 283,66( 311,42
Total liabilities anc
equity $1,567,17! $1,463,01! $1,532,75!
Net interest incom $53,55: $52,29: $53,64¢
Net interest rate spread ( 3.36% 3.35% 2.92%
Net interes-earning assets ((  $ 275,52: $ 293,86t $ 335,13¢
Net interest margin (¢ 3.6% 3.88% 3.7¢%

Ratio of interes-earning asse!
to interes-bearing liabilities 123.4% 127.8"% 130.9%

(1) Netinterest rate spread represents the differbateeen the yield on average inte-earning assets and the cost of average in-
bearing liabilities

(2) Netinteres-earning assets represents total int-earning assets less total inte-bearing liabilities

(3) Netinterest margin represents net interest incdivided by average total inter-earning asset:
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the dollar amountltdrrges in interest income and interest expengdomajor categories of our interestening
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Informai®provided for each category of interest-earrisgets and interest-bearing liabilities with
respect to changes attributable to changes in v@l{iie., changes in average balances multipliethéyrior-period average rate), and changes
attributable to rate (i.e., changes in averagematitiplied by prior-period average balances). porposes of this table, changes attributable to
both rate and volume that cannot be segregatedbdeereallocated proportionately to the change dweltume and the change due to rate.

Years Ended December 31

2009 vs. 2008 2008 vs. 2007
Increase (Decrease) Due t In-lt;(r)gse Increase (Decrease) Due t In-lc;(r)gse
Volume Rate (Decrease Volume Rate (Decrease
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets
Loans $ 1,72t $ (6,53f) $(4,81Y) $(3,57) $ (8,047) $(11,619
Securities 1,26¢ (311) 95¢ (19€) (999) (2,195
Stock in FHLBC — — — — (359 (359
Other 171 (164) 7 (34€) (475) (827)
Total interes-earning asse! 3,162 (7,019 (3,85)) (4,113 (9,880 (13,999
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings deposil @) (213) (220) (65) (53 (11¢)
Money market accoun 1,28¢ (2,189 (8949 (2,832 (3,849 (5,675
NOW account: (392 (2,274 (2,66¢€) 65C (2,649 (1,999
Certificates of depos 2,917 (2,669 24¢€ (183) (3,449 (3,62¢€)
Borrowings (255) (1,329 (1,57 232 (1,457 (1,229
Total interes-bearing liabilities 3,541 (8,657) (5,110 (1,196 (11,44) (12,63)
Change in net interest incor $ (38 $ 1644 $125¢ $(291) $ 1561 §$ (1,356

Provision for Loan Losses

We establish provisions for loan losses, whichcir@rged to operations in order to maintain thenadloce for loan losses at a level we consider
necessary to absorb probable incurred credit ldase loan portfolio. In determining the leveltbk allowance for loan losses, we consider
past and current loss experience, evaluationsabiestate collateral, current economic conditimedyme and type of lending, adverse situat
that may affect a borrower’s ability to repay arl@nd the levels of nonperforming and other classibans. The amount of the allowance is
based on estimates and the ultimate losses mayfreamnysuch estimates as more information becomasadole or later events change. We
assess the allowance for loan losses on a quabtasig and make provisions for loan losses in daleraintain the allowance.

Comparison of Year 2009 to 2008Ve recorded a provision for loan losses of $8.8onilfor the year ended December 31, 2009, compiared
a provision for loan losses of $5.1 million for tywar ended December 31, 2008. The 2009 provisioloén losses reflects a $2.4 million
increase in the specific portion of the allowanzeldan losses that we allocate to impaired loarfl.5 million increase in the general portion
of the allowance for loan losses, and $4.9 miliionet charge offs. We increased the general podfdhe allowance by $1.5 million based on
the continued deterioration in national and loaar®mic risk factors included in our model for detaing the proper level of general reser

Net loan charc-offs for 2009 were $4.9 million, or 0.39% of avgedoans, compared to $1.4 million, or 0.11% ofrage loans, in 2008. Our
allowance for loan losses was $18.6 million, orl¥%5of total loans, at December 31, 2009, compayé&d 4.7 million, or 1.15% of total loans,
at December 31, 2008. The allowance for loan losgg®sented 37.6% of nonperforming loans at Deee®b, 2009. To the best of our
knowledge, we have recorded all losses that ate frabable and reasonable to estimate for eachtieg@eriod.
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Comparison of Year 2008 to 200%e recorded a provision for loan losses of $5.lionilfor the year ended December 31, 2008, compiared
a provision for loan losses of $697,000 for therysraded December 31, 2007. The 2008 provisiondi@n losses reflects a $1.8 million incre

in the general portion of the allowance for loassles, a $1.9 million increase in the specific parbf the allowance for loan losses that we
allocate to impaired loans, and $1.4 million in dearge offs. Of the net $1.9 million increasehe specific allocations to impaired loans, $1.1
million relates to the loan obligations of the éstaf a deceased construction loan borrower and 800 relates to two healthcare-related real
estate loans.

Despite the overall lower credit risk profile amédit exposures of our loan portfolio, we increadezigeneral portion of the allowance by $1.8
million based on adverse changes to the natiordhlanal economic data that we use in our modeti&termining the proper level of general
reserves.

Net loan charc-offs for 2008 were $1.4 million, or 0.11% of avgedoans, compared to $268,000, or 0.02% of avdoeges, in 2007. Our
allowance for loan losses was $14.7 million, ob5%lof total loans, at December 31, 2008, comparyé&d 1.1 million, or 0.87% of total loans,
at December 31, 2007. The allowance for loan losgg®sented 107.97% of nonperforming loans at Déee 31, 2008, and 91.65% of
nonperforming loans at December 31, 2007. To tis¢ dfeour knowledge, we have recorded all lossasate both probable and reasonable to
estimate for each reporting period.

Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31 Change
2009 2008 2007 2009/200: 2008/200
(Dollars in thousands)

Noninterest Income:

Deposit service charges and fi $3,36: $ 3,571 $3,60¢ $ (20 $ (39
Other fee incom 1,81¢ 1,944 1,93¢ (12¢) 5
Insurance commissions and annuities inct 71t 794 1,007 (79 (213)
Gain on sale of loans, n 69¢ 11¢ 12¢€ 581 (8)
Gain (loss) on sales of securit (98¢) 1,38t 39¢ (2,379 98¢
Gain on unredeemed VISA sto — 1,24(C — (1,240 1,24(C
Gain (loss) on disposition of premises and equigr (40 (302 9 262 (311
Loan servicing fee 653 771 811 (119 (40
Amortization and impairment of servicing ass (44¢) (529 (39¢) 78 (12¢)
Earnings (loss) on bank owned life insura (20 58€ 58t (60€) 1
Other 1,481 83t 1,57¢ 652 (749

Total noninterest incom $7,23¢ $10,41¢ $9,66¢ $(3,179 $ 75%

Comparison of Year 2009 to 200®ur noninterest income decreased by $3.2 millioa@ million for the year ended December 31, 2009,
from $10.4 million for the year ended DecemberZ108. Our noninterest income for 2009 included 883300 pre-tax loss relating to the sale
of our Freddie Mac preferred stocks, compared t6 $llion in pre-tax gains relating to the redeehaed unredeemed shares of Visa, Inc.
Class B common stock that were allocated to ukérirtitial public offering that Visa, Inc. condudta March of 2008. Additional factors
affecting the change in noninterest income fronr yegear included a $208,000, or 5.8%, decreaskejposit service charges and fees to $3.3
million, from $3.6 million for 2008. Other fee ino® decreased $128,000, or 6.6%, to $1.8 milliompared to $1.9 million for 2008. Income
from insurance commissions and annuities decreag&d9,000, or 10.0%, to $715,000 for the year dridecember 31, 2009, compared to
$794,000 for 2008, due to decreased sales acttwajns on sale of loans increased by $581,000%8,$60, compared to $118,000 for 2008.
We recognized a net loss of $40,000 on the dispagiif premises and equipment during 2009, compgrednet loss of $302,000 in 2008.
Loan servicing fees decreased $118,000, or 158%6%3,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008 771,000 for 2008. Mortgage
servicing rights amortization expense increasedGiBor 16.4%, to $482,000 for the year ended DéeerB1, 2009, compared to $414,00(
2008. We recorded a reserve recovery of $36,008uomortgage servicing rights in 2009, compared $110,000 reserve that we recordec
2008. Bank-owned life insurance produced a losg26f000 for 2009, compared to income of $586,00@008, due to our decision to
temporarily move investable policy funds into a lgiglding money market sub-account at the end 6828 a means of protecting the
underlying value of the policy. Other income tota$1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2@08pared to $835,000 for 2008, due
primarily to the recording of a $1.3 million gain the sale of our merchant processing operatiotigifiourth quarter of 2009.

47



Comparison of Year 2008 to 200Dur noninterest income increased by $753,000 to4sddllion for the year ended December 31, 200&
$9.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003ome from insurance commissions and annuitiesedsed by $213,000, or 21.2%, to
$794,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008, amrdpgo $1.0 million for 2007, due to decreasedssattivity. Noninterest income for
2008 included $2.6 million in pre-tax gains relgtio the redeemed and unredeemed shares of VisaCless B common stock that were
allocated to us in the initial public offering théisa, Inc. conducted in March of 2008. Gains de sé securities amounted to $399,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2007. We recognized a@BD2gt loss on the disposition of premises andpegent during 2008, compared t
$9,000 net gain in 2007. Loan servicing fees dea@&$40,000, or 4.9%, to $771,000 for the year @mkeember 31, 2008, from $811,000 for
2007. Mortgage servicing rights amortization exgeinsreased $18,000 or 4.6%, to $414,000 for tlae grded December 31, 2009, compared
to $396,000 for the same period in 2008. We reabed$110,000 valuation reserve for the year endszemMber 31, 2008 based on accelere
prepayment speeds. No mortgage servicing rightsatiahn reserve was established for 2007. Othemiectotaled $835,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2008, compared to $1.6 million for2@ue in substantial part to the decrease initidarance agency commissions and fees
that resulted from the sale of our title insuraagency business in March of 2008.

Noninterest Expense

Years Ended December 31 Change
2009 2008 2007 2009/200¢ 2008/200
(Dollars in thousands)

Noninterest Expense:

Compensation and benef $29,04¢ $30,53t $32,27¢ $ (1,489 $(1,74)
Office occupancy and equipme 6,84t 6,87 5,94¢ (29 92t
Advertising and public relatior 1,321 1,361 1,412 (40) (52)
Information technolog 3,63 3,66% 3,241 (25) 421
Supplies, telephone and post: 1,81¢ 2,07(C 2,10¢ (251 (39
Amortization of intangible: 1,69( 1,78¢ 1,87¢ (94) (95
Operations of real estate own 1,27: 434 17 83¢ 417
Visa litigation — — 1,24( — (1,240
Loss on impairment of securiti 401  35,91¢ — (35,519 35,91¢
Loss on early extinguishment of borrowir — 1,97¢ — (1,975 1,97¢
FDIC insurance premiurr 2,22 162 13z 2,06 29
Other 4,474 4,28( 4,24: 194 37

Total noninterest expen: $52,73. $89,05¢ $52,49¢ $(36,32) $36,55"

Comparison of Year 2009 to 200&or the year ended December 31, 2009, nonintexpsinee decreased by $36.3 million, or 40.8%, ta®52
million, from $89.1 million for the year ended Dedeer 31, 2008. Noninterest expense for 2008 inclw&d$35.9 million pre-tax impairment
loss that we recorded on our holdings of Freddie ptaferred stocks and a $2.0 million pre-tax egpethat we recorded in connection with
the prepayment of a $25 million FHLBC term advarfdditional factors affecting the change in noniett expense from year to year inclu

a $1.5 million, or 4.9%, decrease in compensatigerse to $29.0 million for the year ended Decer8tie2009, from $30.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2008. The decrease was gdad to a decrease of 21 -time equivalent employees from 393 in 2008 to Bi72
20009, resulting from the implementation of functbataffing reviews. Expense relating to equitydthsompensation and benefits totaled $3.0
million in 2009, compared to $4.6 million during@ Supplies, telephone and postage expenses dedr251,000, or 12.1%, to $1.8 milli
and intangible amortization expense decreased #)0$0. These expense reductions were partialleblg an increase in our net expense
from real estate owned operations to $1.3 millionthe year ended December 31, 2009, compared3i,$d0 for 2008. Net operations from
real estate owned for the current year include#0 in write-downs or losses on real estate owoaahpared to $289,000 in write-downs or
losses in 2008. Our expense for FDIC deposit imagdncreased to $2.2 million during the year eridedember 31, 2009, compared to
$162,000 during the same period of 2008. The imaréaour expense for FDIC deposit insurance wastalthe combined effect of the FDIC’s
increase in its quarterly assessment rate, the BMgposition of a special assessment againshsillried depository institutions and the full
utilization of the FDIC assessment credits thafpneviously had available to offset or reduce FDl@rgerly assessments. Other expenses
increased by $194,000, or 4.5%, to $4.5 millio2@09.
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Comparison of Year 2008 to 200For the year ended December 31, 2008, nonintexpsinse increased by $36.6 million, or 69.6%, to.$89
million, from $52.5 million for the year ended Detler 31, 2007. The increase was primarily due®8%:9 million pre-tax impairment loss
that we recorded on our holdings of Freddie Madegpred stocks and a $2.0 million pre-tax expensaé e recorded in connection with the
prepayment of a $25 million FHLBC term advance. @ensation expense decreased by $1.7 million, 66 5td $30.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008, from $32.3 million forythar ended December 31, 2007. The decrease was gad to a decrease of 32 full time
equivalent employees from 425 in 2007 to 393 in&08sulting from the implementation of functios#ffing reviews and the sale of our title
insurance agency business. Expense relating toyelosed compensation and benefits totaled $41&mih 2008, compared to $5.1 million
during 2007. Occupancy and equipment increased,80@50r 15.5%, to $6.9 million for 2008, from t6.$ million for 2007, due in substant
part to the write-off of $277,000 in feasibility dudesign costs related to a possible remodelingggrrand repair work performed at several
branches, and $179,000 related to the establishofientr fully automated Express Branch facilitiesformation technology expenses incree
by $421,000, or 13.0%, to $3.7 million for 2008mgmared to $3.2 million for 2007, primarily due twieased system maintenance costs and
software upgrades. Intangible amortization expeleseeased by $95,000, or 5.1% to $1.8 million ieryear ended December 31, 2008. Net
expense from real estate owned operations was @34or the year ended December 31, 2008, compargdl7,000 for the same period in
2007. Net operations from real estate owned focthveent year included $289,000 in write-downsosisks on real estate owned, compared to
none in 2007. Other expenses increased by $3700@09%, to $4.3 million in 2008.

Income Tax Expense

Comparison of Year 2009 to 200&or the year ended December 31, 2009, we recoml@ttame tax benefit of $13,000, compared to an
income tax benefit of $12.0 million for the yeaded December 31, 2008. For 2009, the differenoadrt the GAAP basis (fair market value
at the date of grant) and the tax basis (fair mar&kie at the date of vesting) of equity basedmemsation granted in prior years reduced our
income tax benefit. The income tax benefit for 20@& primarily due to the impairment loss that eeorded on our Freddie Mac preferred
stocks.

Comparison of Year 2008 to 200For the year ended December 31, 2008, we recom@ttame tax benefit of $12.0 million, compared to
income tax expense of $3.0 million for the yearesh®ecember 31, 2007, primarily due to the impaiiness that we recorded on our Freddie
Mac preferred stocks in 2008. The effective tar fat 2007 was 29.3%. Items that caused the effetdix rate to be less than the statutory tax
rate included the dividends received deductionrefepred stock dividends received, income earnedamk owned life insurance and interest
income on municipal bonds and municipal loans, eespely.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements and related notes of tragany have been prepared in accordance with attagurinciples generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”). GAAP gendyakquires the measurement of financial positind aperating results in terms of
historical dollars without consideration for chaage the relative purchasing power of money oveetdue to inflation. The impact of inflatic
if any, is reflected in the increased cost of goerations. Unlike industrial companies, our asaatsliabilities are primarily monetary in natu
As a result, changes in market interest rates hayreater impact on performance than the effedisflation.

Management of Interest Rate Risk

Qualitative AnalysisA significant form of market risk is interest ratek. Interest rate risk results from timing di#eices in the maturity or
repricing of our assets, liabilities and off balarsheet contracts.€., forward loan commitments), the effect of loan psgpants and deposit
withdrawals, the difference in the behavior of lerdand funding rates arising from the use of défe indices and “yield curve risk” arising
from changing rate relationships across the spectiumaturities for constant or variable credikrisvestments. In addition to directly
affecting net interest income, changes in marketr@st rates can also affect the amount of new doigmations, the ability of borrowers to
repay variable rate loans, the volume of loan pyeyents and refinancings, the carrying value of atweent securities classified as available-
for-sale and the flow and mix of deposits.
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The general objective of our interest rate risk aggament is to determine the appropriate levelstf given our business strategy and then
manage that risk in a manner that is consistett auit policy to reduce, to the extent possible edqgosure of our net interest income to
changes in market interest rates. Our Asset/Lighilianagement Committee (“ALCQO”), which consistsceftain members of senior
management, evaluates the interest rate risk inhareertain assets and liabilities, our operagngironment and capital and liquidity
requirements, and modifies our lending, investing deposit gathering strategies accordingly. Thar8of Directors’ Asset/Liability
Management Committee then reviews the ALCO’s didiviand strategies, the effect of those strategiesur net interest margin, and the
effect that changes in market interest rates whalte on the economic value of our loan and seeangortfolios as well as the intrinsic valu
our deposits and borrowings, and reports to tHeBfodrd of Directors.

We actively evaluate interest rate risk in conrttvith our lending, investing and deposit actestiln an effort to better manage interest-rate
risk, we have de-emphasized the origination residiemortgage loans, and have increased our empbadhe origination of nonresidential

real estate loans, multi-family mortgage loans, carcial loans and commercial leases. In additiepedding on market interest rates and our
capital and liquidity position, we generally sdll@ a portion of our longer-term, fixed-rate msntial loans, usually on a servicing-retained
basis. Further, we primarily invest in shorter-diana securities, which generally have lower yietd@snpared to longer-term investments.
Shortening the average maturity of our interestiegrassets by increasing our investments in shiteten loans and securities, as well as loans
with variable rates of interest, helps to bettetalnahe maturities and interest rates of our assmidiabilities, thereby reducing the exposure of
our net interest income to changes in market isteees. Finally, we have classified all of ourdgtment portfolio as available-fsgle so as
provide flexibility in liquidity management.

We utilize a combination of analyses to monitor Baak’s exposure to changes in interest rates.eEbaomic value of equity analysis is a
model that estimates the change in net portfolloes@'NPV”) over a range of interest rate scenariBYV is the discounted present value of
expected cash flows from assets, liabilities aricbafance sheet contracts. In calculating chang®fiV, we assume estimated loan
prepayment rates, reinvestment rates and depasiydates that seem most likely based on histogxpérience during prior interest rate
changes.

Our net interest income analysis utilizes the diat@ved from the dynamic GAP analysis, describddweand applies several additional
elements, including actual interest rate indicesmargins, contractual limitations such as interat floors and caps and the US Treasury
yield curve as of the balance sheet date. In anfditve apply consistent parallel yield curve sHiftsboth directions) to determine possi
changes in net interest income if the theoretiggtycurve shifts occurred instantaneously. Nedriest income analysis also adjusts the dyn
GAP repricing analysis based on changes in prepatyrates resulting from the parallel yield curvétsh

Our dynamic GAP analysis determines the relatiartze between the repricing of assets and liadslitiver multiple periods of time (ranging
from overnight to five years). Dynamic GAP analyisisludes expected cash flows from loans and mgedzsacked securities, applying
prepayment rates based on the differential betwleecurrent interest rate and the market inteegstfor each loan and security type. This
analysis identifies mismatches in the timing ofeasad liability repricing but does not necessapilgvide an accurate indicator of interest rate
risk because it omits the factors incorporated thonet interest income analysis.

50



Quantitative AnalysisThe following table sets forth, as of DecemberZ&1Q9, the estimated changes in the Bank’s NPV am¢hterest

income that would result from the designated irnstagous parallel shift in the US Treasury yieldveutComputations of prospective effects of
hypothetical interest rate changes are based ormus assumptions including relative levels of ratinkterest rates, loan prepayments and
deposit decay, and should not be relied upon asdtide of actual results.

Decrease in

Estimated Increase Estimated Net

(decrease) in NPV Interest Income
Change in Interest Rates (basis points) Amount Percent Amount Perceni
+400 $ 9,241 38%  $(3,94)  (7.29%
+300 6,677 2.7€ (2,94)  (5.42)
+200 4,65( 1.92 (2,069  (3.80
+100 2,94: 1.2z (1,076  (1.99)

0 — — — —

The Company has opted not to include an estimata flecrease in rates at December 31, 2009 asshks are not relevant given the current
targeted fed funds rate of the Federal Open Ma&ketmittee. The table set forth above indicatesah&8tecember 31, 2009, in the event of an
immediate 200 basis point increase in interessrabe Bank would be expected to experience a lifizeéase in NPV and a $2.1 million
decrease in net interest income. This data doesefiett any actions that we may undertake in respdo changes in interest rates, such as
changes in rates paid on certain deposit accoastsdoon local competitive factors, which could padihe actual impact on NPV and net
interest income, if any.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodolaged in the above interest rate risk measuremiludeling changes in NPV and net
interest income requires that we make certain agsans that may or may not reflect the manner ifciactual yields and costs respond to
changes in market interest rates. The NPV andntetest income table presented above assume$éhadmposition of our interest-rate-
sensitive assets and liabilities existing at thgiti@ing of a period remains constant over the pkebieing measured and, accordingly, the data
does not reflect any actions that we may underitakesponse to changes in interest rates, suchagyes in rates paid on certain deposit
accounts based on local competitive factors. Thietalso assumes that a particular change in sttesiges is reflected uniformly across the
yield curve regardless of the duration to matusityhe repricing characteristics of specific assets liabilities. Accordingly, although the NF
and net interest income table provides an indicadioour sensitivity to interest rate changes padicular point in time, such measurements
not intended to and do not provide a precise fatokthe effect of changes in market interestsrate our net interest income and will differ
from actual results.

Liquidity Management

Liquidity Management- Bank. The overall objective of our liquidity managemento ensure the availability of sufficient cashdario meet
all financial commitments and to take advantagmweéstment opportunities. We manage liquidity idexrto meet deposit withdrawals on
demand or at contractual maturity, to repay borngsias they mature, and to fund new loans and timeggs as opportunities arise.

Our primary sources of funds are deposits, prin@pd interest payments on loans and securitiek, tara lesser extent, wholesale borrowings,
the proceeds from maturing securities and shomt-iavestments, and the proceeds from the salesaafland securities. The scheduled
amortization of loans and securities, as well as@eds from borrowings, are predictable sourcdésrafs. Other funding sources, however,
such as deposit inflows, mortgage prepayments arthage loan sales are greatly influenced by manitetest rates, economic conditions and
competition.

Our cash flows are derived from operating actigitiavesting activities and financing activitiesraported in the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows in our Consolidated Financial Statemédts primary investing activities are the originatfor investment or sale of one-to-four
family residential mortgage loans, the originatfioninvestment of multi-family mortgage, nonresitlehreal estate, commercial leases,
construction and land, and commercial loans angbtinehase of investment securities and mortgagkeobsecurities. During the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, our loans otiginfr sale totaled $40.8 million, $23.4 millionda$26.6 million, respectively. During t!
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007oans briginated for investment totaled $796.3 omlli$818.7 million and $752.8 millio
respectively. Purchases of loans totaled $19.4anjl$12.7 million and $3.8 million for the yeansded December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. There were no purchases of secufaiethe years ended December 31, 2009 and 2007haeed to $103.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008.
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These activities were funded primarily by principgbayments on loans and securities, and the §&dars and securities. During the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, princpalyments on loans totaled $852.1 million, $81GI6am and $807.7 million,

respectively. During the years ended December @19,22008 and 2007, principal repayments on seéesitibtaled $22.7 million, $9.1 million
and $5.9 million, respectively. During the yeardesh December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, proceedsnfraturities on securities totaled $1.9
million, $16.1 million and $46.7 million, respeatly. During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008007, the proceeds from the sale of
loans totaled $42.4 million, $22.8 million and $2&nillion, respectively. In addition, during theayeended December 31, 2007 we securitized
$23.5 million of conforming adjustable-rate resitd@mmortgage loans.

Loan origination commitments totaled $11.2 millianDecember 31, 2009, and consisted of $2.3 mibhiviixed-rate loans and $8.9 million of
adjustable-rate loans. Unused lines of credit aandby letters of credit granted to customers ¢ot&1149.8 million and $2.2 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2009. At DecembeRB@9, commitments to sell mortgages totaled $illiom

Deposit flows are generally affected by the leiaharket interest rates, the interest rates anerdérms and conditions on deposit products
offered by our banking competitors, and other fexctéWe had net deposit increase of $163.5 millmrilie year ended December 31, 2009,
compared to net outflows of $3.8 million and $5@illion for the years ended December 31, 2008 &}V 2respectively. At times during
recent periods, we have not actively competed ifgindr cost deposit accounts, including certificatbdeposit, choosing instead to fund loan
growth from the loan and lease repayments. Ceatdig of deposit that are scheduled to mature iryeaeor less from December 31, 2009
totaled $327.6 million. Based upon prior experieand our current pricing strategy, we believe thatwill retain a significant portion of these
deposits upon their maturities.

We anticipate that we will have sufficient fundsaéable to meet current loan commitments and lofasredit and maturing certificates of
deposit that are not renewed or extended. We ginezenain fully invested and utilize additionalsoes of funds through FHLBC advances,
of which $43.6 million were outstanding at Decem®&r 2009. At December 31, 2009 we had the alidityorrow an additional $257.9 milli
under our credit facilities with the FHLBC. Furthesre, we have unpledged securities that could bd tssupport borrowings in excess of
$27.0 million. Finally, at December 31, 2009 we laadilable pre-approved overnight federal fundsdwwing lines of $28.0 million and a line
of credit available with the Federal Reserve Bah&lucago of $574,000. At December 31, 2009, these no outstanding balance on these
credit lines.

We minimize the funds required to originate ondetor family residential mortgage loans in two wawe sell in the secondary market
virtually all of our eligible fixed-rate one-to-fodiamily residential mortgage loans. From timeitod, we also securitize the conforming
adjustable-rate one-to-four family residential gage loans that we originate and hold the secsinitie receive in exchange. The resulting
mortgage-backed securities that we retain on olamnica sheet can be sold more readily to meet quidlity or interest rate management needs.
Because the securities carry a lower risk-weightivegn the underlying loans, the securitizatione &sver our regulatory capital requirements.
During 2009, we did not securitize any loans.

Liquidity Management- Company.The liquidity needs of the Company on an unconstdid basis consist primarily of operating expenses,
dividends to stockholders and stock repurchases pfimary sources of liquidity for the Company emtty are $25.8 million of cash and cash
equivalents and periodic cash dividends from thekBa

Under the rules of the OTS, the Bank is not peeditb pay dividends on its capital stock to the @any, its sole stockholder, if the dividend
would reduce the Bank’s stockholder’s equity betbe amount of the liquidation account establisimedonnection with the Company’s
mutual-to-stock conversion. The Bank may pay dintttewithout the approval of the OTS only if the Baneets its applicable regulatory
capital requirements before and after the paymetiteodividends and its total dividends do not extés net income to date over the calendar
year in which the dividend is paid plus retainetlineome over the preceding two years. The OT Sdisasetion to prohibit permissible capi
distributions on general safety and soundness gi®oand must be given 30 days advance notice ofpital distributions from the Bank to the
Company, including dividends.
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During 2009, we used $2.5 million of existing castd cash equivalents to repurchase shares of aunoa stock and $6.0 million of existing
cash and cash equivalents to pay cash dividenalsrtstockholders.

As of December 31, 2009, we were not aware of amop trends, events or uncertainties that had oe weasonably likely to have a material
impact on our liquidity. As of December 31, 200% had no other material commitments for capitakexfitures.

Capital Management

Capital Management — BanKThe overall objectives of our capital managemeettarensure the availability of sufficient capi@lsupport

loan, deposit and other asset and liability groeghortunities and to maintain capital to absortowegeen losses or write-downs that are
inherent in the business risks associated witherbmking industry. We seek to balance the neeldifver capital levels to address such
unforeseen risks and the goal to achieve an adegetatrn on the capital invested by our stockhalder

The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requirate@dministered by the federal banking agenciaidurfé to meet minimum capital
requirements can initiate certain mandatory, argsipdy additional discretionary, actions by the GW&, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the Bankfinancial statements. Under capital adequacysjinies and the regulatory framework for prompt eoctive action
the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines ifnatlve quantitative measures of the Bank’s asdetsilities, and certain off-balance-sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accountingtipes. The Banls capital amounts and classification are also stibgequalitative judgmen
by regulators about components, risk weightingd, @her factors.

The prompt corrective action regulations provide felassifications, including well capitalized, gdately capitalized, undercapitalized,
significantly undercapitalized, and critically umdapitalized, although these terms are not useepieesent overall financial condition.
Adequately capitalized institutions require regoifgtapproval to accept brokered deposits. If unalgitalized, a financial institution’s capital
distributions, asset growth and expansion are dichiand for the submission of a capital restorasaequired.

At year-end, actual capital ratios and minimum iegglratios for the Bank were:

Minimum
Required
- to Be Well
Minimum Capitalized
Required
for Under
Capital Prompt
Actual Adequacy Corrective
Action
Ratio Purposes Provisions
December 31, 200
Total capital (to ris-weighted asset: 16.4(% 8.0(% 10.00%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risweighted asset: 15.31 4.0C 6.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total ass 12.4¢ 4.0C 5.0C
December 31, 200
Total capital (to ris-weighted asset: 14.6% 8.0(% 10.00%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to ri-weighted asset: 13.7¢ 4.0C 6.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total ass 12.0¢ 4.0C 5.0C

See Note 11 — Regulatory Matters in our Consolii&ieancial Statements for a reconciliation of Baak’s equity under GAAP to regulatory
capital.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the OTS categgbilze Bank as well capitalized under the regwai@mework for prompt corrective
action. There are no conditions or events sincegmmtifications that management believes haveggththe institution’s capitalization
category.
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Capital Management - Companyn June 23, 2005, the Company completed its mutusiock conversion and sold 24,466,250 shares of
common stock in a subscription offering at $10.80ghare and raised $240.3 million in offering jpeads, net of offering expenses. The
Company contributed $120.9 million of the net pexdteto the Bank, paid off $30 million of term bawngs, loaned $19.6 million to our ES!
and retained the remaining net proceeds of $72amilAs a result of the offering, the Company hagit@l levels substantially above those
required to support the current size and risk peaff the Company and its subsidiary, the Bank.

Total stockholders’ equity totaled $263.6 milliodnecember 31, 2009, compared to $266.8 milliobetember 31, 2008. The decrease on
total stockholders’ equity was primarily due to oepurchase of 277,800 shares of our common stomhk aggregate cost of $2.5 million, the
declaration and payment of cash dividends tote#iei® million, and a $738,000 net loss that we réedifor 2009. These items were partially
offset by a $2.5 million increase in accumulatdakotcomprehensive income, and a $3.5 million ireedn additional paid in capital resulting
from the vesting of stock-based compensation adREShares earned.

The OTS has no specific quantitative capital retijuhes for savings and loan holding companies dmeeit. consolidated or unconsolidated
basis. There are several capital measurementthth&TS uses to evaluate the adequacy of a saaimgkan holding company’s capital. One
measurement is the tangible capital ratio. Theibkdagapital ratio (the ratio of tangible capitaltangible total assets (stockholders’ equity less
goodwill and intangible assets divided by totakeasdess goodwill and intangible assets)) for tbenBany on a consolidated basis measures the
percentage of consolidated tangible equity capitpborting our consolidated tangible total asSgts. Company'’s tangible capital ratio was
15.14% at December 31, 2009, compared to 15.48%@mber 31, 2008.

As stated in our Prospectus dated April 15, 2008 strategy for utilizing the capital raised in thiffering encompasses several components,
including debt reduction, funding our ESOP, finaugcacquisitions, paying dividends to stockholdezpurchasing shares of our common stock
and for other general corporate purposes.

Our Board of Directors has authorized the repurettdsip to 5,047,423 shares of our common stock.dthorization permits shares to be
repurchased in open market or negotiated transes;tamd pursuant to any trading plan that may lbetad in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of
the Securities and Exchange Commission. The autittoh may be utilized at management’s discretiaibject to the limitations set forth in
Rule 10b-18 of the Securities and Exchange Comanisand other applicable legal requirements, amite and other internal limitations
established by the Board of Directors. The repwselauthorization will expire on May 17, 2010, uslegtended by the Board of Directors. As
of December 31, 2009, the Company had repurcha88@,323 shares of its common stock out of the 5428 shares that have been
authorized for repurchase.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contraual Obligations

CommitmentsAs a financial services provider, we routinely arngarty to various financial instruments with offldlince-sheet risks, such as
commitments to extend credit, standby letters eflitr unused lines of credit and commitments tbleahs. While these contractual obligatic
represent our future cash requirements, a signifipartion of commitments to extend credit may expvithout being drawn upon. Such
commitments are subject to the same credit polaesapproval process afforded to loans that wesmakhough we consider commitments
extend credit in determining our allowance for ldagses, at December 31, 2009, we had made nospyovor losses on commitments to
extend credit, and had no specific or general alove for losses on such commitments, as we havadbibtorical loss experience with
commitments to extend credit and we believed tbatnobable and reasonably estimable losses weeeenhin our portfolio as a result of our
commitments to extend credit. For additional infation, see Note 14, “Loan Commitments and OthefBatince Sheet Activities,” to our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Contractual Obligationsln the ordinary course of our operations, we eimtier certain contractual obligations. Such obligas include
operating leases for premises and equipment.
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The following table summarizes our significant fixend determinable contractual obligations andrdineding needs by payment date at
December 31, 2009. The payment amounts represeseg dimounts due to the recipient and do not incugeunamortized premiums or
discounts or other similar carrying amount adjusttae

Payments Due by Perioc

More

One to Three than

Less than Three to Five Five

Contractual Obligations One Year Years Years Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)

Certificates of depos $327,57° $69,75¢ $ 6,30C $ —  $403,63!
Borrowings 34,78 13,00( 3,00 — 50,78
Standby letters of crec 2,00t 165 — — 2,17
Operating lease 533 937 881 6,98 9,33:
Total $364,89¢ $83,86( $10,18. $6,98: $465,92:
Commitments to extend cres $161,03¢ $§ — $ — $ — $161,03¢

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKE T RISK

For information regarding market risk see Item Mahagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financmditions and Results of Operation”
Management of Interest Rate Risk.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINABIAL REPORTING

Management of BankFinancial Corporation is resgmadbr establishing and maintaining effective intd control over financial reporting.

Management evaluates the effectiveness of intearalol over financial reporting and tests forasbillity of recorded financial information
through a program of ongoing internal audits. Apgtem of internal control, no matter how well desid, has inherent limitations, including
the possibility that a control can be circumvertedverridden and misstatements due to error adfraay occur and not be detected. Also,
because of changes in conditions, internal coefifectiveness may vary over time. Accordingly, eaareffective system of internal control
will provide only reasonable assurance with respeéinancial statement preparation.

The Company’s internal control over financial rejpa is a process designed to provide reasonablaasce regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantteagicounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. The Company’srima&control over financial reporting includes thgmlicies and procedures that (i) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonadigldaccurately and fairly reflect the transacti@nd dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (i) provide reasonable assurance thas#aietions are recorded as necessary to permitratépaof financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America, and thagipgs and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorinatimf management and directors of the Company(iaphdrovide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauithed acquisition, use, or disposition of the Compa assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Management assessed the Company’s internal cavteolfinancial reporting as of December 31, 20@%eguired by Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, based on the criterigffective internal control over financial repog described in the “Internal Control-
Integrated Framework,” adopted by the CommitteSmdnsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis€dSO). Based on this
assessment, management concludes that, as of Dec8i2009, the Company’s internal control oveaficial reporting is effective.

The Company'’s independent registered public acaogifirm has issued their report on the effectivenef the Compang’internal control ovi
financial reporting. That report follows under teading, Report of Independent Registered Publaoiwting Firm.

/s| F. Morgan Gasior /s/ Paul A. Cloutier

F. Morgan Gasio Paul A. Cloutiel

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Executive Vice President and
Officer and Presider Chief Financial Office!
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM

We have audited the accompanying statements afdiabcondition of BankFinancial Corporation (ther@any) as of December 31, 2009
2008, and the related statements of operationsgglsain stockholders’ equity and comprehensivenredoss), and cash flows for each of the
years in the thre-year period ended December 31, 2009. We also &adited the Company’s internal control over finahcgporting as of
December 31, 2009, based on criteria establishédeémal Control— Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSgring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS®¢ Company’s management is responsible for theraadial statements, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reportjrand for its assessment of the effectivenesstefnal control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management’s Report on Inte@aaltrol Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipils to express an opinion on these
financial statements and an opinion on the Compsimgérnal control over financial reporting basedoarr audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits toiobtasonable assurance about whether the finastei@ments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal coravelr financial reporting was maintained in all evél respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideaee supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the ovemaltdial statement presentation. Our a

of internal control over financial reporting incled obtaining an understanding of internal contx@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk

a material weakness exists, and testing and euadutite design, and operating effectiveness ofmatiecontrol based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other proceslais we considered necessary in the circumstaiMeebelieve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyesaktepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajpeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettilansactions and dispositions of the assetseoédmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the financial statements referr@dlbove present fairly, in all material respedis, financial position of BankFinancial
Corporation as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, lendetsults of its operations and its cash flows#wh of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2009 in conformity with accaunfirinciples generally accepted in the Unitedetatf America. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, éffednternal control over financial reporting asiecember 31, 2009, based on criteria
established imnternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by @mmmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TneadCommission
(COS0).

Crowe Horwath LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
March 5, 2010
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
December 31, 2009 and 2008
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

ASSETS

Cash and due from other financial institutic
Interes-bearing deposits in other financial institutic

Cash and cash equivalel

Securities, at fair valu
Loans hel-for-sale

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan los
December 31, 2009, $18,622; and December 31, 31@18746

Real estate owne

Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank, at ¢

Premises and equipment, |
Accrued interest receivab
Goodwill

Core deposit intangibl
Bank owned life insuranc
FDIC prepaid expens
Income tax receivabl
Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Liabilities:
Deposits
Borrowings

Advance payments by borrowers taxes and insur
Accrued interest payable and other liabilil

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingent liabiliti

Stockholder equity:

Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 25,000,000 slzargmrized, none issued or outstanc

Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shatkedzed; shares issued at December 31, 200912847

and at December 31, 2008, 21,694,

Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning

Unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan st
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

December 31

December 31

2009 2008

$ 20358 $ 2921
87,84 11€
108,19t 29,32
102,12 124,91
— 872
1,218,46  1,267,96:
4,08t 95E
15,59¢ 15,59¢
34,61 34,56
6,111 6,73z
22,56t 22,56¢
4,29¢ 5,08¢
20,15 20,17

6,77 —
11,72¢ 1,361
12,17« 23,68(
$1,566,891  $1,554,70
1,233,39°  1,069,85'
50,78 200,35(
8,05: 8,10¢
11,05¢ 9,601
1,303,28  1,287,91
214 217
195,17 195,11
81,53 88,27¢
(15,169 (16,149
1,85( (67€)
263,60: 266,79
$1,566,891  $1,554,70

See accompanying notes to consolidated financistents.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007
(In thousands, except per share data)

2009
Interest and dividend incon
Loans, including fee $ 69,17(
Securities 4,81¢
Other 12:
Total interest incom 74,10¢
Interest expens
Deposits 18,50:
Borrowings 2,05¢
Total interest expens 20,557
Net interest income 53,55:
Provision for loan losse 8,811
Net interest income after provision for loan losse 44,74
Noninterest incom
Deposit service charges and fi 3,36:
Other fee incom: 1,81¢
Insurance commissions and annuities inct 71t
Gain on sale of loans, n 69¢
Gain (loss) on sale of securiti (98¢)
Gain on unredeemed VISA sto —
Gain (loss) on disposition of premises and equigr (40
Loan servicing fee 653
Amortization and impairment of servicing ass (44¢€)
Earnings (loss) on bank owned life insura (20
Other 1,48
Total noninterest incorr 7,23¢
Noninterest expens
Compensation and benef 29,04¢
Office occupancy and equipme 6,84t
Advertising and public relatior 1,321
Information technolog 3,637
Supplies, telephone, and post: 1,81¢
Amortization of intangible: 1,69(
Operations of real estate own 1,27:
VISA litigation —
Loss on impairment of securiti 401
Loss on early extinguishment of borrowir —
FDIC insurance premiun 2,22¢
Other 4,472
Total noninterest expen: 52,73
Income (loss) before income taxe (75))
Income tax expense (benel (13
Net income (loss $ (739
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ (0.09
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ (0.09
Weighted average common shares outstan 19,698,07
Diluted weighted average common shares outstar 19,698,07

2008

$ 73,98
3,861
11€

77,96(

22,03¢
3,63¢
25,66

52,29
5,097
47,20!

3,571
1,94¢
794
11€
1,38¢
1,24(

(302)
771

(524)
58€
83t

10,41¢

30,53¢
6,87¢
1,361
3,66:
2,07¢
1,78¢
434
35,91¢
1,97¢
162
4,28(
89,05¢

(31,437
(12,048
$ (19,389

$  (0.99
$  (0.99

19,818,89
19,818,89

2007

85,60:
5,05¢

1,29¢

91,95:

33,44¢
4,85¢

38,30«

53,64¢
697
52,95

3,60¢
1,93¢
1,007
12€
39¢
9
811

(39€)
58¢

1,57¢

9,66¢

32,27¢
5,94¢
1,417
3,241
2,10¢
1,87¢
17
1,24(

13¢
4,24

52,49¢

10,11¢

2,96

$

$
$

7,15¢

0.3¢

0.3¢

20,659,58
20,659,58

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.



BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In thousands)

Years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007

Balance at December 31, 20C
Comprehensive los:
Net income
Change in other comprehensive income (Ic
net of tax effect:
Total comprehensive lo:

Purchase and retirement of common si
(2,077,923 share:
Nonvested stock award
Issuance of shares of restricted st
(17,450 shares
Stock-based compensation expel
Cash dividends declared on common st
($0.28 per share
ESOP shares earn
Balance at December 31, 20C
Comprehensive los:
Net loss
Change in other comprehensive loss, net o
effects
Total comprehensive lo

Purchase and retirement of common stock
(549,700 share:

Nonvested stock awar-stock-based
compensation expen

Cash dividends declared on common st
($0.28 per share

ESOP shares earn

Balance at December 31, 20C

Unearned
Employee
Stock Accumulated
Additional Ownership Other
Common Paid-in Retained Plan Comprehensive Comprehensive
Stock Capital Earnings Shares Income (Loss) Total Loss
$ 24: $227,74. $113,12¢ $(18,10Y) $ 3,00¢ $326,01!
— — 7,15¢ — — 7,158 $ 7,15¢
— — — — (7,219 (7,218 (7,218
$ (63
(21) (33,939 — — — (33,957
_ 4,07t — — — 4,07¢
— — (6,48)) — — (6,48))
— 56¢ — 97¢ — 1,54¢
$ 22z $198,44¢ $113,80. $(17,12 $ (4,210 $291,13
— — (19,389 — — (19,389 $ (19,389
_ _ — — 3,53¢ 3,53¢ 3,563¢
$ (1585
(5) (7,739 - - - (7,739
— 4,38: — — — 4,387
- - (61131) - - (6113Z)
— 19 — 97¢€ — 997
$ 217 $195,11¢ $ 88,27¢ $(16,149) $ (67€) $266,79:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financissents.

60



BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’' EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007
(In thousands)

Unearned
Employee
Stock Accumulated
Additional Ownership Other
Common Paid-in Retained Plan Comprehensive Comprehensive
Stock Capital Earnings Shares Income (Loss) Total Loss
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 217 $195,11¢ $88,27¢ $(16,14¢) $ (67€) $266,79:
Comprehensive incorr
Net loss — — (73¢) — — (73¢) $ (738)
Change in other comprehensive income, n¢
tax effects — — — — 2,52¢ 2,52¢ 2,52¢
Total comprehensive incon $ 1,78¢
Purchase and retirement of common si
(277,800 share: (©)] (2,48¢) — — — (2,490
Nonvested stock awar-stock-based
compensation expen: — 2,55¢ — — — 2,55¢
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($
per share — — (6,010 — — (6,010
ESOP shares earn — (10 — 97¢ — 96¢
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 214 $19517° $81,53. $(15,169) $ 1,85C $263,60:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007
(In thousands)

2009 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss $ (739 $ (19,389 $ 7,15t
Adjustments to reconcile to net income to net dasm operating activitie
Provision for loan losse 8,811 5,09z 697
ESOP shares earn 96¢ 997 1,54¢
Stoclk-based compensation expel 2,55¢ 4,12¢ 4,07t
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,331 3,94¢ 3,86:
Amortization of premiums and discounts on secwgiéind loan: (59 (47) (319
Amortization of core deposit and other intangildsets 1,67¢ 1,76¢ 1,87
Amortization and impairment of servicing ass 44¢€ 524 39¢
Net change in net deferred loan origination c 211 174 33¢
Net loss on sale of real estate ow 91 252 —
Net gain on sale of loar (699) (11¢) (12¢)
Net loss (gain) on sale of securit 98¢ (1,385 (399
Loss on impairment of securiti 401 35,91¢ —
Gain on unredeemed VISA sto — (1,240 —
Net loss (gain) disposition of premises and equiptr 40 302 (9)
Loans originated for sa (40,79 (23,395 (26,63")
Proceeds from sale of loa 42,36¢ 22,81« 26,88¢
Net change in
Deferred income ta 8,85¢ (14,39¢) (43¢)
Accrued interest receivab 621 35¢€ 77¢
Loss (earnings) on bank owned life insura 20 (58€) (58E)
Other asset (17,280 (3,519 (1,989
Accrued interest payable and other liabilit 1,45¢ (792) 623
Net cash from operating activiti 14,26¢ 11,417 17,73¢
Cash flows from investing activities
Securities
Proceeds from sal¢ 967 1,38¢ 39¢
Proceeds from maturitie 1,87 16,11: 46,71"
Proceeds from principal repayme 22,71¢ 9,051 5,86¢
Purchases of securiti — (103,019 —
Loans receivabl
Principal payments on loans receiva 852,14( 810,64 807,68:
Purchases of loar (19,429 (12,680 (3,84
Originated for investmer (796,329 (818,65¢) (752,75))
Purchase of bank owned life insural — — (19,000
Proceeds from sale of real estate ow 331 2,27¢ —
Purchase of premises and equipment (3,099 (3,015 (2,115
Net cash from investing activitit 59,18: (97,909 82,95(
(Continued)
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007
(In thousands)
2009 2008 2007
Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in deposi $ 163,54( $ (3,795  $ (55,95)
Net change in advance payments by borrowers fastard insuranc (52 61€ (979)
Net change in borrowing (149,56¢) 103,91° (41,714
Repurchase and retirement of common s (2,497 (7,737%) (33,95)
Cash dividends paid on common stt (6,010 (6,139 (6,487)
Net cash from financing activitie 5,421 86,861 (139,079
Net change in cash and cash equival 78,86¢ 381 (38,389
Beginning cash and cash equivale 29,32¢ 28,94¢ 67,33:
Ending cash and cash equivalent $ 108,19¢ $ 29,32¢ $ 28,94¢
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Interest paic $ 20,76% $ 25,90: $ 38,50¢
Income taxes pai 1,50( 3,57t 3,49
Loans transferred to real estate ow 5,99( 2,967 82C
Loans securitized to securiti — — 23,48:
Due to broke! — — 15¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentatiol: BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corporatimadquartered in Burr Ridge, Illinois (the “Companis the owne
of all of the issued and outstanding capital stofcBankFinancial, F.S.B. (the “Bank”). On March P08, Financial Assurance Services, Inc.
(“Financial Assurance”), a wholly-owned subsidiafithe Bank, completed the sale of its title inswweagency business to a newly formed,
third-party title insurance agency. The transactiad no material impact on the Company’s totaltasseockholders’ equity or net income.

Principles of Consolidatior: The consolidated financial statements includeaiteounts of and transactions of BankFinancial @eon, the
Maryland corporation, the Bank, and the Bank’s Wwholvned subsidiaries, Financial Assurance Seryites and BankFinancial Asset
Recovery Corporation (collectively, “the Company&)l significant intercompany accounts and transes have been eliminated.

Nature of Business The Company’s revenues, operating income, anetasse primarily from the banking industry. Alltbe Company’s
banking operations are considered by managemdsg &ggregated in one reportable operating segraefinéincial reporting purposes. Loan
origination customers are mainly located in theatge Chicago metropolitan area. To supplement ér@inations, the Company purchases
mortgage loans. The loan portfolio is concentratddans that are primarily secured by real estate.

Use of Estimates To prepare financial statements in conformityhwdtcounting principles generally accepted in théed States of America
(“US GAAP”), management makes estimates and assongpbased on available information. These estisnael assumptions affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements aadlibclosures provided, and future results coufeédiThe allowance for loan losses,
mortgage servicing rights, stock-based compensatigrairment of securities and fair value of fineshinstruments are particularly subject to
change.

Interestbearing Deposits in Other Financial InstitutionsInterest-bearing deposits in other financial ingiiins maturing in less than 90 days
are carried at cost.

Cash Flows: Cash and cash equivalents include cash, depaigitother financial institutions maturing in lesgn 90 days, and daily federal
funds sold. Net cash flows are reported for custdoan and deposit transactions, interest beargppsits in other financial institutions,
borrowings, and advance payments by borrowersaf@ds and insurance.

Securities: Debt securities are classified as available-de-svhen they might be sold before maturity. Eqeégurities with readily
determinable fair values are classified as avaikibi-sale. Securities available-for-sale are edrgt fair value, with unrealized holding gains
and losses reported in other comprehensive inctes)( net of tax. Interest income includes amatiin of purchase premium or discount.
Premiums and discounts on securities are amortimdtie level-yield method without anticipating pagments, except for mortgage-backed
securities where prepayments are anticipated. Gaiddosses on sales are based on the amortizedfe¢bs security sold. Declines in the fair
value of securities below their cost that are athan-temporary are reflected as realized lossedetermining if losses are other-than-
temporary, management considers: (1) the lengtimaf and extent that fair value has been less ¢bahor adjusted cost, as applicable, (2) the
financial condition and near term prospects ofigisaer, and (3) whether the Company has the itbesell the debt security or it is more likely
than not that the Company will be required to el debt security before the anticipated recovery.

Federal Home Loan Bank StockThe Bank is a member of the FHLB system. Memhbegsrequired to own a certain amount of stock bas
the level of borrowings and other factors, and mnagst in additional amounts. FHLBC stock is catré cost and classified as a restricted
security. Current accounting guidance for FHLBGQ:ktprovides that, for impairment testing purposks,value of long term investments such
as our FHLBC common stock is based on the “ultimmat@verability” of the par value of the securititivout regard to temporary declines in
value. Both cash and stock dividends are repodedame.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans Held for Sale: Mortgage loans originated and intended for saldhé secondary market are carried at the lowaggfegate cost or
estimated fair market value, as determined by antShg commitments from investors. Net unrealizeés, if any, are recorded as a valuation
allowance and charged to earnings.

Mortgage loans held for sale are generally solths#rvicing rights retained. The carrying valuenafrtgage loans sold is reduced by the fair
value of the servicing right. Gains and lossesalassof mortgage loans are based on the differieetveeen the selling price and the carrying
value of the related loan sold.

Loans and Loan Income¢ Loans that management has the intent and atmlibwld for the foreseeable future or until matudt payoff are
reported at the principal balance outstandingphéte allowance for loan losses, premiums andodists on loans purchased, and net deferred
loan costs. Interest income on loans is recogriizéatcome over the term of the loan based on thewstof principal outstanding.

Premiums and discounts associated with loans psechare amortized over the contractual term ofaae using the level-yield method.

Interest income is reported on the interest metdmatiincludes amortization of net deferred loan teescosts over the contractual loan term,
adjusted for prepayments. Interest income is diticoed at the time the loan is 90 days delinquaiess the loan is wellecured and in proce

of collection. Past due status is based on theactial terms of the loan. In all cases, loangpéeed on nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier
date if collection of principal or interest is caaered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not received for loanscpthon nonaccrual status is reversed against gtt@@me. Interest received on such loans is
accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovetiiadeuntil qualifying for return to accrual statl®ans are returned to accrual status when
all the principal and interest amounts contracyudille are brought current and future paymentseasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losse: The allowance for loan losses is a valuationvedloce for probable incurred credit losses. Loasdesre charged
against the allowance when management believasitt@lectibility of a loan balance is confirmed.iSequent recoveries, if any, are credited
to the allowance. Management estimates the alloevhatance required using past loan loss experi¢heajature and volume of the portfolio;
information about specific borrower situations; @stimated collateral values, economic conditiamsl, other factors. The amount of the
allowance is based on estimates and the ultimasetomay vary from such estimates as more infoomatcomes available, or as later events
occur or circumstances change. Allocations of tlmvance may be made for specific loans, but the@eallowance is available for any loan
that, in management’s judgment, should be charffed o

The allowance consists of specific and general @repts. The specific component relates to loansatfeaindividually classified as impaired
or loans otherwise classified as substandard dotfldu The general component covers nonclassifi@th$ and is based on historical loss
experience adjusted for current factors.

A loan is impaired when full payment under the lé@ms is not expected. Loans that experiencenifgignt payment delays and payment
shortfalls are generally not classified as impaildenagement determines the significance of paymelatys and shortfalls on a case-by-case
basis, considering the length of the delay, reafmrthe delay and prior experience with the borowulti-family, nonresidential,
construction and land, and commercial real estated are individually evaluated for impairmenta lban is impaired, a portion of the
allowance is allocated so that the loan is reporet] at the present value of estimated future fag/s using the loan’s existing rate or at the
fair value of collateral if repayment is expectetely from the collateral. Large groups of smabatance homogeneous loans, such as
consumer and residential real estate loans, alectigkly evaluated for impairment, and accordinghey are not separately identified for
impairment disclosures. Trouble debt restructurimgsmeasured at the present value of estimatecefaash flows using the loan’s effective
rate at inception or the fair value of the collater
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Mortgage Servicing Right: Mortgage servicing rights are recognized sephrathen they are acquired through sales of loanseMimortgag
loans are sold, servicing rights are initially reted at fair value and gains on sales of loanseam@rded in the statement of operations. Fair
value is based on market prices for comparablegag# servicing contracts, when available, or atiévaly, is based on a valuation model that
calculates the present value of estimated futureemicing income. The valuation model incorpasaesumptions that market participants
would use in estimating future net servicing incosweh as the servicing cost per loan, the discaiat the escrow float rate, an inflation rate,
ancillary income, prepayment speeds and defa@srand losses. The Company compares the valuatdelrimputs and results to published
industry data in order to validate the model ressaftd assumptions. All classes of servicing assetsubsequently measured using the
amortization method which requires servicing rigtbe amortized into non-interest income in préiparto, and over the period of, the
estimated future net servicing income of the urnyegl loans.

Servicing assets are evaluated for impairment baped the fair value of the rights as comparedaroying amount. Impairment is determined
by stratifying rights into groupings based on pradtant risk characteristics, such as interest tase type and investor type. Impairment is
recognized through a valuation allowance for afviddal grouping, to the extent that fair valuddss than the carrying amount. If the
Company later determines that all or a portiorhefitnpairment no longer exists for a particularugiag, a reduction of the allowance may be
recorded as an increase to income. Changes intiaiwalowances are reported with amortization anplairment of servicing assets on the
statement of operations. The fair values of semgicights are subject to significant fluctuatiossaaresult of changes in estimated and actual
prepayment speeds and default rates and losses.

Servicing fee income that is reported on the statdrof operations as loan servicing fees is reabfdefees earned for servicing loans. The
fees are based on a contractual percentage ofithanding principal; or a fixed amount per load are recorded as income when earned.
fees and ancillary fees related to loan serviciegnat material.

Real Estate Owne: Real estate properties acquired in collectioa tafan are initially recorded at fair value lesstdo sell at acquisition,
establishing a new cost basis. If fair value dediaubsequent to foreclosure, a valuation allowan@zorded through expense. Expenses,
gains and losses on disposition, and changes ivetluation allowance are reported in noninterepeese as operations of real estate owned.

Premises and Equipmer: Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipnrerstated at cost less accumulated depreciatiopreDiation is
included in noninterest expense and is computetti@istraight-line method over the estimated udefes of the assets. Useful lives are
estimated to be 25 to 40 years for buildings angtavements that extend the life of the originalding, ten to 20 years for routine building
improvements, five to 15 years for furniture andipment, two to five years for computer hardward software and no greater than four ye
on automobiles. The cost of maintenance and refsaiisarged to expense as incurred and signifiegdirs are capitalized.

Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetsGoodwill resulted from business acquisitions pt@January 1, 2009 and represents the excebg of t
purchase price over the fair value of acquired itaagassets and liabilities and identifiable intdhg assets.

Goodwill is assessed at least annually for impaimnamd any such impairment will be recognized e pleriod identified. There was no
impairment to goodwill for the years ended Decen83gr2009, 2008 and 2007.

Other intangible assets consist of core deposinigible assets arising from whole bank acquisitidhgy are initially measured at fair value
and then are amortized on an accelerated methadlweie estimated useful lives.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Bank Owned Life InsuranceThe Company has purchased life insurance policiesedtain key executives. The Company owned lieiiance
is recorded at the amount that can be realizedrithdeénsurance contract at the balance sheetwhteh is the cash surrender value adjusted
for other charges or other amounts due that aregble at settlement.

Long-Term Assets Premises and equipment, core deposit and ottaardible assets, and other long-term assets ai@ared for impairment
when events indicate that their carrying amount matybe recoverable from future undiscounted chshst If impaired, the assets are recor
at fair value.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instrumer: Financial instruments include off-balance-sheetlit instruments, such as
commitments to make loans and commercial lettesedit, issued to meet customer financing neels.face amount for these items
represents the exposure to loss, before considedsipmer collateral or ability to repay. Such fio@l instruments are recorded when they are
funded.

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the sum of the current yeame tax due or refundable and the change idelfierred tax assets and

liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities #ne expected future tax consequences of tempdiffeyences between the carrying amounts
and tax basis of assets and liabilities, compus#aguenacted tax rates. A valuation allowanceeédded, reduces deferred tax assets to the
amount expected to be realized.

A tax position is recognized as a benefit only isi“more likely than not” that the tax positiorould be sustained in a tax examination,
presuming that a tax examination will occur. Theoant recognized is the largest amount of tax betiedi is greater than 50% likely to be
realized on examination. For tax positions not ingethe “more likely than not” test, no tax benddirecorded. The adoption had no material
effect on the Company’s financial statements. Até&eber 31, 2009 and 2008 the Company had unreadjtax benefits of $165,000 and
$173,000, respectively. The Company and its subsidire subject to U.S. federal income tax as aglhcome tax of the State of lllinois. The
Company is no longer subject to examination byeftaging authorities for years before 2006. Begigrin 2009, the Company and its
subsidiary are subject to income tax of the Statéeav Jersey. The Company does not expect thedatalint of unrecognized tax benefits to
significantly increase in the next twelve months.

The Company recognizes interest and/or penaltlaterkto income tax matters in income tax expeAs®ecember 31, 2009 and 2008, the
Company had recorded a cumulative accrual of $27z0@ $25,000, respectively, for potential intesest penalties.

Retirement Plans: Employee 401(k) and profit sharing plan expessé amount of matching contributions and any ahdiscretionary
contribution made at the discretion of the ComparBoard of Directors. Deferred compensation expeatieeates the benefits over years of
service.

Employee Stock Ownership PlalfESOP”) : The cost of shares issued to the ESOP, but natlipeated to participants, is shown as a
reduction of stockholders’ equity. Compensationesge is based on the market price of shares asthegommitted to be released to
participant accounts. Dividends on allocated ESkHPess reduce retained earnings; dividends on ued&B8OP shares reduce debt and ac
interest.

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Shai: Basic earnings (loss) per common share is nenirec(loss) divided by the weighted average number o
common shares outstanding during the period. E3fares are considered outstanding for this calaulatnless unearned. Diluted earnings
(loss) per common share is net income (loss) di/lmethe weighted average number of common sharssamding during the period plus the
dilutive effect of restricted stock shares andatlditional potential shares issuable under stotioog.

Loss Contingencie: Loss contingencies, including claims and legéibas arising in the ordinary course of business,racorded as liabilities
when the likelihood of loss is probable and an am@u range of loss can be reasonably estimatedalyiament does not believe that there are
such matters that will have a material effect anfthancial statements as of December 31, 2009.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restrictions on Casl: Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Red@ank was required to meet regulatory reserveckating
requirements. These required balances do not eterest.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are estirdatsing relevant market value information and other
assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a separatee Fair value estimates involve uncertaintieb matters of significant judgment regarding
interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and dtdetors, especially in the absence of broad marietparticular items. Changes in assumpt
or in market conditions could significantly affébe estimates.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net irefinss) and other comprehensive income (losskeOth
comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealizedsgamd losses on securities, which are also rezedris separate components of
stockholders’ equity.

Stock-based CompensationCompensation cost is recognized for stock optandsrestricted stock awards issued to employesgdion the

fair value of these awards at the date of grant. Black-Scholes model is utilized to estimate #ievalue of stock options, while the market
price of the Company’s common stock at the datgramt is used for restricted stock awards. Comp&msaost is recognized over the required
service period, generally defined as the vestingpde

Transfers of Financial Assets Transfers of financial assets are accounteddaates when control over the assets has beequisired.

Control over transferred assets is deemed to rerslgred when the assets have been isolated f@@dmpany, the transferee obtains the
right (free of conditions that constrain it fronkitag advantage of that right) to pledge or exchahgetransferred assets, and the Company doe
not maintain effective control over the transferasdets through an agreement to repurchase themelkéir maturity.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made in thog pear’s financial statements to conform to thierent years presentatior

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In May 2009, the FASB issued guidance which reguihe effects of events that occur subsequenttbdlance-sheet date be evaluated
through the date the financial statements arereitisaed or available to be issued. Companies dhtistlose the date through which
subsequent events have been evaluated and whietlielate is the date the financial statements 8suved or the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. Companies are reqtoregflect in their financial statements the effeaf subsequent events that provide
additional evidence about conditions at the balestm®t date (recognized subsequent events). Coegparg also prohibited from reflecting in
their financial statements the effects of subsetieeants that provide evidence about conditionsdahase after the balance-sheet date
(nonrecognized subsequent events), but requiresirattion about those events to be disclosed ifittaacial statements would otherwise be
misleading. This guidance was effective for intesind annual financial periods ending after June2@89 with prospective application. The
adoption of this guidance did not have a matenmgddct on the Company’s financial condition, resafteperations or cash flows as it only
required disclosures.

In June 2009, the FASB replac&de Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Biptes, with theFASB Accounting Standards
Codification™ (The Codification) as the source of authoritatigeaunting principles recognized by the FASB to ppli@d by
nongovernmental entities in the preparation ofrigial statements in conformity with GAAP. Rules amigrpretive releases of the Securities
and Exchange Commission under authority of fedsralrities laws are also sources of authoritatidd B for SEC registrants. The
Codification was effective for financial statemeistsued for periods ending after September 15, 2009
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In April 2009, the FASB amended existing guidanmedetermining whether impairment is other-thangenary for debt securities. The
guidance requires an entity to assess whetheteitds to sell, or it is more likely than not thawill be required to sell, a security in an
unrealized loss position before recovery of its gired cost basis. If either of these criteria istpthe entire difference between amortized cost
and fair value is recognized as impairment throegimings. For securities that do not meet the afergioned criteria, the amount of
impairment is split into two components as followsother-than-temporary impairment (OTTI) relatedther factors, which is recognized in
other comprehensive income and 2) OTTI relatededitloss, which must be recognized in the statgrokoperations. The credit loss is
defined as the difference between the present wltiee cash flows expected to be collected andithertized cost basis. Additionally,
disclosures about other-than-temporary impairmfartdebt and equity securities were expanded. ghidance was effective for interim and
annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 28@8 early adoption permitted for periods endafter March 15, 2009. The adoption of this
FSP, effective January 1, 2009, did not have ama&atmpact on the Company’s financial conditioesults of operations or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued guidance that emzeasthat the objective of a fair value measurerdees not change even when market
activity for the asset or liability has decreasigphigicantly. Fair value is the price that would iezeived for an asset sold or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction (that is, nofaaced liquidation or distressed sale) betweenrketgparticipants at the measurement date under
current market conditions. When observable traimasor quoted prices are not considered orddrbn little, if any, weight should be
assigned to the indication of the asset or liabdifair value. Adjustments to those transactionprices should be applied to determine the
appropriate fair value. The guidance, which wadiagprospectively, was effective for interim anthaal reporting periods ending after

June 15, 2009. The adoption of this FSP at Jun2(I) did not have a material impact on the Comjsdiinyancial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

In August 2009, the FASB amended existing guiddacghe fair value measurement of liabilities bgrdlying that in circumstances in which a
guoted price in an active market for the identizdiility is not available, a reporting entity isquired to measure fair value using a valuation
technique that uses the quoted price of the idalntebility when traded as an asset, quoted pricesimilar liabilities or similar liabilities

when traded as assets, or that is consistent wisgtirgy fair value guidance. The amendments in ghislance also clarify that both a quoted
price in an active market for the identical liatyilat the measurement date and the quoted priddddadentical liability when traded as an asset
in an active market when no adjustments to theeguptice of the asset are required are Level lvédire measurements. The guidance was
effective for the first reporting period beginniafier issuance. The adoption of this update dichagt a significant impact to the Company’s
financial condition, results of operations or céelvs.

Newly Issued Accounting Standards:

In June 2009, the FASB amended previous guidaratng to transfers of financial assets and elinreésdahe concept of a qualifying special
purpose entity. This guidance must be applied dseobeginning of each reporting entity’s first aahreporting period that begins after
November 15, 2009, for interim periods within tfiegt annual reporting period and for interim amchaal reporting periods thereafter. T
guidance must be applied to transfers occurringraafter the effective date. Additionally, on arfteathe effective date, the concept of a
qualifying special-purpose entity is no longer velet for accounting purposes. Therefore, formedgliflying specialpurpose entities should
evaluated for consolidation by reporting entitiesamd after the effective date in accordance vhighapplicable consolidation guidance. The
disclosure provisions were also amended and apghaihsfers that occurred both before and afteetfestive date of this guidance. The
adoption of this update will not have a materigb&ot on the Company’s financial condition, resaftsperations or cash flows.

In June 2009, the FASB amended guidance for cates@in of variable interest entity guidance by aepig the quantitative-based risks and
rewards calculation for determining which enterpyri§ any, has a controlling financial interestinwariable interest entity with an approach
focused on identifying which enterprise has the @ote direct the activities of a variable interestity that most significantly impact the
entity’s economic performance and (1) the obligatm absorb losses of the entity or (2) the rightetceive benefits from the entity. Additional
disclosures about an enterprise’s involvement iatade interest entities are also required. Thiglguace is effective as of the beginning of each
reporting entity’s first annual reporting periodithbegins after November 15, 2009, for interim gasiwithin that first annual reporting period,
and for interim and annual reporting periods thigeeaEarly adoption is prohibited. The adoptiortlis update will not have a material impact
on the Company’s financial condition, results oémgiions or cash flows.

69



BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 2 — EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Amounts reported in earnings (loss) per shareactflarnings (loss) available to common stockholftarthe period divided by the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstgrtiiring the period, exclusive of unearned ESOPeshand unvested restricted stock
shares. Stock options and restricted stock arededeas potential common stock and are consider#ékidiluted earnings per share

calculations to the extent that they would havdwtide effect if converted to common stock.

Net income (loss) available to common stockholi

Average common shares outstanc
Less:
Unearned ESOP shar
Unvested restricted stock sha

Weighted average common shares outstan

Basic earnings (loss) per common shai

Net income (loss) available to common stockholi

Weighted average common shares outstan
Add - Net effect of dilutive stock options and unvestestricted stocl

Weighted average dilutive common shares outstar
Diluted earnings (loss) per common shar

Number of antidilutive stock options excluded frtime diluted earnings per she
calculation
Weighted average exercise price of -dilutive option share

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

$ (73¢) $ (19,389 $ 715

21,471,26 21,904,28 23,037,71
(1,554,49) (1,662,51)) (1,765,35)
(218,707 (422,870 (612,769

19,698,07 19,818,89 20,659,58

$ (0.09) $ (0.99) $ 0.3t

Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

$ 73€ $ (19,389 $ 7,15¢
19,698,07. 19,818,89 20,659,58
19,698,07 19,818,89 20,659,58
$ (0.04) $ (0.9¢) $ 0.3t
2,322,60:. 2,327,60:. 1,597,401
$ 16.51 $ 16.51 $ 17.4C
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NOTE 3 — SECURITIES

The fair value of securities and the related grosgalized gains and losses recognized in accuetutdher comprehensive income (loss) at
December 31 is as follows:

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

2009
Municipal securitie: $ 1,228 % 7% $ — $ 1,30¢
Mortgage-backed securitie 33,00¢ 1,04¢ — 34,05°
Collateralized mortgage obligatio 64,79: 1,87: (13 66,65’
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certifica 114 1 — 11E
$ 99,13t $ 3,001 $ (13 $102,12¢

2008
Certificate of depos $ 50 $ — $ — $ 50C
Municipal securitie! 1,73¢ 76 — 1,811
Mortgage-backed securitie 41,86: 281 (170 41,97¢
Collateralized mortgage obligatio 79,42" 742 (19 80,15/
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certifica 131 — (6) 12t
Equity securitie: 2,35¢ — (2,009 358

$126,01: $ 1,10C $ (2,199  $124,91

Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized nagregobligations reflected in the preceding tablesvigsued by U.S. government-sponsored
entities and agencies, Freddie Mac, Fannie Maezmdie Mae, and are obligations which the governrhes affirmed its commitment to
support. At December 31, 2008, the equity secgridlected in the preceding table consisted ofi¢ieeMac preferred stocks. All securities
reflected in the preceding table were classified\aslable-for-sale at December 31, 2009 and 2008.

The fair values of securities at December 31, 2@06ontractual maturity are shown below. Securitiesdue at a single maturity date are
shown separately. Expected maturities may diffemficontractual maturities because borrowers mag @ right to call or prepay obligations
with or without call or prepayment penalties.

2009
Amortized

Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or let $ 55C $ 55t
Due after one year through five ye. 67E 74¢
1,22¢ 1,30:

Mortgage-backed securitie 33,00¢ 34,05°
Collateralized mortgage obligatio 64,79 66,65
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certifica 114 11F
Total $99,13¢ $102,12¢

Securities pledged at December 31, 2009 and 200& lcarrying amount of $75.1 million and $87.6 ill respectively, and the security
interests resulting from the pledges secures cedigpository relationships, customer repurchaseesgents and a line of credit with the Fed
Reserve Bank of Chicago.
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NOTE 3 — SECURITIES (continued)
Sale of securities were as follows:

2009 2008 2007

Proceed: $967 $1,385 $39¢
Gross gain: — 1,385 39¢
Gross losse 98¢ — —

Securities with unrealized losses at December @29 2nd 2008 not recognized in income are as faliow

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Fair Fair
Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
2009
Collateralized mortgage obligatio $ 135 $ 13 $— $ — $135 $ 13
2008
Mortgage-backed securitie $27,89t $ 156 $83: $ 12 $28,72¢ $ 17C
Collateralized mortgage obligatio 1,12¢ 14 — — 1,12¢ 14
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certifica 12t 6 — — 12t 6
Equity securitie: 353 2,00 — — 353 2,00¢
Total temporarily impaire: $29,50: $ 2,181 $83: $ 12 $30,33t $ 2,19:

The Company evaluates marketable investment sexsuwith significant declines in fair value on aagerly basis to determine whether they
should be considered other-than-temporarily imphineder current accounting guidance, which genepalivides that if a marketable security
is in an unrealized loss position, whether dueeioegal market conditions or industry or issuer-ggefactors, the holder of the securities must
assess whether the impairment is other-than-temypora

The collateralized mortgage obligations that then@any holds in its investment portfolio remaine@munrealized loss position at
December 31, 2009, but the unrealized losses wareomsidered significant under the Company’s impant testing methodology. In
addition, the Company does not intend to sell tesarrities, and it is likely that the Company witit be required to sell the securities before
their anticipated recovery occurs.

At December 31, 2008, the Company held shareseafdie Mac preferred stock in its investment poitfolrhe securities experienced
significant declines in fair value (as measuredjbgted market prices for these securities) dutiregyears ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
due to a variety of market conditions and issuecsjt factors, including Freddie Mactonservatorship, its issuance of new sharesedéipec
stock that are senior to all previously issuedgmrefd shares, and its suspension of dividendslgmealiously issued preferred shares. The
Company evaluated these shares of Freddie Macrprdfstock for impairment, and concluded that theealized losses that existed at that

with respect to this series of Freddie Mac prefés®®ck constituted an other-theamporary impairment under the current accountimgance
Based on this conclusion, the Company recordee-daprimpairment loss of $401,000 and $35.9 milfienthe years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008. These securities were sold in theHauarter of 2009 and the Company recorded dgxréoss of $988,000 on the sale.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE
Loans receivable are as follows:

One-to-four family residential real estate loz
Multi-family mortgage loan

Nonresidential real estate loe

Construction and land loau

Commercial loan

Commercial lease

Consumer loan

Total loans
Loans in proces
Net deferred loan origination cos
Allowance for loan losse

Loans, ne

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is adduls:

Beginning of yea
Provision for loan losse
Loans charged o
Recoveries

End of yeal

Individually impaired loans were as follows:

Year-end loans with allocated allowance for loan los
Year-end loans with no allocated allowance for loands

Total impaired loan

Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocatethtpaired loan:

Average of impaired loans during the y:
Interest income recognized during impairm
Cash basis interest income recogni

2009 2008

$ 289,620 $ 312,39
329,22 305,31
316,60 342,58
32,57 50,68’
88,06’ 92,67¢
176,82: 174,64
2,53¢ 2,65¢
1,235,46.  1,280,95
73) (154)

1,701 1,917
(18,62:) (14,746
$1,218,46  $1,267,96
2009 2008 2007
$14,74¢  $11,05:  $10,62:
8,811 5,00z 697
(5,065 (1,419 (305)
13C 16 37
$18,62: $14,74¢  $11,05:
2009 2008

$22,58: $10,06:
23,05¢  15,50¢

$45,64: $25,56;

$ 5,060 $ 2,70¢

2009 2008

2007

$40,52( $22,94: $22,09(
1,10¢ 1,152 2,271
1,10¢ 1,152 2,271
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)
Nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days stédlcarual are as follow

2009 2008
Nonaccrual loan $49,48¢ $13,65¢
90 days delinquent, still accruil 14¢ 2,67
Reserve for uncollected loan inter 2,317 65¢

Nonaccrual loans and impaired loans are definddreifitly. Some loans may be included in both caiegpand some may only be includec
one category. Nonaccrual loans include both smbhlé&ance homogeneous loans that are collectivedijuated for impairment and individually
classified impaired loans.

Generally, the Bank utilizes the “90 days delingustill accruing” category of loan classificatiamen: (1) the loan is repaid in full shortly
after the period end date; (2) the loan is welused and there are no asserted or pending legaé¢itsato its collection; or (3) the borrower has
remitted all scheduled payments and is otherwiseibstantial compliance with the terms of the Idart,the processing of payments actually
received or the renewal of a loan has not occuoeddministrative reasons.

The Company has $9.6 million of troubled debt regtirings at December 31, 2009, with an alloca&2b$00 of specific reserves to those
customers. The Company has no outstanding commigniercustomers whose loans are classified aslegdwebt restructurings.

NOTE 5 — SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES

First mortgage loans serviced for others are ndtided in the accompanying consolidated statemadritsancial condition. The unpaid
principal balances of these loans were $274.2nill$303.9 million, and $337.3 million at DecemBg&r 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
Custodial escrow balances maintained in connegtitimthe foregoing loan servicing were $6.4 millj@6.3 million, and $6.1 million at
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

Capitalized mortgage servicing rights are incluttedther assets in the accompanying consolidatgdrsents of financial condition. Activity
for capitalized mortgage servicing rights and ttlated valuation allowance was as follows.

2009 2008

Servicing rights

Beginning of yea $1,94C  $2,161

Additions 322 19:

Amortized to expens (482 (419
End of yeal $1,78C  $1,94(
Valuation allowanct

Beginning of yea $ 11¢C $ —

Additions expense 158 27¢

Reductions credited to exper (189 (169
End of yeal $ 74 $ 11C
Carrying value of mortgage servicing rig| $1,70€  $1,83(
Fair value of mortgage servicing rigt $1,86z  $2,01¢
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NOTE 5 - SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES (cont inued)

The estimated fair value of mortgage servicingtsgh the present value of the expected future fiagls over the projected life of the loan.
Assumptions used in the present value calculatierbased on actual performance of the underlyingceg along with general market
consensus. The expected cash flow is the net anod@fitmortgage servicing income and expense itéfhe expected cash flows are
discounted at an interest rate appropriate foatis®ciated risk given the current market conditi®gnificant assumptions are as follows:

2009 2008
Prepayment spee 16.65% 18.62%
Discount rate 12.0(% 12.0(%
Average servicing cost per lo. $58.0( $57.0C
Escrow float rate 0.6(% 0.6(%

Key economic assumptions used in measuring the/éire of the Company’s mortgage servicing riglst®BDecember 31, 2009 and the effect
on the fair value of our mortgage servicing rigintsn adverse changes in those assumptions, amlaws:

Fair value of mortgage servicing rigl $1,862

Weighted average annual prepayment sj 16.65%
Decrease in fair value from 10% adverse ch: 65
Decrease in fair value from 20% adverse che 124

Weighte-average annual discount ri 12.0(%
Decrease in fair value from 10% adverse ch: 66
Decrease in fair value from 20% adverse ch: 12¢

These sensitivities are hypothetical and shoulddsel with caution. As the above table indicateangbs in fair value based on variations in
individual assumptions generally cannot be usqaredict changes in fair value based upon furtheiatians of the same assumptions. Also,
effect of a variation in a particular assumptiontioa fair value of the retained interest is caltadan the above table independently, without
changing any other assumption. In reality, chamgese factor may result in changes in anothewfaethich might magnify or counteract the
sensitivities.

The weighted average amortization period is 47 m&nthe estimated amortization expense for eatheofiext five years is as follows:

2010 $36¢€
2011 28¢
2012 23C
2013 18t
2014 14¢
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NOTE 6 — PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Premises and equipment are as follows:

2009 2008

Land and land improvemer $ 11,65¢ $11,61¢
Buildings and improvemen 30,82¢ 30,18¢
Furniture and equipme! 9,42¢ 10,367
Computer equipmet 7,651 6,86:
59,56¢ 59,03:

Accumulated depreciatic (24,959 (24,469

Depreciation of premises and equipment was $3.0omjifor the year ended December 31, 2009 and $2l®n, for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007.

The Company leases certain branch facilities undacancelable operating lease agreements expininggh 2032. Rent expense, net of
sublease income, for facilities was $519,000, $3@2, and $378,000 in 2009, 2008, and 2007, resgdgtiexcluding taxes, insurance, and
maintenance. The projected minimum rental undestienj leases, not including taxes, insurance, aaidtenance, as of December 31, 2009 is
as follows:

2010 $ 53:
2011 46¢
2012 46¢
2013 45¢
2014 422
Thereaftel 6,98
Total $9,33:

The Company has subleased some of these branéiti€a@nd currently is entitled to receive incoasfollows:

2010 $3C
2011 17
2012 4
2013 4
2014 4
Total $59
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NOTE 7 — CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE
Core deposit intangible assets were as follows:

2009

2008

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Carrying Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Amortized intangible asse- core deposit intangible $18,61: $ 14,317 $18,61: $ 12,627
Aggregate amortization expense was $1.7 milliond $dillion and $1.9 million for 2009, 2008 and 20@&spectively.
Estimated amortization expense for each of the fiextyears is as follows:
2010 $1,59¢
2011 1,40¢
2012 252
2013 22t
2014 19¢
NOTE 8 — DEPOSITS
Year-end deposits are as follows:
2009 2008
Nor-interes-bearing demand depos 108,30¢ $ 109,05¢
Savings deposil 96,10° 94,80:
Money market accoun 322,12¢ 205,76¢
Interes-bearing NOW accoun 303,21¢ 285,73
Certificates of depos 403,63! 374,49.
$1,233,39!  $1,069,85!

Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more werd1$1 million and $125.4 million at year-end 2009 2008, respectively.

Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposittfa next five years are as follows:

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

$327,57
59,07(
6,80¢
3,88(
6,30(
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NOTE 8 — DEPOSITS (continued)
Interest expense on deposit accounts is summaaizéallows for the years indicated:

2009 2008 2007
Savings deposil $ 498 $ 71E $§ 83¢
Money market accoun 4,50: 5,397 11,07
Interes-bearing NOW accoun 2,17¢ 4,844 6,83¢
Certificates of depos 11,32¢ 11,07% 14,70:

$18,50. $22,037  $33,44¢

NOTE 9 - BORROWINGS
Borrowed funds are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Contractual Contractual Contractual
Interest Rate
Range Rate Amount Rate Amount
Fixec-rate advance from FHLBC du
Within 1 year 1.6(% 3.91% 2.7% $27,55( 1.3%% $ 95,45(
1to 2 year: 2.14 3.7€ 2.81 13,00( 2.9¢€ 24,05(
2 to 3 year: — — — — 3.3¢ 7,00(
4 t0 5 year: 2.9¢ 2.9¢ 2.9¢ 3,00( — —
Total fixec-rate advance 1.6C 3.91 2.81 43,55( 1.77 126,50(
Adjustablerate advance from FHLBC du
Within 1 year — — — — 0.5t 25,00(
Open Line advance, due on dem; = = — — 0.7¢C 37,40(
Total FHLBC funds 1.6C 3.91 2.81 43,55( 1.4C 188,90(
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 0.2t 0.2t 0.2t 7,234 0.2 11,45(
Total borrowings 0.25% 3.91% 2.4%%  $50,78¢ 1.32% $200,35(

In December 2008, the Bank elected to pursue celpelance sheet restructuring strategies as a ddhie historically low interest rate
environment. The restructuring consisted of regidn$25.0 million of FHLBC term advance and repigdt with a new FHLBC advance with
an adjustable interest rate and a maturity of apprately one month. The Company incurred a nettaxgprepayment penalty and recognized
an immediate loss of $2.0 million on the early egtiishment of borrowings, in accordance with Emegdssues Task Force 96-D¥ebtor's
Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of Dehstrument:. Certain of the Compang’existing borrowings would be subject to prepayr
penalties should they be repaid prior to matufityere were no prepayment penalties recorded in 2662007

The Company maintains a collateral pledge agreepswmring secured advances whereby the Compangdraed to at all times keep on he
free of all other pledges, liens, and encumbrarsgs;ifically identified whole first mortgages anproved residential property not more than
90-days delinquent to secure advances from the FHIA of the Bank’s FHLBC common stock is pledgesiadditional collateral for these
advances. At December 31, 2009, $184.9 million$b7.6 million of first mortgage and multi-familyarigage loans, respectively,
collateralized the advances. At December 31, 2@@%ad the ability to borrow an additional $257 i@iam under our credit facilities with the
FHLBC. The Company also had available pre-appraxestnight federal funds borrowing and repurchaseement lines. At December 31,
2009 and 2008, there was no outstanding balantieese lines.
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES
The income tax expense (benefit) is as follows:

2009 2008 2007

Current $(8,867) $ 2,34¢  $3,401
Deferred 8,854 (14,396 (43¢)
Total income tax expense (bene $ (13) $(12,04f) $2,96:

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxa@mputed at the statutory federal corporate tax@&84% for 2009, 2008 and 2007 to the
income tax expense in the consolidated stateméimisavations follows:

2009 2008 2007
Provision computed at the statutory federal tas $(25€) $(10,689) $3,44(C
State taxes and other, 1 47 (1,360 (26)
Bank owned life insuranc 7 (199 (299
ESOP/Share based compensa 30¢ 44z 317
Dividends received deductic — (242) (569

$ (13 $(12,049) $2,96%

Effective income tax rat 1.8€% 38.31% 29.29%

Retained earnings at December 31, 2009 and 2008im&14.9 million for which no deferred federatéme tax liability has been recorded.
This amount represents an allocation of incomeatbdebt deductions for tax purposes alone.
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES (continued)
The net deferred tax asset is as follows:

2009 2008

Gross Deferred tax asse
Allowance for loan losse $ 7,04¢ $ 5,61¢
Alternative minimum tax, general business credit aat operating loss carryforwar 6,86¢ —
Capital loss carryforwarc — 34C
Impairment of securitie — 17,04t
Unrealized loss on securiti — 41€
Non-qualified stock option 772 634
Other 84C 58¢

15,53( 24,64
Gross Deferred tax liabilitie:

Net deferred loan origination cos (1,439 (2,467
FHLBC stock dividend: (1,78%) (1,796
Purchase accounting adjustme (1,399 (1,927)
Accumulated depreciatic (9949) (523)
Mortgage servicing right (64¢€) (697)
Goodwill (1,069 (789)
Other (510 (484)
Unrealized gain on securitit (1,139 —
(8,969 (7,672)
Net deferred tax ass $ 6,561  $16,96¢

At December 31, 2009, the Company had a federadperating loss carryforward of $6.3 million whiefil expire in 2029. At December 31,
2009, the Company had a state net operating losg@avard for the State of lllinois of $32.0 mdin which will expire in 2021. Based upon
projections of future taxable income, managemeli¢ves that it is more likely than not that the efeéd tax assets reflected in the above table
will be fully realized and thus a valuation alloveanis not needed.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

2009 2008
Beginning of yea $17¢ $10¢
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 8 63
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 13 25
Reductions due to the statute of limitatic (29 (23
End of yeal $16t $17¢
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES (continued)
The Company does not expect the total amount afaagnized tax benefits to significantly increaséecrease in the next twelve months.

The total amount of interest and penalties recondéde statement of operations for the year erdecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was
$2,000, $5,000, and $25,000, respectively. The anaccrued for interest and penalties at Decembge2@9 and 2008 was $27,000 and
$25,000, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiary are subject to fédral income tax as well as income tax of theeStélllinois. The Company is no longer
subject to examination by these taxing authorfeeyears before 2006. Beginning in 2009, the Comypeand its subsidiary are subject to
income taxes in the State of New Jersey.

NOTE 11 —- REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requirate@dministered by the federal banking agenciaitufé to meet minimum capital
requirements can initiate certain mandatory—andipbsadditional discretionary-a€tions by regulators that, if undertaken, couldeha direc
material effect on the Company's financial stateddnder capital adequacy guidelines and the atguyl framework for prompt corrective
action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidedithat involve quantitative measures of the BaagSets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-
sheet items as calculated under regulatory acamyptiactices. The Bank's capital amounts and fieastdn are also subject to qualitative
judgments by regulators about components, risk liiigs, and other factor

The prompt corrective action regulations provide ftlassifications, including well capitalized, gdately capitalized, undercapitalized,
significantly undercapitalized, and critically umdapitalized, although these terms are not useep@sent overall financial condition. If only
adequately capitalized, regulatory approval is ireglto accept brokered deposits. If undercapidlizapital distributions, asset growth and
expansion are limited, and the submission of atabpgstoration is required.

At year-end, actual capital levels and minimum reggulevels for the Bank were:

Minimum Required

Minimum
Required for
Capital Adequacy

to Be Well
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective

Actual Purposes Action Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 200
Total capital (to ris- weighted asset: $204,66. 16.4(% $ 99,857 8.0(% $124,82: 10.0(%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to ri-weighted asset: 191,09¢ 15.31 49,92¢ 4.0C 74,89: 6.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total ass 191,09¢ 12.4¢ 61,44¢ 4.0C 76,80¢ 5.0C
December 31, 200
Total capital (to ris- weighted asset: $195,96. 14.6% $106,72¢ 8.0(% $133,41( 10.0(%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risweighted asset: 183,92( 13.7¢ 53,36¢ 4.0C 80,04¢ 6.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total ass 183,92( 12.0¢ 60,92: 4.0C 76,157 5.0
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NOTE 11 - REGULATORY MATTERS (continued)

A reconciliation of the Bank’s equity under GAAPregulatory capital is as follows:

2009 2008

GAAP equity $220,13¢  $214,70¢
Disallowed goodwill and other intangible ass (24,879 (26,32¢)
Disallowed servicing assets and deferred tax ¢ (2,309) (5,13¢)
Accumulated loss (gain) on securit (1,850 67€
Tier 1 capital 191,09¢ 183,92(
General regulatory loan loss reser 13,56 12,04
Total regulatory capite $204,66.  $195,96:

As of December 31, 2009 the most recent notificefiom the Office of Thrift Supervision categorizé Bank as well capitalized under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actidinere are no conditions or events since that eatifin that management believes have
changed the institution’s category.

Federal regulations require the Bank to comply wifQualified Thrift Lender (“QTL") test, which geradly requires that 65% of assets be
maintained in housing-related finance and othecifipd assets. If the QTL test is not met, limite @laced on growth, branching, new
investment, FHLBC advances, and dividends or thtiriion must convert to a commercial bank chafanagement considers the QTL test
to have been met as of December 31, 2009.

The Bank is subject to restrictions on the amotintividends it may declare without prior regulat@gyproval. At December 31, 2009, the B
does not have pre-approved approval for futuredeénds.

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Employee Stock Ownership PIEmployees are eligible to participate in the ES@éY attainment of age 21 and completion of one péa
service. In connection with the conversion andgenization, the ESOP borrowed $19.6 million from @ompany, and used the proceeds of
the loan to purchase 1,957,300 shares of commahR &sued in the subscription offering at $10.00g®&re. The loan is secured by the shares
and will be repaid by the ESOP with funds from Bank’s discretionary contributions to the ESOP aarthings on ESOP assets. The Bank has
committed to make discretionary contributions te BESOP sufficient to service the loan over a pemiatcto exceed 20 years. When loan
payments are made, ESOP shares are allocatedtitgzarts based on relative compensation and expsnmecorded. Participants receive their
earned shares at the end of employment.

Contributions to the ESOP during 2009 and 2008 \8&r8 million each year, including dividends antkiast received on unallocated share
$453,000 and $486,000 in 2009 and 2008, respegtiEgbense related to the ESOP, net of dividendsrterest received on unallocated
ESOP shares, was $516,000, $512,000 and $1.0 miitiicthe years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 @@, 2espectively.

Shares held by the ESOP were as follows:

2009 2008

Allocated to participant 432,42( 340,81
Distributed to participant (12,614 (6,25
Unearnec 1,516,90 1,614,77.
Total ESOP share 1,936,71: 1,949,32

Fair value of unearned sha $ 15,017 $ 16,45t
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NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

Profit Sharing Plan/401(k) PlarThe Company has a defined contribution plan (“prsffiaring plan”) covering all of its eligible empkes.
Employees are eligible to participate in the prsfiaring plan after attainment of age 21 and cotigpl®f one year of service. The Company
provides a dollar-for-dollar match on contributianade prior to March 31, 2007 on contributionswp% of eligible compensation, and a
match of $0.50 on each $1.00 of contribution up%oof eligible compensation beginning April 1, 200he Company may also contribute an
additional amount annually at the discretion of Bward of Directors. Contributions totaling $378)08442,000, and $566,000 were made for
the years ended 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

NOTE 13-EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS

On June 27, 2006, the Company’s stockholders apprthe BankFinancial Corporation 2006 Equity IncenPlan, which authorized the
Human Resources Committee of the Board of Direaibthke Company to grant a variety of cash- andtgdpased incentive awards, including
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restdcttock, performance shares and other incentivedsyt employees and directors aggregating
up to 3,425,275 shares of the Company’s commorkstoc

The Human Resources Committee may grant stockraptmpurchase shares of the Company’s common stamrtain employees and
directors of the Company. The exercise price ferdtock options is the fair market value of the wan stock on the dates of the grants. The
stock options generally vest annually over threfvioyear periods; vesting is subject to accelerain certain circumstances. The stock opt
will expire if not exercised within five years frothe date of grant.

The fair value of each option award is estimatethendate of grant using a closed form option widuma(Black-Scholes) model that uses the
assumptions noted in the table below. The risk-ineerest rate was determined using the yield atsél on the option grant date for a zero-
coupon U.S. Treasury security with a term equiviaierthe expected life of the option. The expedifedfor options granted represents the
period the option is expected to be outstandingvearsldetermined by applying the simplified methedkowed by SAB 107. The expected
volatility for options issued in 2008 was deterntnesing the Company’s historical data. Estimateteftures were assumed to be zero due to
the lack of historical experience for the Companyere were no options granted in 2009.

The Company estimated the grant date fair valugptibns awarded in 2008 using the Black-Scholesobg®ricing model with the following
assumptions:

2008
Assumptions
Risk-free interest rat 2.0(%
Expected option life (year: 1.84
Expected stock price volatilit 21.71%
Current quarterly cash dividel $ 0.07
Projected dividend growl 5.0(%
Weighted average fair value of options grantedrdpyiear $ 0.54]
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NOTE 13-EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS (continued)

The Company recognized $406,000, $594,000 and 8@9&f stock-based compensation expenses relatitigetgranting of stock options for
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 28¥)¥eatively. As of December 31, 2009, the Compaty$879,000 of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to unvested stock optidmes cost is expected to be recognized over ahtesigaverage period of 1.0 years as
follows:

2010 $364
2011 15
Weighted
Average
Remaining
Weighted Contractual Aggregate
Number of Average Term Intrinsic
Stock Options Shares Exercise Price (in years) Value @)
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2 1,597,401 $ 17.4C 3.6 $ —
Stock options grante 756,40: 14.82
Stock options exercise — —
Stock options expire (7,200 (16.4%)
Stock options forfeite: (19,000 (16.29)
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2 2,327,60: $ 16.51 2.8 $ —

Stock options grante — —
Stock options exercise — —
Stock options expire (2,000 (16.00

Stock options forfeite: (3,000 (16.00

Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2 2,322,60. $ 16.51 1.6 $ —
Stock options exercisable at December 31, - 1,995,78 $ 16.4: 1.6 $ —
Fully vested and expected to vi 2,322,60. $ 16.5] 1.¢ $ —

(1) Stock option aggregate intrinsic value represdresiumber of shares subject to options multipliedhle difference (if positive) in th
closing market price of the common stock underlytimg options on the date shown and the weightethgeeexercise prici

The Human Resources Committee of the Board of Rireenay grant shares of restricted stock to aegaiployees and directors of the
Company. The awards generally vest annually ovejinvg periods from three to five years and vestgigubject to acceleration in certain
circumstances. The cost of such awards will beusctratably as compensation expense over suchctespperiods based on expected vesting
dates. The Company recognized $2.2 million, $3lianiand $3.6 million of expenses relating to tirant of shares of restricted stock during
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 28¥)¥eatively. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008tdta unrecognized compensation cost
related to unvested shares of restricted stock$aasmillion and $3.9 million, respectively. Themaining cost is expected to be recognized in
2010.
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NOTE 13 — EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS (continued)

Weighted Weighted
Average Fair Average Aggregate
Number of Value at Grant Term to Vest Intrinsic

Restricted Stock Shares®) Date (in years) Value (2)
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2 435,15( $ 17.57 1.8 $ 6,88
Shares grante — —
Shares veste (195,45() (17.5%)
Shares forfeite (600C) (17.69
Shares outstanding at December 31, Z 239,10( $ 17.5¢€ 1.5 $ 2,43¢
Shares grante — —
Shares veste (130,45() (17.57%)
Shares forfeite — —
Shares outstanding at December 31, Z 108,65( $ 17.5€ 1.C $ 1,07¢

(1) The end of period balances consist only of unvesiedes
(1) Restricted stock aggregate intrinsic valueesents the number of shares of restricted stockiptiedl by the market price of the common
stock underlying the outstanding shares on the stade/n.

NOTE 14 — LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SH EET ACTIVITIES

The Company is party to various financial instrutsemith off-balance-sheet risk. The Company usesdHinancial instruments in the normal
course of business to meet the financing needastbmers and to effectively manage exposure todsteate risk. These financial instruments
include commitments to extend credit, standby isttd credit, unused lines of credit, and committaea sell loans. When viewed in terms of
the maximum exposure, those instruments may inytddvearying degrees, elements of credit and istenae risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the consolidated statements of filmicondition. Credit risk is the possibility thatcounterparty to a financial instrument will be
unable to perform its contractual obligations. tagt rate risk is the possibility that, due to asin economic conditions, the Company’s net
interest income will be adversely affected.

The following is a summary of the contractual otimwal amount of each significant class of off-wale-sheet financial instruments
outstanding. The Company’s exposure to creditilosise event of nonperformance by the counterpgartgommitments to extend credit,
standby letters of credit, and unused lines ofitiedepresented by the contractual notional anhofithese instruments.

The contractual or notional amounts are as follows:

2009 2008

Financial instruments wherein contractual amouegsesent credit ris
Commitments to extend cret $ 11,227  $ 39,96:
Standby letters of crec 2,17 2,22¢
Unused lines of cred 149,81! 164,90t
Commitments to sell mortgag 1,31: 8,471

Commitments to extend credit are generally madgéoiods of 60 days or less. The fixed-rate loamroitment totaled $2.3 million with
interest rates ranging from 4.50% to 6.63% and ritags ranging from one to 30 years.
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NOTE 14 — LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SH EET ACTIVITIES (continued)

Since many of the commitments are expected to expithout being drawn upon, the total commitmenbants do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements. The Company evaluatésaestomer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case.bEtse amount of collateral obtained,
if it is deemed necessary by the Company upon siderof credit, is based on management'’s crediuatian of the customers. The collateral
held varies, but primarily consists of single-faymiésidential real estate.

The Bank, as a member of Visa USA, received 51utéstricted shares of Visa, Inc. Class B commoaoksin connection with Visa, Inc.’s
initial public offering in 2007, and 32,398 addited shares of Class B common stock that were deggbisito a litigation escrow that Visa, Inc.
established under its retrospective responsilpliy. The retroactive responsibility plan obligaaiormer Visa USA members to indemnify
Visa USA, in proportion to their equity interests\isa USA, for certain litigation losses and exges) including settlement expenses, for the
lawsuits covered by the retrospective respongjiilian. The primary method for discharging the mddication obligations under the
retrospective responsibility plan is a reductioniaf ratio at which the Visa, Inc. Class B sharmdd in the litigation escrow can be converted
into publicly traded Class A common shares of Viea, Due to the restrictions that the retrospectesponsibility plan imposes on the
Company’s Visa, Inc. Class B shares, the Compasynbarecorded the Class B shares as an asset.

NOTE 15 - FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the exchange price that would beivedefor an asset or paid to transfer a liabileyi{ price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liabilitynmederly transaction between market participantthe measurement date. There are three
levels of inputs that may be used to measure &ires:

» Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assetm@bilities in active markets that the entity hiae &bility to access as
the measurement da

» Level 2- Significant other observable inputs other than Lévgrices such as quoted prices for similar asseligbilities; quotec
prices in markets that are not active; or otheuigphat are observable or can be corroboratedbgroable market dat

* Level 3 — Significant unobservable inputs thataeffla company’s own assumptions about the assunsptat market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liabili

The Company used the following methods and siganifi@assumptions to estimate the fair value of &goh of financial instrument:

The fair values of marketable equity securitiesgaeerally determined by quoted prices, in actielkats, for each specific security (Level 1
measurement inputs). If Level 1 measurement inprgsiot available for a marketable equity secuvity determine its fair value based on the
guoted price of a similar security traded in anvacinarket (Level 2 measurement inputs). The falugs of debt securities are generally
determined by matrix pricing, which is a mathensltiechnique widely used in the industry to valebtdsecurities without relying exclusively
on quoted prices for the specific securities, ther by relying on the securities’ relationshiptber benchmark quoted securities (Level 2
measurement inputs).

The fair values of loans held for sale are genggtermined by quoted prices in active marketsdha accessible at the measurement date for
similar, unrestricted assets (Level 2 measurenmgnits).

Impaired loans and real estate owned properties\ateiated and valued at the time the loan is ifleditas impaired or placed into real estate
owned, at the lower of cost or market value. Maxadtie is measured based on the value of the eddllatecuring these loans and is classified
at a Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. Collateray be real estate and/or business assets, ingleduipment, inventory and/or accounts
receivable, and its fair value is generally deteedibased on real estate appraisals or other indepeevaluations by qualified professionals.
Impaired loans are reviewed and evaluated on at &egquarterly basis for additional impairment adgusted accordingly, based on the same
factors identified above.
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The fair values of mortgage servicing rights arsesbon a valuation model that calculates the ptesdne of estimated net servicing income.
The valuation model incorporates assumptions traaket participants would use in estimating futueé servicing income. The Company is
able to compare the valuation model inputs andistuwidely available published industry data feasonableness (Level 2 measurement
inputs).

The following table sets forth the Compasyinancial assets that were accounted for attdire and are classified in their entirety basethe
lowest level of input that is significant to therfaalue measurement.

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for Significant Significant
Observable Unobservable
Identical
Amortized Assets Inputs Inputs
Cost Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, 200
Securities
Municipal securitie: $ 1222 $ 1300 $ — $ 1,30 $ —
Mortgage-backed securitie 33,00¢ 34,057 — 34,051 —
Collateralized mortgage obligatio 64,79 66,65! — 66,65! —
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certifica 114 11E — 11F —
$ 99,13¢ $102,12¢ $ — $102,12¢ $ —
December 31, 200
Securities
Certificate of depos $ 50 $ 50 $ — $ 50C $ —
Municipal securitie: 1,73¢ 1,811 1,811
Mortgage-backed securitie 41,86¢ 41,97¢ — 41,97¢ —
Collateralized mortgage obligatio 79,42 80,15¢ — 80,15¢ —
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certifica 131 12t — 12t —
Equity securitie: 2,35¢€ 358 358 — —

$126,01: $124,91¢ $ 358 $124,56t $ —
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)
The Company’s assets that were measured at faiewal a non-recurring basis are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Fair Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, 200
Impaired loan: $22,58: $ — $ 22,58 $ —
Real estate owne 1,11¢ — 1,11¢ —
Mortgage servicing right 377 — 377 —
December 31, 200
Impaired loan: $10,06: $ — $ 10,06 $ —
Real estate owne 204 — 204 —
Mortgage servicing right 1,09: — 1,09: —

Impaired loans, which are measured for impairmesimguithe fair value of the collateral for collatedependent loans, had a carrying amout
$45.6 million, with a valuation allowance of $5.1llian at December 31, 2009, compared to a carrgingpunt of $25.6 million, with a
valuation allowance of $2.7 million at December 3008, resulting in a provision for loan losse$2# million for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

Real estate owned which are carried at lower of @ofair value less cost to sell, had a carryimpant of $4.1 million at December 31, 2009,
which included write downs of $687,000 for the yeaded December 31, 2009 compared to $955,000canizer 31, 2008, which included
write downs of $171,000 for the year ended Decer8ef008.

Mortgage servicing rights, which are carried atéowf cost or fair value, had a carrying amoursbf7 million at December 31, 2009,
comprised of $1.3 million on fixed rate loans add$,000 on adjustable rate loans, including a valnallowance of $74,000 on mortgage
servicing rights of the fixed rate loans. A pre-tagovery of $36,000 was included in net loss eedaction to the reserve on our mortgage
servicing rights portfolio for the year ended Deb&m31, 2009 compared to a pre-tax charge of $000a@s included in net loss as an
additional reserve on our mortgage servicing rigtattfolio for the years ended December 31, 2008.
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The carrying amount and estimated fair value ddrficial instruments is as follows:

2009 2008
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assetl
Cash and cash equivale $ 108,19¢ $ 108,19¢ $ 29,32¢ $ 29,32¢
Securities 102,12¢ 102,12¢ 124,91¢ 124,91¢
Loans hel-for-sale — — 872 89C
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan los 1,218,46 1,221,09: 1,267,96! 1,289,86
FHLBC stock 15,59¢ N/A 15,59¢ N/A
Accrued interest receivab 6111 6,111 6,73: 6,73:
Mortgage servicing right 1,70¢ 1,86: 1,83( 2,01¢
Financial liabilities
Non-interes-bearing demand depos $ (108,30  $ (108,309  $ (109,05 % (109,05
Savings deposil (96,107 (96,109 (94,802) (94,802
NOW and money market accoul (625,34 (625,34Y (491,509 (491,509
Certificates of depos (403,63Y) (407,69)) (374,49) (379,25)
Borrowings (50,789 (51,579 (200,35() (201,819
Accrued interest payab (535) (535) (74%) (745)

For purposes of the above, the following assumptisare used:

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe estimated fair values for cash and cash atprits are based on their carrying value due tsllet-term
nature of these assets.

Loans: The estimated fair value for loans has been deterd by calculating the present value of futurghchlows based on the current rate
Company would charge for similar loans with simitaaturities, applied for an estimated time periatlluhe loan is assumed to be repriced or
repaid. The estimated fair values of loans heldstde are based on quoted market prices.

FHLBC Stock: It is not practicable to determine the fair vabfd~HLBC stock due to the restrictions placed tartriansferability.

Deposit Liabilities: The estimated fair value for certificates of depbas been determined by calculating the pressdoe of future cash flows
based on estimates of rates the Company would paych deposits, applied for the time period unéturity. The estimated fair values of
non-interest-bearing demand, NOW, money marketsanthgs deposits are assumed to approximatedheiring values as management
establishes rates on these deposits at a levehpipadximates the local market area. Additionaligse deposits can be withdrawn on demand.

Borrowings: The estimated fair values of advances from theBE and notes payable are based on current maates for similar financing.
The estimated fair value of securities sold undgeaments to repurchase is assumed to equal ifdravalue due to the short-term nature of
the liability.

Accrued Interest The estimated fair values of accrued interestivable and payable are assumed to equal theyricgrvalue.

Off - Balance-Sheet InstrumentsOff-balance-sheet items consist principally ofuntded loan commitments, standby letters of crexdit]
unused lines of credit. The estimated fair valdasndunded loan commitments, standby letters oflitrand unused lines of credit are not
material.
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (con tinued)

While the above estimates are based on managenugdgisient of the most appropriate factors, as efdhilance sheet date, there is no
assurance that the estimated fair values would hega realized if the assets were disposed ofediiahilities settled at that date, since market
values may differ depending on the various circamss. The estimated fair values would also noyappsubsequent dates.

In addition, other assets and liabilities thatrawefinancial instruments, such as premises angewnt, are not included in the above
disclosures.

NOTE 16 — OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income (loss) components datbdetaxes were as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on securitiesph&ax $1,66€ $(17,272) $(6,985)
Net loss (gain) on sale of securities recognized of tax 612 (83E) (239)
Loss on impairment of securities, net of 24¢€ 21,64 —

$2,52¢ $ 353 $(7,219)

NOTE 17 — COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMAT ION

Condensed financial information of BankFinanciak@wation as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 anthéothree years ended December 31,
2009 follows:

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

2009 2008
ASSETS
Cash in subsidiar $ 25,758 $ 32,97¢
Loan receivable from ESC 17,17: 17,77¢
Investment in subsidiai 220,13t 214,70¢
Income tax receivabl 11,72¢ 1,361
Other asset 141 18
Total asset $274,93. $266,83¢
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 11,32¢ 48
Total stockholder equity 263,60  266,79:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $274,93. $266,83!
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NOTE 17 — COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMAT ION (continued)

Condensed Statements of Operations

2009 2008 2007
Interest incom $1,24¢ $ 1287 $ 1,321
Dividends from subsidiar — 2,00(¢ 47,50(
Other expens 1,42¢ 1,85¢ 1,86¢
Income (loss) before income tax and undistributdzsiliary income (184 1,42¢ 46,957
Income tax benef (69 (217) (209)
Income (loss) before equity in undistributed sulasidincome (11%) 1,64¢ 47,16¢
Equity in undistributed subsidiary income (exceiss$rithutions) (62%) (21,039 (40,01))

Net income (loss $ (73¢) $(19,389 $ 7,15t

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

2009 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss $ (738 $(19,389 $ 7,15t
Adjustments
Equity in undistributed subsidiary income (exceissrithutions) 622 21,03t 40,01:
Change in other asse (10,49 54¢ (22)
Change in accrued expenses and other liabi 11,28: (143) 191
Net cash from operating activities 674 2,05z 47,33¢
Cash flows from investing activities
Principal payments received on ESOP | 60€ 563 52¢
Net cash from investing activities 60€ 562 52¢
Cash flows from financing activities
Repurchase and retirement of common s (2,497 (7,73%) (33,959
Cash dividends paid on common st (6,010 (6,139 (6,487
Net cash from financing activities (8,507 (13,87)) (40,43%)
Net change in cash and cash equival (7,22]) (11,25¢) 7,42
Beginning cash and cash equivale 32,97¢ 44,23 36,80¢
Ending cash and cash equivalent $ 25,758 $32,97¢ $ 44,230
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NOTE 18 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

Year Ended December 31, 200

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest incomt $18,90¢ $18,71¢ $18,51( $17,98(
Interest expens 5,73¢ 5,50( 4,83¢ 4,48
Net interest incom 13,17( 13,21z 13,67: 13,497
Provision for loan losse 1,34« 2,84 427 4,19:
Net interest incom 11,82¢ 10,36¢ 13,24¢ 9,30¢
Non interest incom 1,64z 1,80z 1,66( 2,13¢
Non interest expens 13,04 13,047 12,58 14,06
Income (loss) before income tax 42€ (879 2,324 (2,627)
Income tax expense (benel 254 (214 973 (1,026
Net income (loss $ 172 $ (665 $ 1,351 $ (1,599
Basic earnings (loss) per common sk $ 001 $ (0.0 $ 0.07 $ (0.09
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ 001 $ (00) $ 007 $ (0.08¢

Year Ended December 31, 2008

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest incomt $20,74: $19,387 $18,74¢ $19,08:
Interest expens 7,46¢ 6,40¢ 5,98: 5,81(
Net interest incom 13,27: 12,98: 12,76¢ 13,27:
Provision (credit) for loan lossi (512) 25C 1,40¢ 3,48
Net interest incom 13,32 12,73 11,36( 9,78
Non interest incom 4,717 1,68¢ 2,107 1,91(
Non interest expens 13,23¢ 23,41¢ 37,48¢ 14,91,
Income (loss) before income tax 4,80z (9,000 (24,01) (3,227)
Income tax expense (benel 1,61(C (3,599 1,06¢ (11,130
Net income (loss $ 3,192 $(5,407) $(25,08) $ 7,90¢
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ 01€ $ (0.2) $ (1279 $ 0.4cC
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ 01€ $ (0.2) $ (1.2 $ 0.4cC

The Company recorded a net loss of $1.6 milliortferfourth quarter of 2009. The Company’s opecatesults included a $4.2 million
provision for loan losses as well as a $988,008 twssale of our Freddie Mac preferred stock.

On January 29, 2010, the Company announced thHabisd of Directors declared a cash dividend 00%@er share of its common stock. The
dividend will be payable on March 5, 2010 to stauklers of record on February 10, 2010.
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ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not Applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceslure

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Principal Execu@fécer and Principal Financial Officer,
we evaluated the effectiveness of the design aedatipn of our disclosure controls and proceduassdgfined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 1Bs{e)
under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the figeal (the “Evaluation Date”Based upon that evaluation, the Principal Execu@iffecer anc
Principal Financial Officer concluded that, asted Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls anadgadares were effective in timely alerting
them to the material information relating to us gar consolidated subsidiaries) required to beuihet! in our periodic Securities and Exchange
Commission filings.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Con@eér Financial Reporting.

The annual report of management on the effectiveeagsur internal control over financial reportiagd the attestation report thereon issued by
our independent registered public accounting firmset forth under “Report of Management on Inte@antrol Over Financial Reportingind
“Report of Independent Registered Public Accountirgn on Internal Control Over Financial Reportingider “Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data.”

(c) Changes in internal controls.

There were no changes made in our internal condiwiisig the period covered by this report or, to knowledge, in other factors that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenglly affect these controls.

See the Certifications pursuant to Section 30hef3arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable.
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PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Directors and Executive Officers

The information concerning our directors and exeeufficers required by this item will be filed thithe Securities and Exchange Commis
by amendment to this Form 10-K, not later than d2¢s after the end of our fiscal year.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

The information concerning compliance with the mtipg requirements of Section 16(a) of the Seasittxchange Act of 1934 by our
directors, officers and 10 percent stockholdersiireg by this item will be filed with the Securgi@and Exchange Commission by amendment
to this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days afterehd of our fiscal year.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Firgificers that applies to our principal executofécer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer, and persons perforgrsimilar functions. A copy of our Code of Ethicasvattached as Exhibit 14 to our Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities anctBange Commission on March 27, 2006. We havealspted a Code of Business
Conduct, pursuant to Nasdaq requirements, thatespgénerally to our directors, officers, and ergpks.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information concerning compensation requiredhiyitem will be filed with the Securities anddiange Commission by amendment to
this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information concerning security ownership ataia beneficial owners and management requirethisyitem will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission by amendmaehisté-orm 10-K, not later than 120 days after theé ef our fiscal year.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Corpensation Plan

The following table sets forth information regamlithe securities that were authorized for issuamcker our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan as of
December 31, 2009:

Column (A) Column (B) Column (C)

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available
for Future
Issuance
under
Number of
Securities tc
Weighted- 2006
be Issued Average Equity
Upon Exercise Incentive
Exercise of Price of Plan
Outstanding Outstanding (Excluding
Securities
Options, Options, Reflected
Warrants Warrants in Column
Plan Category and Rights and Rights (A)
Equity compensation plans approved by stockhol 2,573,900 $ 16.51 257,62.
Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldre — — —
Total 2,573,90. 16.51 257,62:

Column (A) represents stock options and restristedk outstanding under the Company’s 2006 Equitgmtive Plan. Future equity awards
under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan may take @mnfof stock options, stock appreciation rightsfgenance unit awards, restricted stock,
restricted performance stock, restricted stocksystiock awards or cash. Column (B) represente/élighted-average exercise price of the
outstanding stock options only; the outstandingricted stock awards are not included in this dalfton. Column (C) represents the maximum
aggregate number of future equity awards that eamé&de under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan aseaebhber 31, 2009.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information concerning certain relationshipd eglated transactions required by this will bediwith the Securities and Exchange
Commission by amendment to this Form 10-K, notrldten 120 days after the end of our fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information concerning principal accountansfaad services will be filed with the Securitiesl &xchange Commission by amendment to
this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statementlod tegistrant and its subsidiaries are filed asgfahis document under “ltem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

(A) Report of Independent Registered Accounting F

(B) Consolidated Statements of Financial Condi- at December 31, 2009 and 2(

(C) Consolidated Statements of Operations for the ymaded December 31, 2009, 2008 and z

(D) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 20082007
(E) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeraled December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2

(F) Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

None.

(a)(3) Exhibits
The documents set forth below are filed herewitinoorporated herein by reference to the locatiaticated.

Exhibit Location
3.1 Atrticles of Incorporation of BankFinancial Corpacat Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Fo-1 of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities angdcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

3.2 Bylaws of BankFinancial Corporation Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement on Forth & the
Company, originally filed with the Securities angdcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

3.2 Articles of Amendment to Charter of BankFinancialr@oration Exhibit 3.3 to the Registration Statement on Fo-1 of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities angdcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(
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3.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.12

10.1¢

10.14

10.1¢

10.1¢€

10.17

10.1€

10.1¢

10.2C

Exhibit

Location

Restated Bylaws of BankFinancial Corporat

Form of Common Stock Certificate of BankFinanciak@bration

Employee Stock Ownership Pl

Deferred Compensation Plan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with F. Maor

Gasior

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Jamé&rdnnar

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with PauCkautier

Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Ter

2006 BankFinancial Corporation Equity IncentiverPla

Form of Performance Based Incentive Stock OptiorasnTerms

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Terms

Form of Performance Based MQualified Stock Option Awar

Terms

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreem:

Form of Performance Based Restricted Stock Awankdgent

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreem:

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement
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Exhibit 3.4 to the Annual Report on Form-K of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mnission on
March 15, 200°

Exhibit 4 to the Registration Statement on Form &-the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registration Statement on F&8-1 of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration Statement on F&uh of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities angdcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on For-K of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mnission on
May 5, 200¢

Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-Klud Company,
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@nission on
May 5, 2008

Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-Klud Company,
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mnission on
May 5, 200¢

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Forr-K of the Company, originall
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiniSeptember
5, 2006

Appendix C to the Definitive Form 14A, originallildd with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 25, 2Bé No.
00C-51331)

Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Forn-K of the Company, originall
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiSeptember
5, 2006

Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compeoriginally
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiniSeptember
5, 2006

Exhibit 10.4 to the Report on Forr-K of the Company, originall
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiniSeptember
5, 2006

Exhibit 10.5 to the Report on Forr-K of the Company, originall
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiSeptember
5, 2006

Exhibit 10.6 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compeoriginally
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiSeptember
5, 2006

Exhibit 10.7 to the Report on Forn-K of the Company, originall
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiSeptember
5, 2006

Exhibit 10.8 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compeoriginally
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiniSeptember
5, 2006



10.2¢

10.2¢

10.27

10.2¢

10.2¢

14

21

23

311

31.2

32

Exhibit

Location

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement Wt
Morgan Gasior

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement viddul A.
Cloutier

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement wiimes J
Brennan

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement Viidtizabeth
A. Doolan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Elizab.
Doolan
Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers

Subsidiaries of Registrant

Consent of Crowe Horwath LL

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Forn-K of the Company, originall
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiorOatober 20,
2008

Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compeoriginally
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinr©atober 20,
2008

Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Forr-K of the Company, originall
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiorOatober 20,
2008

Exhibit 10.28 to the Annual Report on Form 10-ktleé Company,
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mnission on
February 23, 200¢

Exhibit 10.28 to the Annual Report on Forr-K of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mnission on
February 23, 200¢

Exhibit 14 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of thempany,
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@nission on
March 27, 200¢

Exhibit 21 to the Registration Statement on Forth &-the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

Filed herewittr

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of Filed herewith

the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 ¢
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieihancial Office
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002*

Filed herewitr

Furnished herewit

* A signed original of this written statement rexpd by Section 906 has been provided to the Compadywill be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionior its staff upon reque:
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

Date: March 8, 2010 By: /s/ F. Morgan Gasior
F. Morgan Gasio
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer @&residen
(Duly Authorized Representativ

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh of 1934, this report has been signed belothéjollowing persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signatures Title Date

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executi

s/ F. Morgan G_a5|c Officer and President (Principal Executive
F. Morgan Gasior Officer)

March 8, 201(

Executive Vice President and Chief

s/ Paul A. Cloutier Financial Officer (Principal Financial

Paul A. Cloutiel

March 8, 201(

Officer)
/s/ Elizabeth A. Doolan Senior Vice President and Controller March 8, 201(
Elizabeth A. Doolar (Principal Accounting Officer
/s/ Cassandra J. Francis Director March 8, 201(
Cassandra J. Franc
/s/ John M. Hausmann Director March 8, 201(
John M. Hausman
/s/ Sherwin R. Koopmar Director March 8, 201(
Sherwin R. Koopman
/s/ Joseph A. Schu Director March 8, 201(
Joseph A. Schuc
/sl Terry R. Wells Director March 8, 201(
Terry R. Wells
/s/ Glen R. Wherfe Director March 8, 201(

Glen R. Wherfe
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Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement No. 333-127737 on Forgndd-BankFinancial Corporation,
our report dated March 5, 2010, with respect tocthresolidated financial statements of BankFinanCiadporation and the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportimghich report appears in this Annual Report omfr@0-K of BankFinancial Corporation f
the year ended December 31, 2009.

Crowe Horwath LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
March 5, 2010



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, F. Morgan Gasior, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corparat

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéte a material fact necessarn
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nteadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedarenused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr; or caused such internal control over finahetporting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegit’s internal control over financial reportifgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrars other certifying officer and | have disclosedsddhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 8, 201 /s/ F. Morgan Gasic

F. Morgan Gasior
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and Preside



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

[, Paul A. Cloutier, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corparat

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules

13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the registré's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonablhlikely to materially affect, the registré s internal control over financial reporting; e

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalwaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 8, 201 /s/ Paul A. Cloutie

Paul A. Cloutier
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 32

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Aof 2002

F. Morgan Gasior, Chairman of the Board, Chief Etiwe Officer and President of BankFinancial Cogiam, a Maryland corporation
(the “Company”) and Paul A. Cloutier, Executive ¥iBresident and Chief Financial Officer of the Camp each certify in his capacity as an
officer of the Company that he has reviewed theuahreport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decer3lie2009 (the “Report”) and that to
the best of his knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirementsSeictions 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchahgeof 1934; anc
2. the information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of 1

Company.
Date: March 8, 2010 /s/ F. Morgan Gasic
F. Morgan Gasio
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
and Presider
Date: March 8, 201 /s/ Paul A. Cloutie

Paul A. Cloutiel
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyaéll be retained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissidts staff upon reques



